
.The Cite, of PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR MAYOR 
Joe Purcell 

POLICE CHIEF 
Paul M. George Jr. 

Montouta. 

Michael Hurff Jr. 

FINANCE OFFICER/CITY CLERK 
Andrew Lehr 

The City of Hardin is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

Council Meeting 
of Tuesday, January 2, 2024 

Held by virtual meeting and the Public is invited to attend in person. 

Topic: City of Hardin Committee & Council Meetings — 01/02/2024 
Start Time: 6:00 p.m. Mountain Time 

Resolutions or Ordinances — 6:00 p.m. 
Council Meeting — 6:30 p.m. 

The meeting will open at 5:45 p.m. 

If you will be logging into the Council meeting by: 

Computer: Please identify yourself by submitting your first and last name by using the "Chat" function. 

Phone: Please identify yourself by stating your First and Last Name. 

City of Hardin is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/1/9897104479 

Meeting ID: 989 710 4479 
One tap mobile 

+17193594580„9897104479# US 

+12532050468„9897104479# US 

Dial by your location 
+1 719 359 4580 US 
+1 253 205 0468 US 

+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

+1 669 444 9171 US 
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 

+1 309 205 3325 US 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

+1 360 209 5623 US 
+1 386 347 5053 US 
+1 507 473 4847 US 
+1 564 217 2000 US 

+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 646 931 3860 US 
+1 689 278 1000 US 

+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1305 224 1968 US 

Meeting ID: 989 710 4479 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdYSyhPxWF 

City of Hardin 406 N Cheyenne Hardin MT 59034 Phone (406) 665-9292 Fax (406) 665-2719 



I fte eft t af 

IN 
406 North Cheyenne 

Hardin MT 59034 
(406) 665-9292 

Committee Meeting 
AGENDA 

January 2, 2024 
Council Chambers 
401 N. Cheyenne 

and by virtual meeting 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9897104479 

Meeting ID: 989 710 4479 
One tap mobile 

+13462487799„9897104479# US (Houston) 
+16694449171„9897104479# US 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

• Resolutions or Ordinances 

o Parking on boulevards/grass 

o Road Width 

o Garage dimensions 

6:00 p.m. 

Meeting adjourned at  P.M. 



City of Hardin City Code: 
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/hardinmt/latest/overview 

TITLE 9 
PUBLIC WAYS AND PROPERTY 

6u, B DwivEvv, 1W6NI§ouLEVARDS 

9-6-1: PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this chapter is to standardize, regulate, and control the location, size, type, 
construction, maintenance, and quality of curb cuts, driveway aprons, and sidewalk 
driveway crossings in the city from the standpoint of proper design, safe and efficient 
entry to and exit from city streets to private property, safety of vehicular traffic in the 
streets, safety of pedestrian traffic on the sidewalk area, and parking of vehicles on 
boulevards. (1984 Code) 

9-6-2: DEFINITIONS: 
For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply: 

ALLEY: A narrow public thoroughfare providing access to the rears of the abutting 
properties. 

BOULEVARD: That portion of the street right of way lying between the property line and 
the back of the closest curb. 

CURB CUT: The total street curbing that is removed to place a driveway and slopes. 

CURB RETURN: The curved portion of a street curb at driveway approaches. 

DRIVEWAY: That area on private property where vehicles are operated, parked, or 
allowed to stand. 

DRIVEWAY APRON: The area, construction or improvement between the curb cut or 
proposed curb line and the back edge of the walk or proposed walk line, to provide ingress 
and egress for vehicles from the alley, street, or roadway to a definite area of the private 
property. 

DRIVEWAY WIDTH: That portion of the street curbing that is removed, excluding curb 
returns or transitions, to provide ingress to and egress from abutting property. 

INTERSECTION: The area embraced within the prolongation or connection of the lateral 
curb lines, or if none, then the lateral boundary lines of the roadways which join each 
other at, or approximately at, right angles, or the area within which vehicles traveling upon 
different roadways joining at any other angle may come in conflict. 

PARKING: The presence of a vehicle on the boulevard. 



PERSON: Every natural person, firm, copartnership, association or corporation. 

RIGHT OF WAY: Public property dedicated for streets, alleys or other public uses. 

ROADWAY: That portion of a street improved, designed, and customarily used for 
vehicular travel, exclusive of the berm or shoulder. 

SIDEWALK: That portion of a street between curb lines or the outer lateral lines of a 
roadway, and the adjacent property lines, intended for use of pedestrians. 

STREET: The entire width between the boundary lines of the right of way publicly 
maintained when any part thereof is open to the use of the public for purposes of vehicular 
travel. 

TRAFFIC: Pedestrians, vehicles, and other conveyances, either singly or together, while 
using any street, alley or road way for purposes of travel. 

TRANSITIONS: The three foot (3') ramp sections along the street curb on each side of a 
driveway apron. 

VEHICLE: Any motorcycle, car, truck, trailer, boat, etc. which re quires a license to be 
operated within or on a public right of way. (1984 Code) 

9-6-3: PERMIT REQUIRED; FEE: 
It shall be unlawful for any person, either as owner, agent, servant, contractor, or 
employee, when altering, installing or constructing a driveway apron, to cut, break, 
remove or alter any curbing, driveway apron, or sidewalk, or cause to have cut, broken 
or removed any curbing, driveway apron, or sidewalk, or to install or cause to have 
installed any driveway, or any vehicular access, on any public right of way in the City 
without a permit. Permits shall be issued only to properly licensed and bonded contractors 
by the City Streets Superintendent or other representative authorized by the City after 
payment of a fee of twenty five dollars ($25.00). 

The above described permit shall not be required for work performed by the City of Hardin 
by the City of Hardin's agents and employees or for work performed through a special 
improvement district created by the City of Hardin. 

At the time the permit application is made, the City Streets Superintendent or other 
representative authorized by the City shall be advised of any parking meters, traffic or 
street signs, signal poles, street light poles, fire plugs, trees, or obstructions that will be 
affected by the placement or removal of the driveway or sidewalk. (Ord. 84-4, 11-20-84; 
amd. Ord. 87-15, 9-1-87) 

9-6-4: CONSENT OF PROPERTY OWNER REQUIRED: 
Before a permit is granted for the removal of the curb and/or the construction of a driveway 
on any street, the applicant for the driveway permit must produce evidence satisfactory 
to the City Streets Superintendent or other representative authorized by the City to show 
that the construction of such driveway is agreeable to and in accordance with the desire 
of the owners of the property to which such driveway will be an entrance. 

9-6-5: CITY TO FURNISH INSPECTOR: 



The City Streets Superintendent or other representative authorized by the City shall 
furnish an inspector to inspect every piece of curb, driveway and driveway apron to be 
constructed, whose duties shall be to check the forms for alignment, grade and materials 
and to see that the work is done in accordance with the specifications of the City at the 
time of the issuance of the permit. 

The City Streets Superintendent or other representative authorized by the City shall be 
notified at least twenty four (24) hours in advance of the time when the work is proposed 
to be started. (1984 Code; amd. Ord. 87-15, 9-1-87) 

9-6-6: ALLOWABLE CURB CUT LENGTHS: 
A. In single-family residential zoned districts, the maximum driveway width shall be 

twenty four feet (24') and shall be located in accordance with City specifications or 
drawings. 

B. In any multi-family and professional zoned districts, the maximum driveway width 
shall not exceed twenty four feet (24') and shall be located in accordance with City 
specifications or drawings. The minimum distance between curb cuts shall be twenty five 
feet (25'). 

C. In any commercial and industrial zoned districts, the maximum driveway width shall 
be forty feet (40'), when approved by City Council, and shall be located in accordance 
with City specifications and drawings. The minimum distance between curb cuts shall be 
twenty five feet (25'). 

D. In any allowable location, no driveway width shall be less than twelve feet (12') 
wide. 

E. Frontages of sixty feet (60') or less shall be limited to one driveway. Not more than 
two (2) driveways shall be provided to any single property tract or business establishment, 
except where the property frontage exceeds six hundred feet (600'), there may be one 
additional driveway for each additional three hundred feet (300') of frontage. 

9-6-7: REGULATIONS, GENERAL: 
Every curb cut and driveway apron constructed or altered in the street right of way shall 
conform to the following regulations: 

A. No driveway apron shall be constructed closer than five feet (5') from the side 
property line or as may be regulated by City specifications in effect at the time of such 
work. 

B. No driveway apron shall be closer than five feet (5') to, nor shall it be so located as 
to interfere with, intersecting sidewalks, utility facilities, light standards, fire hydrants, 
catch basins, street signs, signals or other public improvements or installations. 

C. Any necessary adjustments to such utility facilities, light standards, fire hydrants, 
catch basins, street signs, signals, underground conduits for street lighting or fire alarm 
systems, or other public improvements or installations shall be accomplished without cost 
to the City. 



D. No curb cut shall be made between the points of curvature of any curb radius at 
intersections, nor closer than ten feet (10') from the said points of curvature. 

E. No curb cut or driveway apron shall be located so as to create a hazard to 
pedestrians or motorists, or to invite or compel illegal or unsafe traffic movements. 

F. Every curb cut and/or driveway apron must provide complete access to a parking 
space, building or loading dock on private property requiring the entrance of vehicles. 

G. In any commercial, professional, and industrial zone, driveways shall be designed 
such that vehicles entering or egressing shall not be required to back from or into a street 
right of way. (1984 Code) 

H. All curb cuts and driveway aprons are to be constructed of Portland cement 
concrete of a quality and type as specified by the City Streets Superintendent or other 
representative authorized by the City, and in accordance with City specifications in effect 
at the time of such work. Curb cuts shall be permitted only with construction of adjoining 
Portland cement concrete aprons having a minimum depth of five feet (5'). 

I. All work shall be done under the supervision of the City Streets Superintendent or 
other representative authorized by the City, and in accordance with City specifications in 
effect at the time of such work. (1984 Code; amd. Ord. 87-15, 9-1-87) 

J. The licensed and bonded contractor or his agent doing the construction or alteration 
work shall maintain the premises in a safe manner and shall provide adequate barricades 
and lights at his own expense to protect the safety of the public using the adjacent streets 
or sidewalks, and shall hold the City from any damages incurred by his operations. 

K. The angle between any driveway apron and the street and/or curb line shall be 
ninety degrees (90) to the street tangent or on a radial line to the street curve. 

L. The two (2) side borders of each driveway apron between the curb line and property 
line shall be parallel. 

M. City street rights of way shall not be used for private commercial purposes. A permit 
for the construction of a curb cut driveway shall not be issued unless vehicles which will 
use said driveway can be parked entirely within the private property lines. 

N. Any curb cut or driveway apron which has become abandoned or unused through 
a change of the conditions for which it was originally intended shall be closed and the 
owner shall replace any such curb cut and/or driveway apron with a standard curb and 
sidewalk (if necessary) to be constructed according to the City specifications in effect at 
the time of such work. In the event the owner does not make such replacement within 
sixty (60) days after notice, the City may do so at the expense of said owner. (1984 Code) 

0. Driveways serving facilities that will generate five hundred (500) or more vehicle 
trips per day may, at the discretion of the City Streets Superintendent or other 
representative authorized by the City, be classified and constructed as a street 
intersection. A complete design of the intersection shall be submitted to the City Streets 
Superintendent or other representative authorized by the City before a permit is issued. 
Approval of this type entrance may be contingent upon the applicant installing traffic-



control devices at his sole expense. This type of entrance shall be included in calculating 
number, spacing, or any other requirement pertaining to driveways as specified herein. 
(1984 Code; amd. Ord. 87-15, 9-1-87) 

9-6-8: RESTRICTIONS: 
In addition to the general regulations prescribed herein, curb cuts and driveway aprons 
to be constructed or altered in districts must conform to the following: 

A. Where a property abuts more than one City street, the maximum curb cut permitted 
on each street shall be considered separately and shall be governed by the frontage of 
the property on that street. 

B. Two (2) or more curb cuts serving the same property must be separated by islands 
with full height curb not less than twenty five feet (25') long. (1984 Code) 

C. Where a property width is sixty feet (60') or less, joint curb cut with an adjoining 
property of sixty feet (60') or less may be constructed at a maximum width of twenty eight 
feet (28'). Both property owners must be in agreement to a joint curb cut and must submit 
a written agreement to the City Streets Superintendent or other representative authorized 
by the City. (1984 Code; amd. Ord. 87-15, 9-1-87) 

9-6-9: PARKING ON BOULEVARDS AND CURBS PROHIBITED: 
It shall be unlawful for any person to park a vehicle on the curb of a street, avenue or 
highway within the City, or on a boulevard of a City street, unless the portion of 
the boulevard that is parked on is entered through a curb cut and is part of a driveway. 
(Ord. 95-4, 3-21-95) 

9-6-10: DEVIATION: 
Permission to deviate from the requirements and regulations of this Chapter shall be 
granted by the City Council only where unusual conditions or strict adherence to this 
Chapter would cause undue and extreme hardship. 

A. If any one or more sections, sentences, clauses or parts of this Chapter shall, for 
any reason, be questioned or be held invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or 
invalidate the remaining provisions of this Chapter, but shall be confined in its operation 
to the specific sections, sentences, clauses, or parts of this Chapter so held 
unconstitutional and invalid and the inapplicability and invalidity of any section, sentence, 
clause or part of this Chapter, in any one or more instances shall not affect or prejudice 
in any way the applicability and validity of this Chapter in any other instance. 

B. Any person violating any provision of this Chapter may be charged with a 
misdemeanor, which shall be punishable as provided in section 3-11-102, M.C.A., 1983. 
Every day of such violation shall constitute a separate offense. (1984 Code) 

C. The following standard drawing shall be considered a part of this Chapter. 



WIDTHS OF DRIVEWAYS 

Residential and Professional Zones 

Commercial and Industrial Zones 

12' Minimum - 24' Maximum 

12' Minimum - 40' Maximum 

TITLE 10 
MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC 

10-2-6: DRIVING ON SIDEWALKS: 
The driver of a vehicle shall not drive within or upon any sidewalk area except at a 
permanent driveway, or upon a temporary driveway when a permit therefor has been 
secured from the city. No vehicle shall be parked on any sidewalk area including at a 
permanent driveway. (Ord. 2010-18, 1-4-2011) 

TITLE 11 
ZONING 

11-1-6: MINIMUM YARDS AND FAMILY AREAS DEFINED: 
11-1-6-1: TERMS RELATING TO "YARDS" DEFINED: 
CENTERLINE: The "centerline" of a street is a line halfway between the street lines. 

CORNER LOTS: On "corner lots" (lots abutting on 2 or more streets at their intersection) 
the front yard shall face the shortest street dimension of the lot, except that if the lot is 
square or almost square, then the front yard may face either street. 

FRONT YARD: The area from one side lot line to the other side lot line and between the 
main building and the street. A "front yard line" is a line parallel to the street and as far 
back from the street as required in this chapter. The terms "front yard line" and "building 
line" are synonymous. 



FRONTAGE: The distance along a street line from intersecting street to another or from 
one intersecting street to the end of a dead end street. "Lot frontage" is the width of a lot 
measured along a street. 

LOT WIDTH: The width of a lot at the front yard line. "Buildable width" is the width of a lot 
left to be built upon after the side yards are provided. 

MAIN BUILDING: The building occupied by the primary use. 

REAR YARD: The area from one side lot line to the other side lot line and from the main 
building drip line to the rear lot line. The rear yard is always on the opposite end of the lot 
from the front yard. 

SEPARATE TRACT: A parcel of land or a group of contiguous parcels of land under one 
ownership on the effective date of this chapter. 

SIDE YARD: The area from the front yard line to the rear yard line and from the main 
building drip line to the side lot line. 

YARD: An open space on the same lot as a building; except as provided herein, it is 
unoccupied and unobstructed by a structure. "Yard width" or "depth" is the shortest 
horizontal distance from a lot line to the main building. (Ord., 9-3-1974; amd. Ord. 87-9, 
5-5-1987) 

11-1-6-2: YARD AND FAMILY SPACE REQUIREMENTS: 
The following yard and family space requirements shall be provided in buildings in each 
district, and see also subsection 11-1-8-2J of this chapter: (Ord. 2003-03, 4-15-2003) 

A. In SR And R1 Districts: 

1. Front Yard: There shall be a front yard having a depth of not less than twenty five 
feet (25'); provided however, that where lots comprising forty percent (40%) or more of 
the frontage developed with buildings between parallel streets have an average front yard 
with a variation in depth of not more than six feet (6'), no building hereafter erected or 
altered shall project beyond the average front yard line so established; provided further, 
that this regulation shall not require a front yard of more than forty feet (40') in depth. 

Where there are no buildings in a block, the depth of the front yard shall be determined 
by making it conform to the depth on the same side of the street in the adjoining block. 

Where buildings front on a side street (or a street not parallel to an alley), the front yard 
shall have a depth of not less than ten feet (10'). 

2. Rear Yard: There shall be a rear yard having a depth of not less than twenty feet 
(20') where the rear lot line coincides with an alley line; otherwise, the depth shall be not 
less than one-half (1/2) of the height of the building. 

3. Side Yards And Side And Rear Yard For Accessory Buildings: There shall be a 
side yard on each side of the building, each yard having a width of not less than five feet 



(5'); the width, however, shall be not less than one-third (1/3) of the height of the building. 
Where a building fronts the street parallel to an alley on a corner lot, it shall have the side 
yard on the street side not less than ten feet (10') in width. 

On the corner lots, the side yard regulations shall be the same as for interior lots, except 
as noted above, but where the corner lot is developed so that the buildings face an 
intersecting street, there shall be a side yard on the street side of the corner lot of not less 
than the front yard required on the lots in the rear of such corner lot. No accessory building 
on said corner lot shall project beyond the front yard line of the lots in the rear. 

Where an accessory building without an entrance opening toward the alley is not attached 
to any building, it shall be not less than two and one-half feet (21/2') from the side line of 
the lot and not less than two and one-half feet (21/2') from the rear lot line, provided the 
front of said accessory building is located sixty feet (60') from the front property line. 

Where an accessory building, such as a garage, with an entrance opening toward the 
alley, is unattached to any building, it shall be not less than two and one-half feet (21/2') 
from the side lot line and not less than twelve feet (12') from the rear lot line. (Ord., 9-3-
1974; amd. 1984 Code) 

4. Lot Area Per Family: Every building hereafter erected, structurally altered or 
maintained shall provide a lot area of not less than seven thousand (7,000) square feet 
per family. (Ord., 9-3-1974; amd. Ord., 2-3-1976) 

B. In The R2 And R3 Districts: 

1. Front Yard: There shall be a front yard in the R2 districts having a depth of not 
less than twenty feet (20') and in the R3 districts, the front yard shall have a depth of not 
less than fifteen feet (15'); provided, however, that where lots comprising forty percent 
(40%) or more of the frontage developed with buildings between cross streets have an 
average front yard with a variation in depth of not more than six feet (6'), no building 
hereafter erected or altered shall project beyond the average front yard line so 
established; provided further, that this regulation shall not require a front yard of more 
than forty feet (40') in depth. 

Where buildings front on a side street (or a street not parallel to an alley), the front yard 
shall have a depth of not less than ten feet (10'). 

2. Rear Yard: There shall be a rear yard having a depth of not less than twenty feet 
(20') in the R2 districts and fifteen feet (15') in the R3 districts from the rear lot line where 
the rear lot line coincides with an alley line; otherwise, the depth shall not be less than 
one-half (1/2) of the height of the building. 

3. Side Yard And Rear And Side Yards Of Accessory Buildings: There shall be a 
side yard on each side of the building, each yard having a width of not less than five feet 
(5'); the width, however, shall be not less than one-third (1/3) of the height of the building. 
However, no building fronting the street parallel to an alley on a corner lot shall have a 
side yard on the street side less than ten feet (10') in width. 



On corner lots the side yard regulations shall be the same as interior lots, except as noted 
above, but where the corner lot is developed so that the buildings face an intersecting 
street, there shall be a side yard on the street side of the corner lot of not less than the 
front yard required on the lots in the rear of such corner lots and no accessory building 
on said corner lot shall project beyond the front yard line of the lots in the rear. 

Where an accessory building without an entrance opening toward the alley is not attached 
to any building, it shall be not less than two and one-half feet (21/2') from the side line of 
the lot and not less than two and one-half feet (21/2') from the rear lot line, provided the 
front of said accessory building is located sixty feet (60') from the front property line. 

Where an accessory building such as a garage, with an entrance opening toward the 
alley, is unattached to any building, it shall be not less than two and one-half feet (21/2') 
from the side lot line and not less than twelve feet (12') from the rear lot line. (Ord., 9-3-
1974; amd. 1984 Code) 

4. Lot Area Per Family: The following minimum lot area per dwelling unit shall be 
provided: 

1 unit 6,000 square feet 

2 units 7,000 square feet 

3 units 8,500 square feet 

4 units 10,000 square feet 

5 units 11,500 square feet 

6 units 13,000 square feet 

7 units 14,500 square feet 

8 units 16,000 square feet 

Over 8 units 500 square feet each additional unit 

C. In The Cl, C2, C3, 11 And 12 Districts: Yard setbacks, height restrictions, and 
lot coverages for the C and 1 districts other than residential are as follows: 

District Front 
Setback 

Side 
Setback 

Side 
Adjacent 
To Street 
Setback 

Rear 
Setback 

Maximum 
Lot 
Coverage 

Maximum 
Building 
Height 

Cl 0 feet 0 feet 0 feet 0 feet n/al n/al

C2 20 feet 0 feet 10 feet 0 feet 75 percent 45 feet 

C3 20 feet 0 feet 10 feet 0 feet 50 percent 25 feet 

II 20 feet 0 feet 10 feet 0 feet 75 percent 75 feet 

12 20 feet 0 feet 10 feet 0 feet 76 percent n/al 



1. n/a: Not applicable. 

1. Front Yard: There shall be a front yard in the C2, C3, II and 12 districts having a 
depth of not less than twenty feet (20') provided, however, that where lots comprising forty 
percent (40%) or more of the frontage developed with buildings between cross streets 
have an average front yard with a variation in depth of not more than six feet (6'), no 
building hereafter erected or altered shall project beyond the average front yard line so 
established; provided further, that notwithstanding the foregoing, this provision shall not 
require a front yard of more than forty feet (40') in depth. 

2. Side Yard And Rear And Side Yards Of Accessory Buildings: There shall be a 
side yard in the C2, C3, 11 and 12 districts on any side of an accessory building that is 
adjacent to a street, avenue or alley that is not less than ten feet (10') in width. 

3. Residential Units: Yard requirements for residential units in C2, C3, 11 or 12 
districts shall conform to the same standards as for residential units in an R2 district. (Ord. 
2003-03, 4-15-2003) 

11-1-6-3: ADDITIONAL GENERAL RULES FOR YARDS: 
A. Where a frontage is divided among districts with different front yard requirements, 

the deepest front yard shall apply to the entire frontage. 

B. Where a lot is in a C or 1 district and is next to an R district, the side or rear yard 
required in that R district must be provided along the boundary line. 

C. Those parts of existing buildings that violate yard regulations may be repaired and 
remodeled but not reconstructed. (Ord., 9-3-1974) 

11-1-6-4: EXCEPTIONS TO YARD REGULATIONS: 
The following exceptions may be made in yard regulations: 

A. Projections Into Yards: Steps, terraces and uncovered porches may extend into any 
minimum front or rear yard not more than six feet (6'), provided the floor thereof is no 
higher than that of the first floor entrance to the building; and such features may extend 
into any minimum side yard not more than four feet (4') distant from any lot line. Fire 
escapes and outside open stairways may project not more than two feet (2') into any 
minimum required yard. Chimneys may extend into any minimum yard not more than two 
feet (2'). (1984 Code) 

B. Side Yards: 

1. No side yards are required for dwellings that are erected above commercial 
structures. 

2. If side yards are provided where not required, they must be at least five feet (5') 
wide. (Ord., 9-3-1974) 



Cam EdidrfMr 

Table 23-406.B.1. Required Dedications and Street Improvements for Subdivisions 
within the City Limits 

Street Type Right- 
of- 
Way , 

B-B 
Curb 
Width 

Lane 
Width 

Parking 
Width 

Turn 
lane 
width 

Median 
Width 

Boule 
yard 
Width 

Sidewalk 
Width 

Principal 
Arterial

130' 64'-86'* 11'- 14' 
. 

10' 5710' *** 

Minor 
Arterial 

100' 42'-66' * --- -- 14' 10' 

Collector 74' 5 - 9' 
, 

8 14' - 5° 5' 
Commercial 
Local 
Access 

70' 44'-45' 13.5' 14' 5 

Residential 
Local 
Access 

56' 34' min. n/s - n/s --- , 

Cul-de-Sac 
100-600 
feet 

56' 34' min. n/s - n/s --- - 

Cul-de-Sac 
<100 feet 

40' 
. 

29' min. n/s n/s --- - 

A traffic study is required to determine final width. 
Interior lane(s) is 11' and the outside lane is 12'. 
Sidewalk is 5' on one side and 10' on the other side. 
No specific width is specified. 



AGENDA 

January 2, 2024 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 6:30 P.M. 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The City of Hardin 
406 N. Cheyenne Avenue 
Hardin, MT 59034 

ROLL CALL: Mayor: 
Alderpersons: Steven Hopes   Clayton Greer  Chris Sharpe 

Rock Massine   Jeremy Krebs   Antonio Espinoza  

CONSENT AGENDA: 
Council Meeting 12/19/2023 
Claims 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

MAYOR: 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
• Personnel Committee/City Policy: Mayor 

• Sewer & Water: Massine 
• Law Enforcement: Hopes 

• Streets & Alleys: Espinoza 
• Parks & Playgrounds: Krebs 

• Finance/Landfill: Greer 

• Resolutions and Ordinances: Sharpe 

o Parking on boulevards/grass o Road width o Garage dimensions 

SPECIAL COMMITTEES: 
PETITIONS & COMMUNICATION: 

o Montana Department of Transportation Newsletter 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

NEW BUSINESS: 
o Council Committee Appointments 
o Sand Shed Quote - $55,715.00 
o Annual Financial Report (AFR) 

STAFF REPORTS 
• Public Works: 
• Finance: 
• Police: 
• Legal: 

o Farm to Market Agreement 

• Economic Development: 

RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
December Anniversaries: Bryan Wilson - 2 years 

Christmas Tree Pick-up - January 2nd to January 5th 

Call for Bids for The City and the Hardin Volunteer Fire Department - SCBA's - are due January 9, 2024 
by 3:00 p.m. 

City Offices Closed - Monday, January 15, 2024 for Martin Luther King Day 

Business Licenses and Pet Licenses are due by February 1, 2024 

City of Hardin Job Openings: Full time positions: Police Officers, School Resource Officer, Building Inspector/Code 
Enforcement Apprentice and Maintenance Worker I. Positions are open until filled. 

Meeting adjourned at 

Additions to the Agenda can be voted on by Council to add to the Agenda for the next Council meeting. 
Agenda items will need to be submitted by Wednesday noon before a Tuesday Council meeting. 

Page 1 of 1 



December 19, 2023 - Minutes 

THE COMMON COUNCIL 
CITY of HARDIN, MONTANA 

COUNCIL MEETING: The Regular Council Meeting for December 19, 2023 was called to 
order at 6:30 p.m. Mayor Joe Purcell presiding by reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 

The following Aldermen were present: Clayton Greer, Chris Sharpe, Rock Massine, Espinoza and 
Jeremy Krebs. Steven Hopes was excused. 

Also present: Finance Officer/City Clerk Andrew Lehr, Public Works Director Michael Hurff, Jr., 
Deputy City Clerk Angela Zimmer, City Attorney Jordan Knudsen and Police Chief Paul George, 
Jr. 

Also present physically and by Virtual Meeting: Members of the public. 

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS & CLAIMS: Greer made the motion to approve 
the Council minutes as written for December 5, 2023. Motion seconded by Massine. On a voice 
vote the motion was unanimously approved. Greer made the motion to approve the Closed meeting 
minutes as written for December 5, 2023. Motion seconded by Sharpe. On a voice vote the motion 
passed. (4/1) Espinoza abstained. 

Greer made a motion to approve the claims for Decthnber 19,2023. 

CLAIM No. 

November, 2023 30479-30481, 30483-30494, 
30511-30514 

December, 2023 30482, 30495-30510 

Total Submitted -„ 

Krebs seconded. On a voice vote" the motion was idianimously approved. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Jose Funke voiced his concei ns. of the gas station and that bringing another one to town is 

causing a safety issue. He also expressed concerns of the state-owned street lights and vehicles 
parked on the streets. Funke requested for the neighborhood watch meetings to be brought back 
and let Hurff know that the owner of Alpine Meadows will be putting gravel in the park and in the 
alley. 

Monthly Total 

147,244.32 

291,222.59 

438,466.91 

Sheriff Jeramie Middlestead addressed Council and voiced that the County is a hundred 
percent committed in working with the Hardin Police Department and forging that relationship. 

Corrina Kirschenmann-Kuntz, via Zoom, extended a "Thank You" to everyone for voting 
her onto the City-County Planning Board for another two years. 

MAYOR: 
Mayor Purcell extended a "Thank You" to Kristi Wedel and Angela Zimmer for planning 

the City Christmas Party; he reported there was a meeting with Stably Engineering this afternoon 
to finalize details for the Pt Street Project, it will go to bid soon; Hurff is creating a list of City 
items that will be put out to bid; the final draw was made from the Rural Development (RD) Grant 
for the Police Department equipment; the K-9 Unit is done and the next step is to acquire a K-9; 
and there was a meeting with HUD, by Zoom, regarding community housing needs, they will 
provide a report in the future. 

Personnel Policy/City Policy: 
Mayor Purcell reported the City has job openings for Police Officers, Maintenance Worker 

I, Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Apprentice, and a School Resource Officer (SRO). 

1of4 



December 19, 2023 - Minutes 

Sewer & Water: 

Law Enforcement: 
Espinoza voiced he would like to see Community Watch started again. 

Streets & Alleys: 

Parks & Playgrounds: 

Finance/Landfill: 

Resolutions & Ordinances: 
Greer noted the street widths need to be addressed in the ordinances. 

SPECIAL COMMITTEES: 

PETITIONS & COMMUNICATIONS: 
Mayor Purcell reported the City received the City-Comity Planning Board Minutes 

of November 13, 2023. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

NEW BUSINESS: 
Mayor Purcell reported the City, received a letter of recommendation and Staff 

Reports from the City-County Planning Board (CCPB) to approve the applications for 
Zone Change from Agricultural Open Space (AO) to IIighway Commercial (C2), to approve 
a Variance Request on the access width, 80- Riot driveway width, and parking 
requirements to allow a total of sixty-seven (67) spaces, and to approve the Annexation 
Application. The applications were. submitted by Maverik, Inc. for property currently 
owned by Richard and Lynda tpin just north of Interstate-90 on the west side of 
Highway 47. 

fly 

Zone Change Application - AO fo C2: Massine asked Knudsen how bad the traffic 
is around that location when he comes into town and he noted that some days are bad and 
some not. There was some discussion of traffic studies and contact with the state. Forrest 
Mandeville, AK P - Planning Consultant for the CCPB, Josh DeMann, Engineer with 
AWA Engineering were present via ZOOM and Richard Piggot, Sr. Planning Project 
Manager of Maverik, was present, Piggott provided information and fielded questions 
regarding the applieations. Greet Motioned to approve the Zone Change request as 
written to include the rccomMendations listed in the Staff Report and letter of 
recommendation submitted by the CCPB. Krebs seconded. On a voice vote the motion 
passed. (3/2) Espinoza and Massine voted Nay. 

Conditional :Use/Variance Application — driveway access width and parking 
requirements: Massine asked Piggott how Maverik will monitor the parking lot. Piggott 
noted there are not showers, etc and that it isn't in their business model for a truck stop, 
the parking spaces have a thirty minute maximum and the employees are trained to 
regulate it. He reported there was a recommendation to change the name of Dorn Road, 
that land will be dedicated to the City. Piggott reviewed the need for the requested road 
access width. Mandeville reviewed the Conditional Use/Variance Application 
referencing pages eight and nine of the Staff Report noting the applicant shows the 
property in question is denied a right under the Zoning Ordinance that is being enjoyed 
by other properties in the same area and zone. Greer motioned to approve the variance 
for the width of the driveway and requested parking spaces. After further discussion, 
Krebs seconded. The motion passed. (3/2) Espinoza and Massine voted Nay. 

Application for Annexation: Greer motioned to approve the application. Sharpe 
seconded. On a voice vote the motion passed. (3/2) Espinoza and Massine voted Nay. 

Dax Simek, Stahly Engineering, provided a review of proposed projects for 
funding from HB355; the City of Hardin allocation is $282,000. He noted the preference 

2 of4 



December 19, 2023 - Minutes 

is for it to be used towards water and wastewater facilities. There is a requirement for a twenty-five 
percent match from the City. Proposed uses of this funding were identified as: purchasing mixers 
and lining for the water hill tanks, an auger monster at the Wastewater Treatment Plant, or to help 
develop housing at the property west of Heimat Park. A summary will be put together to identify 
the projects and it will be brought before Council at a Public Hearing. The final submission is due 
March 2024. 

STAFF REPORTS: 
Public Works: 

Finance: 
Lehr reported the last reimbursement request for the Police Department Rural Development 

Grant has been received; the agreement with Lodge Grass has been signed and approved; the 
garbage truck invoice has been received; and he received an email from Montana Coal Endowment 
and the Department of Commerce and the next round of applications are due in January for planning 
grants. Lehr reported he filed the Fire Department Relief Association Pension report; transfers have 
been completed from the General Fund to the Capital Fund; and the City has gone out to bid for 
new SCBA's for the Fire Department with the deadline of 3:00 p.m. January 9, 2024. 

Lehr reported state statute requires a local government review every ten years. The cost for 
the process will need to be budgeted in the next fiscal year. He reviewed the process and noted that 
it will go out to vote and if the constituents choose to have a review, then the City will go through 
the process and it will be placed on the next general ballot. 

Police: 
Police Chief George reviewed calls for service and voiced the officers are being proactive in 

what they need to do to keep the City safe. He provided an overview of an incident that happened 
recently and how important it is to get registered for the Code Red notification system. 

Police Chief George noted the department forwarded the gifts to Child Protective Services 
to provide to foster children during this holiday season and reported he would like to do something 
next year for kids that reside in the City limits. 

Police Chief George reported the vehicles from Enterprise are on their way and the K-9 unit 
is expected to be here next week. 

Kirschenmann-Kuntz asked about an ordinance regarding people parking on their lawns. 
Sharpe requested a committee meeting. 

Legal: 
Knudsen reported a meeting is scheduled for Thursday, December 28t11 with the County for 

discussion about the Farm to Market agreement. 

Economic Development: 

RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 
Resolution No. 2355: Approving applications for License to Serve Beer, Beer and Wine or 
Liquor. Krebs motioned to approve the resolution. Espinoza seconded. On a voice vote the motion 
was unanimously approved. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS:
Mayor Purcell announced the following: 

City Offices will be Closing at 12:00 p.m. on Friday, December 22, 2023 & will be Closed on 
Monday, December 25, 2023 for Christmas Day & Monday, January 1, 2024 for New Year's Day. 

Alley Clean-Up is scheduled for December 26th to December 29th — please have items out early 
December 26th. Christmas Tree pick-up is scheduled from January 2nd to January  5t

2024 Business and Pet Licenses are due by February 1, 2024. 

Call for Bids for the City and the Hardin Volunteer Fire Department for SCBA's are due by 3:00 
p.m. on January 9, 2024. 

3 of4 



December 19, 2023 - Minutes 

Mayor Purcell announced the following job openings: Full-time positions — Police 
Officers, School Resource Officer (SRO), Building Inspector/Code Enforcement 
Apprentice, and Maintenance Worker I. All positions are open until filled. 

Mayor Purcell performed Oaths of Office for Alderman Jeremy Krebs, Alderman 
Antonio Espinoza, and Alderman Chris Sharpe. 

Greer motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:46 p.m. Massine seconded. On a voice vote 
the motion was unanimously approved. 

Joe Purcell, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Andrew Lehr, Finance Officer/City Clerk 

4 of 4 



Month 

Cif* Mcvalitt 

Submitted for Approval 

January 2, 2024 

CLAIM No. 

December, 2023 

January, 2024 

LI*, orld H.Npcilditures) 

December Payroll 

TOTAL Submitted 

30535, 30538-30554 

30515-30534, 30536-30537 

Monthly Total 

$ 494,772.14 

2,430.12 

497,202. 

211,887.36 

$ 709,089.62 

Claims or Expenditures over $5,000 
per Resolution #2189 

Vendor Purpose Check # Amount 

U.S. BANK TRUST -SpA LOCKBOX CM9695 2021B SRF Sewer Debt Payment -99741 18,555.78 

MATOVICH OIL CO. Gas, Diesel, DEF, oil, etc 39913 11,011.69 

Approved Previously February 15, 2022 
February 15, 2022 Meeting 
KOIS BROTHERS EQUIPMENT CO. 2023 Garbage truck Body 39918 180,609.00 
FLOYD'S TRUCK CENTER 2023 Garbage truck chasis 39919 204,728.00 
July 5, 2023 Meeting 
DUVAL FORD 2023 Ford Interceptor K-9 vehicle 39920 73,582.82 

Page 1 of 1 



CITY OF HARDIN 
Claims Report 

For the Accounting Period: January, 2024 

Vendor Claim # Check Amount 

JACK WEICHMAN CL 30515 39883 100.00 

BOB SCHOEN CL 30516 39884 100.00 

PAT BRECKENRIDGE CL 30517 39885 100.00 

TERRY BULLIS CL 30518 39886 100.00 

RON NEDENS CL 30519 39887 100.00 

DENNIS FOX CL 30520 39888 100.00 

HARRY KAUTZMAN CL 30521 39889 100.00 

ROB BRYSON CL 30522 39890 100.00 

KENTON G KEPP CL 30523 39891 100.00 

JAY LUNDBERG CL 30524 39892 100.00 

DANIEL J KLINGENSTEIN CL 30525 39893 100.00 

LARRY W VANDERSLOOT CL 30526 39894 100.00 

JIM WEDEL CL 30527 39895 100.00 

TIM A WAGNER CL 30528 39896 100.00 

TEDDY J BURROUGHS CL 30529 39897 100.00 

KATHERINE M JOHNSON CL 30530 39898 50.00 

SANDRA K BIERY CL 30531 39899 50.00 

KEITH BRECKENRIDGE CL 30532 39900 100.00 

JERRY WEIVIPLE CL 30533 39901 100.00 

MARK BETTS CL 30534 39902 100.00 

WISPWEST.NET CL 30536 39904 115.12 

U.S. POSTAL SERVICE CL 30537 39905 415.00 

2,430.12 

Page 2 of 3 



CITY OF HARDIN 
Claims Report 

For the Accounting Period: December, 2023 

Vendor Claim # Check Amount 

U.S. BANK TRUST -SpA LOCKBOX CM9695 CL 30535 -99741 18,555.78 
WEGNER WATER SERVICES INC CL 30538 39906 72.00 
CENTURYLINK CL 30539 -99740 220.38 
MOUNTAIN ALARM CL 30540 39907 464.50 
CITY WATER DEPT CL 30541 39908 433.70 
PAUL PRYOR III CL 30542 39909 6.66 
SHALANA MEDICINE HORSE CL 30543 39910 22.98 
BILLINGS PETERBILT/JACKSON GROUP CL 30544 39911 516.73 
HARDIN DO IT BEST CL 30545 39912 153.25 
MATOVICH OIL CO. CL 30546 39913 11,011.69 
LUMBERZACS INC CL 30547 39914 273.61 
PINE RIDGE FABRICATION LLC CL 30548 39915 300.00 
MONTANA DAKOTA UTILITIES CL 30549 39916 2,088.70 
ANIMAL CARE CENTER CL 30550 39917 223.60 
KOIS BROTHERS EQUIPMENT CO. CL 30551 39918 180,609.00 
FLOYD'S TRUCK CENTER CL 30552 39919 204,728.00 
DUVAL FORD CL 30553 39920 73,582.82 
STREET DECOR, INC CL 30554 39921 1,508.74 

494,772.14 

Page 1 of 3 



CITY OF HARDIN 
Check Report 

1/2/2024 

Vendor Claim # Check Amount 

JACK WEICHMAN CL 30515 39883 100.00 
BOB SCHOEN CL 30516 39884 100.00 
PAT BRECKENRIDGE CL 30517 39885 100.00 
TERRY BULLIS CL 30518 39886 100.00 
RON NEDENS CL 30519 39887 100.00 
DENNIS FOX CL 30520 39888 100.00 
HARRY KAUTZMAN CL 30521 39889 100.00 
ROB BRYSON CL 30522 39890 100.00 
KENTON G KEPP CL 30523 39891 100.00 
JAY LUNDBERG CL 30524 39892 100.00 
DANIEL J KLINGENSTEIN CL 30525 39893 100.00 
LARRY W VANDERSLOOT CL 30526 39894 100.00 
JIM WEDEL CL 30527 39895 100.00 
TIM A WAGNER CL 30528 39896 100.00 
TEDDY J BURROUGHS CL 30529 39897 100.00 
KATHERINE M JOHNSON CL 30530 39898 50.00 
SANDRA K BIERY CL 30531 39899 50.00 
KEITH BRECKENRIDGE CL 30532 39900 100.00 
JERRY WEMPLE CL 30533 39901 100.00 
MARK BETTS CL 30534 39902 100.00 
WISPWEST.NET CL 30536 39904 115.12 
U.S. POSTAL SERVICE CL 30537 39905 415.00 
WEGNER WATER SERVICES INC CL 30538 39906 72.00 
MOUNTAIN ALARM CL 30540 39907 464.50 
CITY WATER DEPT CL 30541 39908 433.70 
PAUL PRYOR III CL 30542 39909 6.66 
SHALANA MEDICINE HORSE CL 30543 39910 22.98 
BILLINGS PETERBILT/JACKSON GROUP CL 30544 39911 516.73 
HARDIN DO IT BEST CL 30545 39912 153.25 
MATOVICH OIL CO. CL 30546 39913 11,011.69 
LUMBERZACS INC CL 30547 39914 273.61 
PINE RIDGE FABRICATION LLC CL 30548 39915 300.00 
MONTANA DAKOTA UTILITIES CL 30549 39916 2,088.70 
ANIMAL CARE CENTER CL 30550 39917 223.60 
KOIS BROTHERS EQUIPMENT CO. CL 30551 39918 180,609.00 
FLOYD'S TRUCK CENTER CL 30552 39919 204,728.00 
DLTVAL FORD CL 30553 39920 73,582.82 
STREET DECOR, INC CL 30554 39921 1,508.74 
U.S. BANK TRUST -SpA LOCKBOX CM9695 CL 30535 -99741 18,555.78 
CENTURYLINK CL 30539 -99740 220.38 

497,202.26 

Page 3 of 3 



NEWSLINE 
Montana Department of Transportation 

mdt.mt.gov 

December 2023 

MDT Launches Website for 
New Traffic Safety Campaign 

Newsline readers were introduced to MDT's latest traffic safety 
advertising campaign efforts in the September 2023 issue (Read the 
cover story here: https://www.mdtmtmov/publicationsIdocs/ 
newslettersinewsline/2023/newsep23.pdf). MDT's new safety mascot 
and crowd favorite, Andy the Australian Shepherd, has been joined by 
one national and two state athlete celebrities on the recently launched 
Engage Montana website. Engage is the culmination of MDT's work over 
the past few years to develop a new traffic safety campaign and related 
messaging to address issues like impaired driving, seat belt use, 
speeding, and distracted driving on Montana's roadways. 

NFL Influencer: Troy Andersen 

If you're an NFL fan, you may have recognized a familiar face in 
MDT's traffic safety messaging. Growing up in Dillon, Troy Andersen left 
Montana to become a professional linebacker, but hasn't lost his passion 
for his home state. One component of MDT's influencer partnership with 
Troy is a video series focused on safe driving behaviors like always 
wearing a seat belt and not speeding. 

Cat vs. Griz: Student Athlete Influencers 

MDT also tapped two of Montana's own student athletes as safety 
influencers. Tommy Mellott, a football player from Montana State 
University (MSU), and Dani Bartsch, a basketball player from University of 
Montana (UM). Together, Tommy and Dani enjoy some friendly 
competition with a purpose in their video series for the Engage campaign. 
Despite their differences and competitive nature, there's one thing these 
athletes always agree on: safety behind the wheel! 

Engage and related campaign efforts continue to support the goal of 
Vision Zero—reaching zero deaths and zero serious injuries on Montana's 
roadways. For more information on MDT's Traffic Safety programs, visit 
https://www.mdt.mt.qovivisionzerot.

ENG/IGE 

Montana Wildlife 
Crossing Grant 
Applications Awarded 
Funding 

n December 5, 2023, the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) announced $110 million in grants for 19 
wildlife crossing projects across the country through the federa 
fiscal year (FFY) 2022-2023 grant selection process for the 
Wildlife Crossing Pilot Program (WCPP). MDT was among the 
applicants selected for funding, with an award of $424,242 for 
the I 90 Missoula to Garrison Wildlife Crossing Feasibility Study. 
This feasibility study will look at opportunities for installing 
wildlife crossings across 68 miles on I 90 between Missoula and 
Garrison. By identifying key wildlife migration corridors, the 
study will help MDT determine the need, type, and feasibility of 
constructing one or more wildlife crossings that will effectively 
accommodate both wildlife and motorists, and ultimately reduce 
the number of wildlife-vehicle collisions (WVCs). 

The Confederated Salish and Kootenai Tribes (CSKT) alsO 
submitted an application from Montana, with support from MDT, 
to fund the US 93: Ninepipe and Post Creek Program Wildlife 
Overcrossing Project. They were successfully awarded $8.59 
million for the project. 

Congratulations to MDT's Discretionary Grants team for 
their hard work on behalf of Montana to submit this successful 
application! Learn more about WCPP and other discretionary 
grant programs, including opportunities for support from MDT, at 
httos://www.mdt.mt.povibusinessidiscretionarydrants/.

Are You Ready to "Engage in Safety, Montana? 

In order to increase sate1:. on Our roadways, we reed e ery traveler to participare in Engage' Learn more 
about MDT's new campaign and chock out the safety videos from Andy the Aussie, Troy r\iiaCwr n and 
Montana s own student athletes, Tommy Mellott and Dam Bartsch by visiting https://www.enqaqe-mtorq/.

Which Engage series is riir favonte—Andy, Troy or Tommy vs Dani9 MDT 'kaki liPie your feedbaor, 1 Share 
,y our favorite safety messages with your friends and family on social media, and tag Lis (@m dot on Instaqram, 
(a/montanadot on Facebook) to show your commitment to 'Engage in safety on Montana's roadways. 

Federal Surface Transportation Program Status 

  The federal budget is a proposal by the President outlining spending goals and priorities during a given year. This funding 
r is presented to Congress for consideration before voting on whether to appropriate funding as proposed. Continuing resolu-

JUTS 411 tions are temporary spending bills that allow federal government operations to continue when final appropriations have not 
been approved by Congress and the President by the annual start of the federal fiscal year (FFY) on October 1st. Without 

final appropriations or a continuing resolution, there could be a lapse in funding that results in a federal government shutdown. Continuing 
resolutions generally continue the level of funding from the prior year's appropriations. A continuing resolution can include changes from the 
prior year's budget that could alter the rate at which funds are utilized, extend an expiring program's authority, or provide a specific dollar 
amount of funding to a program during the continuing resolution. There have been 48 continuing resolutions since October 2010; during 
which there have been three occasions when no continuing resolution was passed, resulting in a federal government shutdown. 



NEWSLINE SUBSCRIPTION 
UPDATES 

Did you know? The Newsline is availa-
I ble by both mail (print) and email (electronically). 

Please contact Lauren Eichenfels, Newsline Editor, 
Ito add or update your subscription preferences. 

By email: leichenfels@mt.gov 

By phone*: 406-444-7614 

*Please leave a voicemail with your full name, phone 
'number and mailing address for print subscriptions, 
I OR your name, phone number and the best time of 
iday to reach you to create or update your subscrip-

tion. 

I Moving? Change of address? Please let us 
know! We are happy to update your current mailing 

I address if you wish to continue receiving the 
I News/inc.. 

I NOTE: Due to state costs associated with printing and 
▪ mailing, all returned copies of the Newsline will be 
I removed from future mailings to that address and/or 
I contact. New subscriptions may be requested at any 

I 
time by contacting the Newsline Editor (see options 
above). We thank you in advance for your help in re-

, ducing waste and your assistance in providing up-
1 dates to your subscription information as they occur. 

Follow Us: 
@montanadot 

New Deputy Director 

Bringing decades of experience in 
transportation and public service, Larry Flynn 
was named MDT's Deputy Director on 
October 27, 2023. Larry first worked for the 
department as a survey aide in Livingston 
during a summer break while attending 
Montana State University (MSU) to receive a 
Bachelor's degree in Business 
Administration. He returned to MDT in 1994, 
where he has worked in a variety of roles 
and areas ever since, including Engineering, 
Planning, and even a stint as the acting 
Chief Information Officer (CIO) in MDT's 
Information Services Division (ISD). He has 
represented MDT at state legislative 
sessions and other activities since 1999. 
Since 2007, Larry served as MDT's Chief 
Financial Officer (CFO) in the Administration 
Division, before becoming acting Deputy 
Director until he was formally named to the 
executive leadership role this past fall. 

Fun Fact: Larry's commitment to excellence spans beyond his work 
life at MDT, and is demonstrated through his achievements in martial arts. 
He is a grandmaster in Taekwondo, a master in Hapkido, and a black belt 
in Judo. 

Join us in congratulating Larry and welcoming him to his new role! 

Applications for Montana Trails Grants Due 
January 15, 2024 

I program that awards about $1.5 million annually. Eligible activities include 
▪ construction or maintenance of motorized and non-motorized trails or trail I 
I -related facilities, purchase of trail equipment, and development of trail 

education or ethics programs. Find more information and resources to 
I assist with applying for this grant online: 

https://fwp.mt.qoviaboutfwo/arant-programs1recreational-trails. 

Recreational Trails Program (RTP): The RTP is a federally funded grant 

Lacy Flynn, MDT's Deputy 
Director 

Montana Fish, Wildlife & Parks (FWP) will accept applications for this 
I grant through January 15, 2024, via the online system: 
▪ https://fundinq.mt.qov/loqin.do 

I Trails Stewardship Program (TSP): The TSP is a state funded grant 
program through the passage of Senate Bill (SB) 24 in 2019 and the 

I collected tax revenue from recreational marijuana sales in Montana. The 
TSP has awarded about $3.6 million since establishment, funding over 

1100 trail access and improvement projects across the state. Eligible 
▪ activities fall under three project categories: new trail and shared-use path I 
I construction, rehabilitation and maintenance, and trailside and trailhead 

facilities construction. Find more information and resources to assist with 
I applying for this grant online: 

https://fwp.mt.ciov/aboutfwp/qrant-proprams/trail-stewardship

FWP will accept applications for this grant through January 15, 2024. 

©mtdot You /montanadot in 
e 
t —
o) 

Picturod above, left is a 
photo of slope and 
drainago improvements 
completed to-date on 
the Salmon Lake 
project. Learn more on 
page 4 of this issue. 

2 



Celebrating a Year of Success: 
A Message from Director Long 
A s 2023 winds down, it's a great opportunity to reflect on the work 

Team MDT has accomplished, thanks to both our internal talent and our 
external relationships. It is a privilege to continue to lead a department where 
we serve as stewards of Montana's transportation system. Safety is at the 
forefront of the work we do at MDT with our valued partners. 

In October, Team MDT hosted the Annual Transportation Safety Meeting 
in Helena. If you've missed the opportunity to join us and are engaged in 
safety in your community or job, I highly recommend attending next year's 
gathering! The innovation, passion and dedication centered around statewide 
transportation safety is evident. I continue to be inspired by the work being 
done at all levels — federal, state, tribal, and local — to keep Montana moving 
forward. This year's meeting was especially exciting for Team MDT, as we 
were able to share new programs, funding opportunities, resources, and 
behavioral campaign efforts. Notably, MDT's new traffic safety campaign 
"Engage" was shared, and our statewide safety partners were introduced to 
the campaign mascot Andy the Aussie, as well as influencer advertising with 
some of Montana's renowned athletes. I encourage you to check out our 
newly launched Engage website, and share Andy and our athlete videos with 
your community: https://wwvv.enqacte-mtorq/ (You can read more about 
this year's meeting on page 8.) 

Moving into a new year is also a great opportunity to share our gratitude 
for the valued relationships that have supported Team MDT and our important 
work. The 2023 legislative session kicked off many opportunities to support 
and improve Montana's transportation system and services. Examples of 
passed legislation we've put to work to support Montana's communities 
include funding from the SAFER Act and SB 536, as well as improved CDL 
training. Many thanks to our state legislature for the thoughtful bills and 
deliberations during the last session! We appreciate your service and look 
forward to continuing to work with you to move Montana forward. 

While the idea of "building" tends to focus on holiday themes at this time 
of year, the lifelong construction professional in me can't help but be excited 
about the planning and preparations taking place in Team MDT's "workshop." 
We are looking forward to another productive bidding and construction 
season in 2024. (You can read some project highlights from 2023, 
courtesy of our five Districts, on pages 4 and 5.) 

For Team MDT, we don't just serve the general traveling public. We're 
serving our families, friends, and neighbors, and we all take pride in bettering 
our communities. Just as I remind my family, please practice caution and 
remain committed to safety as you travel our great state this winter! You can 
prepare for current road conditions by using MDT's travel resources before 
venturing out. Once you're on the road, you can help our dedicated snowplow 
drivers by giving them the space and patience they need to do their jobs 
safely and efficiently. Remember: they're clearing the roads ahead to provide 
you and other travelers with safe passage. By always remaining vigilant about 
sober driving, seat belt use, safe speeds, and no distractions, we can look out 
for one another and do our part to ensure we all return home safe - this 
holiday season and beyond! 

On behalf of the many exceptional 
people that make up Team MDT, I extend 
our best wishes to you and yours this 
holiday season. We look forward to 
continuing to serve you and will keep 
Montana moving forward in 2024 through 
innovation, communication, and 
collaboration. 

Safe Travels and Happy New Year! 

Malcolm D. Long 

MDT's Wildlife 
Accommodations 
Process Awarded 
National Recognition 

Each year, the Research Advisory Committee 
(RAC) of the American Association of State Highway 
and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) asks state 
departments of transportation to identify and 
document recently completed "high-value" research 
projects. In May 2023, MDT nominated its 2018 
research project, Wildlife Accommodations Process, 
as High Value Research. The research project 
investigated how to evaluate and determine the 
feasibility of including wildlife accommodations in 
project development and incorporate these features 
into construction projects through a consistent, 
predictable, and well- documented recommendation 
and decision-making process. Wildlife 
accommodations are features designed into a 
transportation facility to moderate the effects of the 
infrastructure on wildlife and their habitat. MDT 
implemented the Wildlife Accommodations Process 
following the completion of the research project. 

AASHTO RAC voted to recognize MDT's Wildlife 
Accommodations Process as "High Value Research". 
Bill Semmens, Resource supervisor in MDT's 
Environmental Services Bureau, presented the project 
at a poster session at AASHTO RAC summer meeting 
in Chattanooga, Tennessee. As a High Value 
Research winner, it will again be presented in a poster 
session during the Transportation Research Board 
(TRB) Annual meeting held in Washington, D.C. in 
early January 2024. 

I Transit and Highway Traffic 
I Safety Grant Applications Due 

March 1,2024 

I Transit applications will only be accepted through 
the BlackCat Transit Data Management System: 
https://secure.blackcattransitcom/Loqin.aspx? 
site=mtdot 

Register in the system and apply when the 
I opportunity becomes available on January 1, 2024. 

I Highway Traffic Safety applications will only be 
accepted through the Montana Grant and Loans web 
-based system: 
https://funding.mt.gov/index.do 

I Register in the system and apply when the 
opportunity becomes available on January 1, 2024. 

For information regarding: 

Transit grants, contact Adam Kraft at 406-444-6120 
I or akraft@mt.gov. 

I Highway Traffic Safety grants, contact Kevin 
Dusko at 406-444-7411 or kedusko@mtgov. 

1 

3 



2023 Project Highlights and Progress 

Each year, winter's arrival in Montana signals an end to construction and road work until spring and warmer temperatures arrive. 
While "construction season" can bring challenges to summer and fall travel, warm weather provides a limited opportunity for crews to 

advance or complete these much needed improvements to our roadways, improvements that will provide for safer, more efficient travel and 
Montana's economic vitality for years to come. MDT and our construction partners would like to extend sincere thanks to our customers—
you, the traveling public of Montana. Thank you for your continued patience and support, and for helping make this another successful 
construction season. We look forward to 2024 and continuing to build better roadways for all of Montana. Learn more about the district 
projects featured in this issue, as well as other active and upcoming projects around the state, online: https://mdtmtgov/pubinvolvel 

Missoula District 

Project: Salmon Lake 

Background: MDT began reconstruction of about four miles of 
Montana Highway 83 (MT 83) along the east side of Salmon Lake in 
2023. Roadway safety improvements anticipated from the 
completion of the project include increased visibility, widening the 
highway to include paved shoulders, drainage improvements, 
installation of new signage and guardrail, and more. Once 
completed, the upgraded roadway will enhance safety for all users 
and will address issues like pavement condition along a route that is 
well-traveled by residents and visitors alike. MDT also used the 
Construction Manager/General Contractor (CM/GC) process to 
deliver this project. Learn more about this project at 
hitps://mdt.mt pov/pubinvolve/salmonlakel 

Bid: $35.9 million 
Contractor: Kiewit Infrastructure Company 
Status: Tree clearing in the project area was completed in August 
2022, and construction started in 2023, with final construction 
activities expected to be complete in 2024. 

Photos show 
construction activities 
on the project during 
the 2023 season. 

MDT's Active Projects Map 
Enjoy access to statewide project information at your fingertips with MDT's Active 

Projects Map. Scan the OR code to the right using your mobile device to access the 
mobile-friendly map, or visit https://mdt.mt.qov/pubinvolve/active-projects.aspx. 

Butte District 

Project: SF 139- Racetrack Bridge Removal 

Background: Located on Interstate 90 ( I 90), the 
Racetrack Bridge Removal safety project was a total 
roadway reconstruction that included the removal of two 
400-foot-long bridges that spanned the abandoned 
railroad tracks south of Deer Lodge. The elevation of the 
interstate lanes was lowered by approximately 20 feet 
and the steep slopes were flattened out to improve 
safety. In addition to the significant safety improvements 
that this project provides, the removal of the structures 
will reduce future bridge maintenance costs for the 
department. Learn more about this project at https:// 
wwvv.mdt.mtgov/pubinvolvefracetrackbridge 

Bid: $8.4 million 
Contractor: Schell inger Construction 
Status: Construction on this project is substantially complete, as of 
November 2023. Crews will return in 2024 for seal and cover (chip 
seal) operations and to apply final striping. 

Photos from the 
project camera 
show completed 
improvements that 
will enhance safety 
for all travelers, 
including 
commercial vehicle 
traffic, along this 
stretch of I 90. 

4 



2023 Project Highlights and Progress (cont.) 
Great Falls District 

Project: Wolf Creek North & South (N&S) 

Background: The Wolf Creek N&S project will remove and replace 
the top 2 feet of roadway material on Interstate 15 (115). This 
stretch of 115 through the canyon requires more MDT maintenance 
funds and resources because the harsh climate has degraded the 
foundation of the roadway overtime. A new, modernized roadway 
design will improve drainage, which will diminish the seasonal 
damage and substantially reduce maintenance costs. New, up-to-
date metal and concrete guardrail and signage will be 
included. This project provides a future commitment that Montana 
will continue to deliver public goods and services safely and 
seamlessly. Learn more about this project at https:// 
www.mamtgov/pubinvolvefil5wolfcreekl 

Glendive District 

Project: US 2 - Culbertson 

Background: This project reconstructed approximately one mile 
of US Highway 2 (US 2) through the town of Culbertson. Project 
features include Portland Cement Concrete Pavement, curb and 
gutter, storm drain, sidewalk, shared-use path, new signage, and 
an overlay of the Rest Area and Scale Site. This project aims to 
accommodate future traffic increases and heavy truck travel, 
manage runoff and improve storm drainage, enhance safety 
features, and extend the service life of the roadway. 
Learn more about this project at https://www.mdtmtgov/ 
pubinvolve/us2culbertsoni 

Bid: $18.7 million 
Contractor: Knife River Corporation - North Central 
Status: This project was substantially completed in 2023. 
Remaining work will be completed in 2024. 

Photos show 
construction 
progress from the 
beginning of the 
project (left) to its 
substantial 
completion (below) 
in late 2023. 

Bid: $39.2 million 
Contractor: Riverside Contracting, Inc. 
Status: This project is expected to be completed in 2025. 

Photo shows traffic moving through the construction zone on 115 

Billings District 

Project: I 90 Yellowstone River - Billings 

Background: Located within the urban limits of Billings, this project 
will widen and reconstruct Interstate 90 (I 90) in Billings between tie 
North 27th Street Interchange and the Lockwood Interchange from 
two lanes to three lanes. This project includes reconstruction of tha 
1,000-foot-long bridges over the Yellowstone River and the Talen 
Energy railroad spur line. The existing roadway and bridges were 
originally constructed in the 1960s. Other project improvements 
include fencing, curb and sidewalk, drainage, guardrail, rumble str PS, 
and more. Learn more about this project at https:// 
wwvv.mdt.mtoov/pubinvolvel190ye11owstonel. 

Bid: $72.2 million 
Contractor: Sletten Construction 
Status: This project is currently active. Work began in the fall of 
2021. The westbound lanes and bridge were completed in 2022. 
The eastbound lanes and bridge were completed in 2023. The 
project is nearing completion. The seal & cover will be completed 
summer 2025. 

Photos from the 
project camera show 
construction progress 
on improvements to 
the bridges and 
interstate. 

5 



r --# 12ki---1 Get Home Safe 
VISION ZERO for the Holidays 

L\Nese--I —Drive Sober 
and Buckle Up 

The holidays are a time for many people to celebrate with family 
and friends, and whether it is just across town or the state, the months 
of November through December are a busy time for travel. The holiday 
season 4s also known for being a deadly season when it comes to 
impaired driving. 

According to the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 
(NHTSA), during the December months from 2017-2021, there were 
more than 4,500 people killed in alcohol-impaired-driving crashes. In 
December 2021 alone, 1,013 people died in alcohol-impaired-driving 
crashes. 

Over the last ten years in Montana (2011-2020), 28% of the crash 
fatalities during the winter holiday period (December 15 through 
January 3) involved a driver with a blood alcohol content (BAC) above 
0.079. 

As part of the statewide, year-round effort to curb impaired driving, 
MDT supports law enforcement with grants to increase patrols as part 
of the Safety Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP). The Montana 
Highway Patrol (MHP) and local law enforcement will be participating in 
mobilization patrols from Thanksgiving through Christmas and into the 
New Year to keep Montana's roads free of impaired drivers and to 
encourage all drivers to buckle up and to drive sober or find a sober 
ride as they celebrate the season. (See call out box at the top of 
page 7...) 

You can do your part to ensure a safe and happy holiday. If you 
are hosting a celebration, serve alcohol responsibly and make sure 
your guests have safe, sober transportation home or a place to stay for 
the evening. As a party guest, it's also your responsibility to plan ahead 
if you'll be drinking. Whether it's a designated driver, calling a cab, 
using a ride service or staying with a friend for the night, be safe and 
remind your friends and family to do the same. If you see or suspect 
drunk driving on the road, call 911. 

And remember, the best defense against a drunk driver is wearing 
a seat belt — everyone, every trip, every time; there is no good excuse 
not to. 

MDT encourages drivers to drive sober, buckle up and avoid 
unsafe behaviors this holiday season and every day of the year and to 
make Vision Zero their goal. For more information, please visit: 
www.mdt.mt.govIvisionzerol 

Super Bowl 2024: Make a 
Sober Ride Your Game Plan! 

Super Bowl weekend (Sunday February 11, 2024) is filled with 
food, fun and friends. If your celebration involves alcohol, remember 
even one drink can impair judgement. Make sure your pre-game plan 
includes arranging for sober transportation. If you're hosting a party, 
remind guests to have sober transportation arranged before they arrive 
or be prepared to take the keys from those who shouldn't be driving. 
We want to remind everyone that "Fans Don't Let Fans Drive Drunk." 

If you see or suspect that someone is driving impaired, please 
assist law enforcement by calling 911 to report the driver and always 
buckle up. 

You lose big time if you choose to get behind the wheel impaired, 
you risk your life and the lives of others on the road. Remember: If you 
drive drunk, you may lose money, your reputation, your car, and even 
your life. Enforcement for impaired driving is a focus area of Vision 
Zero, and increased patrols are funded by MDT. 

BRIO RNO DRIVE RNO YOU'LL SEE MORE THRN 

111.11-111UllY Liunin, 

Aso. 

DRIVE SOBER OR 
GET PULLED OVER 

rfliElE1 
NHTSA 

Is Safe Driving Your Game Plan, Montana? 

Professional linebacker Troy Andersen is stepping up his game 
to make Montana's roads safe for all. You can watch Tray's 
safety messages to Montanans on MOT's new Engage 
campaign website: https://www.enqaqe-mt. orq/ 

6 



Montana Traffic Safety Dates 

December 16, 2023—January 1, 2024* 

Winter Holiday Drive Sober Enforcement 

February 11,2024 

Super Bowl LVIII—Fans Don't Let Fans Drive Drunk 

March 14-17, 2024* 

St. Patrick's Day—Drive Sober or Get Pulled Over 

April 15-19, 2024 

National Work Zone Awareness Week (NWZAW) 

May 1-31,2024 

Motorcycle Safety Awareness Month 

May 8, 2024 

National Bike & Roll to School Day: 
www.walkbiketoschooLord/ 

May 13-June 2, 2024* 

Click It or Ticket Law Enforcement Seat Belt Mobilization 

*Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) 
Mobilization Periods: For more information, contact 
Spencer Harris at 406-444-0856 or sharris@mt.gov. 

Montana Completes First 
VRU Safety Assessment 

The Infrastructure 
Investment and Job Act 
(IIJA) enacted on 
November 15, 2021, MONTANA VULNERABLE 
requires all states to ROAD USER SAFETY 
complete a vulnerable ASSESSMENT 
road user safety 
assessment on the 
safety performance of 
the State with respect to 
vulnerable road 
users. Vulnerable road 
users (VRU) are defined 
as a non-motorist with a NHTSA Fatality Analysis Reporting System 
(EARS) code attribute of a pedestrian, bicyclist, other cyclist, a 
person on a personal conveyance or an injured person. A VRU 
includes people walking, bicycling, or rolling; and a highway worker 
on foot in a work zone; but does not include a motorcyclist. 

Per the guidance of the FHWA, MDT developed Montana's 
Vulnerable Road User Safety Assessment (VRU SA). The purpose of 
the VRU SA is to identify and develop strategies to reduce VRU 
fatalities and serious injuries in areas identified as 
disadvantaged. Data analysis of VRU fatalities and serious injuries 
and contributing factors informed the identification of strategies and 
countermeasures to reduce risks. Addressing VRU safety issues 
through a coordinated and collaborative approach allows people that 
walk, bicycle, or roll full and safe access to the transportation system. 

The Montana VRU SA will be included as an addendum to the 
State's strategic highway safety plan, known as the Comprehensive 
Highway Safety Plan (CHSP). The final VRU SA can be found online: 
https://www.mamteovivisionzero/plansivrusa.aspx 

For more information, please contact Pam Langve-Davis, CHSP 
Manager, at 406-444-7646 or plangvedavis@mt.gov. 

OCTOBER 27. 0023 

Safety Tips for Winter 
Walking in Montana 

Montana's climate, large geographic area, and rugged 
terrain create unique challenges to getting around. Whether 
you choose to move by motor vehicle, bicycle, or on foot, 
safety should always be your top priority. 

Walking during winter can be economical, sustainable, 
and environmentally friendly. Here are some essential walking 
tips to help you navigate Montana's winter landscape securely 
while enjoying the beauty of the season. 

Before heading out, check the weather conditions as 
severe weather might mean changing plans. Local National 
Weather Service (NWS) weather radio stations or 
www.weather.dov can alert to conditions and possible storms. 

Dressing in layers is key to staying warm and dry. Start 
with a light, moisture-wicking fabric close to your skin, add an 
insulating layer like fleece or wool, and top it off with a 
waterproof or water-resistant outer layer to shield yourself from 
wind, rain, and snow. Ensure your footwear is both waterproof 
and insulated to keep your feet warm and dry. Pull on ice 
grippers stretched over the sole can provide additional traction 
when needed. 

Pedestrians can mitigate low-light conditions making 
themselves as visible to motorists as possible. Low visibility at 
dawn, dusk, or night can reduce a driver's ability to see 
pedestrians. Be prepared by carrying a flashlight and wearing 
reflective materials or high-visibility colors, such as 
fluorescents or bright white. 

While walking, avoid distractions like mobile devices and 
stay focused on your surroundings. Keeping your hands out of 
your pockets allows you to restore balance if you start to slip. 
Take small, careful steps, and be aware of your environment to 
prevent accidents. 

Walking is a healthy mode of transportation and a fantastic 
way to immerse yourself in Montana's winter wonderland. By 
preparing adequately and following these safety tips, you can 
enjoy the crisp winter air and the scenic beauty of Montana 
while reaching your destination comfortably and securely. 

Pedestrian travel offers a unique opportunity to experience 
the charm of Montana all year round. Stay safe, stay prepared, 
and make the most of your winter journeys while exploring the 
beauty of our great state. For additional pedestrian safety 
resources, visit https://www.mdt.mt.govitravinfo/bikepedi 
Safe travels, Montana! 

Winter is a breathtaking season to enjoy on foot in Montana. Stay 
safe with a little preparation—such as proper footwear—before you 
venture out. 

7 



2023 Annual Transportation Safety 
Meeting 

Nearly 115 people attended the 16th Annual Transportation 
Safety meeting on October 4 and 5, 2023, hosted by MDT in 
Helena. Attendees included representatives from safety planning 
and engineering, educators, enforcement, emergency and medical 
services, fire department, tow operators, behavior and injury 
specialist, Buckle Up MT coalitions, DUI task forces, and media 
consultants, among other safety partners and stakeholders. 

Rob Stapley, MDT's Rail, Transit and Planning Division 
Administrator, facilitated the meeting focusing on the importance of 
Vision Zero safety effort collaboration, coordination, and 
communication among all safety partners. 

The preliminary CHSP Interim Goal 
2022 crash data 
reflects 218 fatalities 
and 716 serious 
injuries which is a 
decrease from the 
previous two years. 
We are making 
progress on the CHSP 
interim goal which is 
to halve fatalities and 
serious injuries from 
1,704 in 2007 to 852 
by 2030. In 2022, Montana experienced 934 fatalities and serious 
injuries on our roadways. 

Montana's federal partners, the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA), the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration (NHTSA), and the Federal Motor Carrier Safety 
Administration (FMCSA) acknowledged the work of Montana 
safety partners to implement proactive strategies, focusing on 
problem areas, implementing safety strategies and 
countermeasures, coordinating with local and tribal communities, 
positive messaging, education and awareness programs, and 
enforcement operating around large vehicles. 

Montana Department of Justice staff with the Forensic 
Science Division and the Montana Highway Patrol (MHP) spoke on 

9.404. 

O.. Malin 11.....1•••••81•40.44.1., 

111110Hil 

In Memory 
of our friend 
and coworker 

the impacts of 
polysubstance use 
when driving. The 
percentage of total 
positive THC in DUI 
cases increased from 2017 to 2022 by 155%.The percent of total 
positive Fentanyl DUI cases increased from 2017 to 2022 by 
4000%. 

Emergency responder representatives shared improvements 
on post-crash care patient outcomes and data quality and linking 
EMS and other data registries like, law enforcement data, hospital, 
and fatality data. Traffic Incident Management trainer encouraged 
everyone to remind the traveling public to "Slow Down and Move 
Over" when they see flashing lights and end the deaths of 
responders on scene. 

The MDT-managed NHTSA programs shared seat belt and 
impaired driving education and awareness activities conducted 
throughout the year. A reminder that occupant protection and law 
enforcement mini grants opportunities are available throughout the 
year was shared with attendees. More information can be found at 
https://www.mdt.mt.gov/visionzerolgrants/. Additionally, the 
new traffic safety media campaign "Engage Montana" was 
introduced to attendees. (Read more about Engage on page 1.) 

Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) provided an 
overview of infrastructure related safety projects are data driven 
and a strategic approach of benefit cost analysis is used to 
prioritize projects as safety needs far exceed available funding. 
There is the traditional method of network screening and the 
proactive approach that reviews requests and systemic application 
of federally proven safety countermeasures (i.e. delineation, 
centerline rumble strips, flashing yellow arrows, etc.) 

For more information on the CHSP or the emphasis area 
safety efforts please contact Pam Langve-Davis at 406-444-7646 
or plangvedavis@mt.gov, or visit the Vision Zero CHSP website at 
https://www.mdt.mt.gov/visionzero/plans/chsp.aspx.

Presentations from the 2023 meeting can be found at https:// 
www.mdt.mt.gov/visionzero/plans/chsp-meetings.aspx. 

flT i 
VISION ZERO 

Jeff Dyekman Honored by 
Glendive Community on 5th 
Anniversary of Fatal Work 
Zone Crash 

n October 24, 2018, one of MDT's own, Jeff Dyekman, was 
tragically lost when a vehicle crashed into a construction zone on 
Interstate 90 (I 90) near Billings. To honor Jeff s life and remind 
travelers about the importance of work zone safety, MDT's 
Glendive District and Love Like Justice Company worked together 
to raise funds to light up the historic Bell Street Bridge in Glendive 
on October 24, 2023. 

As you travel through Montana's work zones, please remember that loved ones, coworkers and members of our communities call 
the "cone zone" their work place. We can honor Jeffs life and service to Montana by slowing down, staying focused and alert, and 
watching for the dedicated Montanans working to keep travelers moving forward safely and efficiently in our work zones statewide. 

Find more work zone safety information at https://www.mdt.mt.gov/visionzerolpeople/workzones.aspx. For photos from the 
bridge lighting and to learn more about this community organization, check out https://www.facebook.com/lovelikelustice. 

8 



Don't Crowd the Plow! 

While driving, be on the 
lookout for snowplows 

and give the operators room to 
work. Many plows are hit by private 
vehicles each winter. This can 
cause serious harm to travelers 
and their vehicles, plus the plow 
truck and plow operator are taken 
out of service immediately following 
the incident. Drive safely this winter 
and keep these tips in mind: 

• Don't crowd the plow. Plow 
drivers have limited visibility, 
so never assume your vehicle 
is in their view. When 
approaching an oncoming 
plow, don't crowd the 
centerline of the road so they 
have space to safely pass in 
their travel lane. 

Stay safe this winter—slow down and 
give snowplows plenty of space to clear 
Montana's roads for travel! 

• Maintain a safe distance behind the snowplow. Plows do more 
than just remove snow! They may also be spreading sand or deicer 
on the road, so give them plenty of space to do the work needed to 
clear roads for travel. 

• Be patient, and never pass a plow in a white out. The plow driver 
will pull over when it is safe to do so, allowing vehicles to pass. 
When you do pass a plow, slow down and prepare for the road 
conditions ahead. The road in front of the plow is likely not as clear 
as the road behind it. 

• Slow down. Plows are large vehicles—particularly MDT's TowPlow 
configurations—and move slower than highway speeds. Due to their 
size, speed and winter weather, it is often difficult to judge distance 
when approaching the plow, so motorists should slow down 
immediately when approaching a plow from the rear to stay back a 
safe distance. 

• Be aware that, where there is one plow working, others may be 
nearby. The snow cloud created by one plow may obscure 
presence of additional plows in adjacent lanes. 

Find more plow safety information and winter driving tips at 
https://mamt. povIvisionzero/peopletwinterdrivinmaspx. 

Pictured above is a construction photo from the 
90 Yellowstone FNer - Bp'llngs project. and 

bolos' is an aortal photo of the Wolf Creek N&S 
project area Learn more about these and other 
MDT projects in the annual District highlights 
section on pages 4 and 5 or this issue.

Team MDT Honored with Governor's Awards for 
Excellence in Performance 

0 n October 10, 2023, three groups of MDT staff were honored at the annual Governor's Awards for Excellence in Performance 
ceremony in Helena. Pictured below with Governor Gianforte, from left to right, are the Billings Airport team (Brian Wohlk, Eldon 
Sindelar), Jordan Flood team (Darrell Higgins, Ty Gibson, Kevin Murnion), and the Maintenance Review team (Matt Steveson, Jason 
Allen, Jeremy Ward, Mark Criner). Congratulations to these dedicated members of Team MDT for the well-deserved recognition! 

9 



New Leadership at 
Montana's Western 
Transportation Institute 

Montana's 
Western Transportation 
Institute (WTI) has a 
new executive director. 
Dr. Kelvin Wang 
accepted the position 
effective August 1, 
2023, and relocated to 
Montana from 
Oklahoma to live in 
Bozeman. WTI is 
affiliated with Montana 
State University (MSU). 

Dr. Wang has been 
active in transportation 
research for over 30 
years. His career began 
as a highway engineer 
for the Arizona Department of Transportation where he 
worked for four years. From Arizona, he became a professor 
at the University of Arkansas. After 18 years, Dr. Wang 
moved to Oklahoma where he became an endowed 
professor at Oklahoma State University. In 2017 Wang 
received the prestigious Francis C. Turner Award from the 
American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE), and he was 
named a distinguished member of ASCE in 2021. 

Dr. Wang fills the position previously held by David 
Kack. David is still with WTI as the Program Manager for the 
Mobility & Public Transportation group and as the Director of 
the Small Urban, Rural and Tribal Center on Mobility 
(SURTCOM). MDT enjoyed working with David as the WTI 
Director from 2019 through 2023 and would like to thank him 
for his time and service in that capacity. 

VVTI's new Executive Director Dr. Kelvin 
Wang (left) and David Kack (right) in 
Bozeman Montana. 

#KnowBeforeYouGo with 
MDT's Traveler Information 
Application 

Winter has 
arrived in 

Montana, and MDT 
has tools to help plan 
for conditions so you 
can reach your 
destination safely — 
MDTs traveler 
information system 
(MDT 511) and 
mobile applications. 

The website can 
be found at 
www.511mtnet.
Mobile apps for Android and iOS can be found in the respective app 
stores. By default, three information layers (Road Conditions, 
Incidents & Events, and Road Weather Information System (RWIS) 
Cameras/Weather Information) are enabled on the app for first-time 
users, but you can toggle them on or off using the setting toggles 
located at the upper right corner of the map. If you find you don't like 
the map-style navigation, you can use searchable lists at the top of 
the page. 

Safety is a top priority for MDT, and these features and custom 
updates will allow all travelers to be better prepared for delays or 
incidents so they can plan their trip 
accordingly. 

To access the MDT Traveler 
Information application —including the 
interactive map and information on 
downloading the mobile app—scan the 
QR Code to the right with your mobile 
device, or visit vvww.mdtantalov/ 
travinfol. Travelers can also call 511 
from anywhere in Montana. 

Changes to MDT Travel Resources in 2023... 

MDT Travel Alerts No Longer Available on X (Twitter): X has changed the way they dc business. Our 511 vendor can no longer to 
attlunt'.ttcatly feed Mont ma's 511 ttrdates threirjh 0ecall', (-• we have not been able TO update our feed since July, and we have only 
been acing X for our at 'eakIted load condit ions updates. we decided to stop using X for the time being. The traveling pubht, an sign up for 
personalized email al I , 't -d- alerts for any routes they choose through the 51 1 application or webpage. 

New Roadway Camera Application: MDT has a new Road ‘leather Information System (RWIS) replacing Scaa\Neb, which has reacneo 
end of life. The new ape! ration Is ennanced er mobile users and proYides current/historical data, image looping and higher resolution 
roadway images. Check it out at https:ilapp.mdtmt. gov/atins, 

Find Contact Information for Montana's Transportation Commission and Aeronautics Board 
Online! 

Each of the five Montana Transportation Commission Board Members and each of the nine Montana Aeronautics Board 
Members are appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the Senate. Board members remain in their position until a 

replacement is appointed and confirmed. (MCA 2-15-2502; 2-15-2506) 

> Transportation Commission: For additional information and appointed board member contacts, visit 
https://wuvw.mdt.mtoovInubinvolveltrans-commi 

> Aeronautics Board: For additional information and appointed board member contacts, visit 
https://www.mdttagov/pubinvolvelaeronautics-boardt 

10 



Harding Way 

With the dawn of the automobile age, a good road over 
Pipestone Pass took on new significance to the people of Butte. A 
wagon road had existed over the pass since at least the 1870s, but it 
was barely passable for automobiles by the early twentieth century. 
The old road was a challenge to motorists. One observer described 
driving the road as feeling "akin to sliding off the roof of a high peaked 
building." The treacherous road was the most dangerous section of the 
Yellowstone Trail. Motorists after crossing the pass from the east 
initially found the descent a relatively easy six percent. But it soon 
increased to twenty percent. A car's speed swelled to the point where it 
didn't allow stopping or changing gears — a driver was dependent on 
brakes alone and prayed they would hold. The curves, lack of 
guardrails and other dangers associated with the primitive mountain 
road made, what was called in Butte Eighteen-Mile Hill, perilous in all 
conditions. The county had little money available to improve the road. 

The passage of the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1921 made 
federal funds available to the state and Silver Bow County for road 
improvements on a 50/50 match basis. In April 1921, state highway 
commission chairman George Lanstrum announced a project to 
improve Eighteen-Mile Hill. He intended the project to reduce many of 
the road's steep grades and install guardrails to prevent motorists from 
hurtling over the edge of the roadway. The Silver Bow County 
commissioners agreed to pay half the cost of the project. 

After resolving a labor issue over wage rates, the county and 
highway commissioners awarded a contract to the HeiseIt Construction 
Company of Salt Lake City in August 1921 to construct 2.43-miles of 
roadway on the Silver Bow County side of Pipestone Pass. The project 
included extensive blasting of Boulder batholith granite to make way 
for a modern highway. While the contractor used a steam shovel for 
the project, HeiseIt relied mostly on pick and shovel work provided by 
Butte miners, who were on strike against the Anaconda Company. 
They built stone retaining walls and installed thirteen sections of heavy 
log guardrails between the edge of the road and the precipice. The 
contractor surfaced the new road in decomposed granite, a material 
found in abundance on the pass. Despite pushing his work crews hard, 
HeiseIt didn't complete the project by the commission's deadline. He 
wouldn't finish the project until July of 1922. 

Even before the highway opened for traffic, the county 
commissioners and local civic groups made plans to name the newly 
improved scenic highway. Technically a part of the Yellowstone Trail, 
Butte and county leaders wanted to customize the highway to draw 
more traffic to it. "[After] what is alleged to have been a nerve-
wrecking, sleep-banishing struggle with a long list of proposed 
designations," they named the new highway Harding Way, after US 
President Warren G. Harding. The president pronounced himself 
pleased with the honor in a letter to the county commissioners. 

From the beginning, many in Butte perceived Harding Way as 
more than just a connection between the city and Whitehall. They 
envisioned the road as a scenic gateway to the Mining City. The 
highway bisected Thompson Park, a 3,300-acre municipal park 
dedicated to the city by mining engineer William Boyce Thompson in 
1915 and expanded by the Beaverhead-Deerlodge National Forest in 
1922. The park included hiking trails, scenic roads, and other facilities 
to provide Butte citizens with a pastoral escape from what some 
considered the ugliest city in the United States. 

To enrich the motoring experience, the Butte Kiwanis Club built an 
architect-designed concrete spring-fed fountain on the switchback 
section of the highway in 1927. The fountain still stands next to the 
highway, but is no longer functional. The Columbine Division of the 
Rocky Mountain Garden Club later landscaped the site. 

By Jon Axline, MDT Historian 

Traffic on Harding Way steadily increased in the late 1920s. In 
October 1929, the highway commission programmed a project to 
reconstruct dangerous curves on the roadway. In February 1930, the 
highway commission awarded a project to Butte contractor Leo Lawler 
to regrade, widen, and straighten 2.25 miles of Harding Way. The year 
following this project, the Bureau of Public Roads improved the road 
within the Beaverhead-Deerlodge National Forest. In the following 
years, the highway commission let contracts to improve the route from 
the Jefferson County line to Whitehall and from the Butte city limits to 
connect with the earlier projects in Silver Bow County. By 1935, 
Harding Way had reached its current 24-foot width and alignment. 

Other than routine maintenance and guardrail replacement, there 
have been no substantial changes to the highway since the last 
construction project in 1935. When the highway department completed 
Interstate 90 (I 90) over Homestake Pass in 1966, the primary highway 
route over the continental divide east of Butte shifted from Pipestone to 
Homestake. The highway retained its title of US Highway 10-South 
until 1987, when the highway commission redesignated it Montana 
Highway 2. The highway today provides motorists with a taste of what 
highways were like in the early twentieth century. One constant 
between the highway in 1935 and today is the need to keep both eyes 
on the road and both hands on the steering wheel. 

A feature unique to Harding Way is the presence of 
advertisements painted on granite boulders at the summit of the pass. 
There are seven rock-painted billboards next to the highway. An 
unknown Butte sign painter painted the signs sometime between 1931 
and 1934. All advertise businesses in Butte at the time. One, however, 
has a connection to a dark chapter in Butte's history. Taxi driver Alex 
Loiselle has two advertisements painted on granite boulders on the 
pass. He operated a taxi service in the Mining City from 1921 until his 
death in a tragic car accident in 1936. In 1917, Loiselle owned one of 
the few Cadillacs in Butte and hired himself out as a chauffeur. On 
August 1 of that year several men kidnapped radical labor organizer 
Frank Little from his boarding house in uptown Butte. The kidnappers 
severely beat Little before hanging him from a railroad trestle on the 
outskirts of the city. The kidnappers drove a Cadillac and, according to 
one oral history, Loiselle was the driver of the car. 

This photo shows a granite landscape feature that the highway was built 
around, and it still stands as an impressive, scenic landmark for travelers 
today. 

11 



Alternative accessible formats of this document will be provided on request. Persons who need an alternative format should contact the Of-
fice of Civil Rights, Montana Department of Transportation, 2701 Prospect Avenue, PO Box 201001, Helena, MT 59620. Telephone 406-
444-5416 or Montana Relay Service at 711. 

MDT Wants Your Comments on New Projects 

To receive a list of highway projects MDT plans to present to the 
Transportation Commission, please visit 
vvww.mamtqovlotherlwebdatatexternal/planning/proposed proLpdf, 
www.tridt.mtmov/Dubinvolveistiaaspx or call (800) 714-7296. You 
can mail comments on proposed projects to MDT Project Analysis 
Manager, PO Box 201001, Helena, MT 59620-1001 or email them 
to mdtstip@mt.gov. 

Inside This Issue 

MDT Launches Website for Engage Campaign 1 
Wildlife Crossing Grant Applications Awarded Funding  1 
Federal Surface Transportation Program Status 1 
New Deputy Director 2 
Applications for Trail Grants Due January 15 2 
Message from the Director 3 
Transit/Highway Safety Grant Applications Due March 1 3 
MDT's Wildlife Accommodations Process Recognized 3 
2023 Project Highlights (by MDT District) 4,5 
Get Home Safe for the Holidays 6 
Plan a Sober Ride for Super Bowl 2024 6 
Montana Traffic Safety Dates 7 
Montana VRU Safety Assessment  7 
Safety Tips for Winter Walking 7 
2023 Annual Transportation Safety Meeting 8 
Jeff Dyekman Honored in Glendive 8 
Don't Crowd the Plow 9 
Team MDT Honored with Governor's Awards 9 
New Leadership at Montana's WTI 10 
MDT Travel Resources/Updates for 2023 10 
Harding Way 11 
INSERT—Local Assistance Brochure 

Contact Information 

Only the most frequently requested numbers are listed here. For 
an area or person not listed, call 800-714-7296 (in Montana only) 
or 406-444-3423. The TTY number is 800-335-7592. 
Newsline Editor-Lauren Eichenfels (leichenfels@mt.gov).... 
 406-444-7614 

Planning Division Administrator-Rob Stapley (rostapley@mt.gov) 
 406-444-3445 

Bike/Ped-Shelby Clark (mdtbikeped@mt.gov) 406-444-9273 

Environmental-Tom Martin (tomartin@mt.gov) 406-444-0879 

Highway Traffic Safety-Kevin Dusko (kedusko@mt.gov) 
 406-444-7417 

Map Orders-www.mdfintoovIpublications/maps.aspx 
 406-444-6119 

Multimodal Planning-Carol Strizich (cstrizich@mt gov) 
 406-444-9240 

System Impact-LeRoy Wosoba (Iwosoba@mt.gov) 
 406-444-9233 

Projects-Paul Johnson (paujohnson@mt.gov)  406-444-7259 

Road Data & Mapping-Brian Andersen (brandersen@mt.gov) 

 406-444-6111 

Secondary Roads-Andy White (awhite@mt.gov)  406-444-9194 

Traffic Data-Becky Duke (bduke@mt.gov) 406-444-6122 

Transit-Adam Kraft (akraft@mt.gov) 406-444-6120 

This document printed at state expense. Information on the cost of publication may be obtained by contacting the Department of Administration. 

uolle!..iodsueii jo jueuipedea eueluopv `uo!smia 5u!uuelc! pue j!suaii Wee! ow Jo uageolignd Apepenb e Si euysmeN 

.pien/uol eueluon anow o aimonilseilui uollepodsumilua!!!sai pue ajes e uieluiew pue 'meiedo punq 'uerl O s! uo!ss!iu slat/NJ 

68 ON l!wied 

_LIN 'eueleH 

alVd 

obelsOd 'S'n 

puepueisl-loS aid 

*uoppodsualijoluewlaudea 

VNITINOW 

paisenbaH eovues wriTelj 

1,001.-0Z969 euewon `e1.1919H 
1.001,0Z xoe Od 

enueny padswd [OLZ 

uonepodsuwi jo wewpedea eue;uogi 
uo!syqa Bu!uueld 150 



Transportation Assistance for Montana Communities - 2023 

Montana's local governments face numerous challenges in improving and maintaining their transportation infrastructure and 
services. Transportation needs outpace available funding at all levels. MDT administers many funding and planning 
programs that help local governments address their local transportation needs. Following are some MDT-administered 
programs that support local projects: 

Planning and Technical Assistance Information and Education 

Systems Impact Analysis Process (SIAP) - MDT's SIAP 
ensures a coordinated review of major developments and 
local projects initiated outside of MDT that may 
significantly and permanently impact the state 
transportation system. MDT coordinates development 
reviews with Montana's local governments to ensure their 
concerns are addressed and provides technical 
assistance to local governments interested in developing 
local processes similar to SIAP. For more information, 
phone 406-444-9233. 

Multimodal Transportation Plans — Outside of Billings, 
Great Falls, and Missoula, there are no federal or state 
requirements for transportation plans. MDT provides 
financial and technical support for transportation planning 
in other Montana communities, including some of our 
fastest growing cities. These cooperative planning efforts 
ensure consistency with other community plans and 
processes. The plans help identify deficiencies, needs, 
and funding to ensure an efficient, safe, and modem 
transportation system. For more information, phone 406-
444-9238. 

Travel Demand Forecasting - MDT develops and 
maintains state-of-the-art computer models in Montana's 
larger communities to forecast future travel demand and 
analyze alternative transportation improvements to 
accommodate existing and future demand. MDT works 
with cities, counties, and other government agencies in 
the development of these models, which help inform 
decisions about future transportation network needs. For 
more information, phone 406-444-9193. 

Corridor Planning Studies - MDT provides financial and 
technical support for the development of corridor planning 
studies. The goal of these studies is to better scope 
projects before moving into the project development 
process, achieve the lowest level environmental document 
while minimizing project delivery costs and time, and 
provide early opportunities for public and resource agency 
participation. For more information, phone 406-444-9238. 

Safety Planning - This MDT program provides technical 
and financial assistance to local governments for the 
development of Community Transportation Safety Plans. 
Through a coordinated process, safety stakeholders and 
agencies identify the specific transportation safety issues 
in a community, develop strategies to address those 
issues, and determine the responsible agency/individual to 
monitor implementation of each strategy. Participating 
communities must demonstrate a commitment to 
implement and monitor progress. For more information, 
phone 406-444-7646. 

Research Programs - MDT conducts research to 
discover, develop, and extend knowledge needed to 
operate, maintain, and improve Montana's multimodal 
transportation system. Interested parties can propose 
research topics by March 31 of each year through MDT's 
annual solicitation process. More information can be found 
at mdt.mt.gov/research/unique/solicit.aspx, or by phoning 
406-444-7203. 

State Highway Traffic Safety Programs - These 
programs provide funds to eligible applicants to promote 
the use of occupant restraints and prevent impaired 
driving. For more information, phone 406-444-7417 or visit 
mdt.mt.gov/visionzero/plans/safetyprg.aspx. 

Bicyclist and Pedestrian - MDT's Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Coordinator serves as MDT's liaison to internal and 
external bicycle and pedestrian interests. The coordinator 
provides input and technical support related to the 
development of bicycle and pedestrian facilities and plans. 
The Bicycle and Pedestrian Program is a clearinghouse 
for bicycle and pedestrian safety and educational 
resources. For more information, phone 406-444-9273. 

Data Collection and Management/GIS 
MDT collects and maintains information about Montana's 
transportation system. Available to government entities 
and the public, this information includes a comprehensive 
location inventory of roads in Montana, including basic 
physical attributes such as length, width, and surface type; 
traffic volume and classification data; and mapping and 
GIS services and products, including the official Montana 
State Highway map. For information, phone 406-444-
6103. 

Additional Support 
Most federal-aid funding for projects and programs 
requires non-federal matching funds. Although not 
required to do so, the state provides matching funds for 
most infrastructure projects on the state highway system. 
Additionally, in times of federal program growth, the state 
has passed the growth in federal program funding on to 
programs of importance to local governments through the 
State-level Urban and Secondary Highway Programs. 

Programs that benefit local governments are the result of 
cooperative state and local efforts to distribute limited 
funding as fairly as possible. MDT continues its 
commitment to support local transportation planning and 
projects to ensure a safe and reliable transportation 
system for Montana communities. For more information, 
visit MDT's Rail, Transit and Planning Division website at 
mdt.mt.gov/contact/organization/railtran.aspx. 



Infrastructure and Capital Assistance 

Fuel Tax - Counties and cities receive a portion of state 
fuel tax receipts based on statutory formulas for 
construction, reconstruction, maintenance, and repair of 
rural roads and city or town streets and alleys. For more 
information, phone 406-444-6103 or visit 
mdt.mt.gov/businessflueltax/allocations.aspx. 

Bridge and Road Safety and Accountability (BaRSAA) 
Program - The 65th Montana Legislature passed a fuel tax 
increase that went into effect on July 1, 2017. A portion of 
the revenue generated by the increase is allocated to local 
governments for road construction, reconstruction, and 
maintenance of roads and bridges. Allocations are 
available monthly. For more information, phone 406-444-
9131. 

Surface Transportation Program-Urban — Federal and 
state matching funds are allocated to Montana's urban 
areas (areas with a population greater than 5,000) for 
improvements to the Urban Highway System. Priorities 
are identified at the local level through established 
planning processes that include the public. Funds are 
primarily used for street reconstruction, rehabilitation, and 
traffic operation improvements. For more information, 
phone 406-444-9238. 

Surface Transportation Program-Secondary - Federal 
funding with state and local matching funds is allocated 
based on a statutory formula for improvements on 
Montana's Secondary Highway System. Capital 
construction priorities are identified at the local level and 
coordinated with MDT. Eligible activities include 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, and pavement preservation 
improvements. For more information, phone 406-
444-9194. 

Urban Highway Pavement Preservation — Federal and 
state matching funds are provided for cost-effective 
treatments to Urban Highway System routes. These 
improvements preserve the system, delay roadway 
deterioration, and improve roadway condition without 
adding capacity. Priorities are identified through MDT 
district and local government consultation and are based 
on pavement management systems developed and 
maintained at the local level. For more information, phone 
406-444-7259. 

Transportation Alternatives — Federal funding with state 
and local matching funds is provided for transportation 
alternative projects. Eligible projects include, but are not 
limited to, pedestrian and bicycle facilities, turnouts, 
overlooks, and viewing areas; lighting and safety-related 
infrastructure; projects to achieve ADA compliance; and 
environmental mitigation and wildlife connectivity. 
Projects are prioritized through a competitive process in 
accordance with federal eligibilities and requirements 
under 23 USC 213. For more information, phone 406-444-
6118 or visit mdt.mt.gov/mdt/ta-application.aspx. 

Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) — 
Federal funds are available with state matching funds for 
infrastructure projects that improve highway safety. These 

funds can be utilized for any public road projects such as 
signing, striping, guardrail installation, slope flattening, and 
intersection improvements. Projects are prioritized through 
a competitive process utilizing a benefit-cost analysis. For 
more information, phone 406-444-9420 or visit 
mdt.mt.gov/visionzero/plans/. 

Off-System Bridge Program — Federal funding with state 
and local matching funds are allocated for replacement 
and repair of locally maintained bridges. Construction 
priorities are identified at the local level and coordinated 
with MDT. Eligible activities include reconstruction and 
rehabilitation. For more information, phone 406-444-6260. 

Montana Air and Congestion Initiative (MACI) — 
Federal funding with state and local matching funds 
through this unique MDT program supports strategies to 
proactively address air quality issues related to carbon 
monoxide and particulate matter. Projects in eligible air 
quality nonattainment or at-risk areas are prioritized and 
selected based on air quality benefits. Eligible projects 
include the purchase of street sweepers and flush trucks 
necessary to reduce particulate matter and the funding of 
intersection improvements and signal synchronization 
projects to reduce carbon monoxide emissions. For more 
information, phone 406-444-9238. 

EMS Grant Program State funds are available through a 
competitive process to volunteer emergency medical 
providers for acquiring or leasing ambulances or 
emergency response vehicles, training, communication 
equipment, and medical care equipment. For more 
information, phone 406-444-0856 or visit 
mdt.mt.gov/business/grants-ems.aspx. 

Montana Essential Freight Rail Loan Program - MDT 
administers a state program that provides loans for 
railroad improvements including construction, 
reconstruction, or rehabilitation of rail lines and related 
facilities. Eligible parties include railroad owners and 
operators and certain port authorities. For more 
information, phone 406-444-9193. 

Transit - Federal funding programs administered by MDT 
support community transit systems with operating, capital, 
and planning. A locally developed coordination plan is 
required and must include public services as well as 
services for the disabled and elderly. Federal Health and 
Human Services funds may be used to match federal 
transit funds. For more information, phone 406-444-6120 
or visit mdt.mt.gov/business/grants-transit.aspx. 

City Park Rest Areas - State funds are provided to 
support maintenance activities in communities with 
existing City Park Rest Area facilities. Proposals for 
assistance must directly benefit the traveling public. 
Expenditures must be reviewed and approved by MDT to 
be eligible for local government reimbursement. For more 
information, phone 406-444-7653. 

Ferry Boat Program - Federal funds are available for 
Chouteau and Blaine Counties with some involvement 
with Fergus County for improvements to ferries and 
facilities. For more information, phone 406-444-9194. 



CITY OF HARDIN 
2023 

Council Committee Appointments 

PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD 
Jeremy Krebs 

SEWER AND WATER 
Rock Massine — Chairperson 
Steve Hopes 
Clayton Greer 
Chris Sharpe 

STREETS AND ALLEYS 
Antonio Espinoza — Chairperson 
Jeremy Krebs 
Clayton Greer 
Rock Massine 

RESOLUTIONS OR ORDINANCES 
Chris Sharpe - Chairperson 
Steve Hopes 
Antonio Espinoza 

LANDFILL 
Clayton Greer — Chairperson 
Steve Hopes 
Chris Sharpe 
Rock Massine 

LAW ENFORCEMENT 
Steve Hopes — Chairperson 
Chris Sharpe 
Rock Massine 

PARKS AND PLAYGROUNDS 
Jeremy Krebs — Chairperson 
Steve Hopes 
Chris Sharpe 

FINANCE 
Clayton Greer- Chairperson 
Jeremy Krebs 

CITY POLICY MANUAL 
Mayor— Chairperson 
Jeremy Krebs 
Antonio Espinoza 

IMPACT FEE ADVISORY COMMITTEE (Sewer & Water) 
Chris Sharpe — Chairperson 

Clayton Greer 
Rock Massine 

Kenny Kepp — Community Representative 

Mayor available as needed on all committees. 

Updated 09/28/2023 



9=9 

E3 JILtMt.Ar3 

Customer Name: Michael Hurff Jr. 

2032 Old Hardin Road 
Billings, MT 59101-6594 
Phone: (406) 259-3391 

Toll Free: (800) 932-5109 
www.s-bar-s.com 

Preliminary Estimate 
Phone: 406.665.9260 

Address: 406 North Cheyenne Avenue 
Hardin, MT 59034 E-mail publicworks@hardinmt.com 

Date 12/22/23 

Building Size: 40' x 60' x 18' Turned Girt Pole Building (Commercial) 
Standard Specifications: 
Poles: 3-Ply 2 x 6 S4S, Bottom Treated, Set 8' o/c 
Girts: Lower - 2 x 6 CA Treated; Intermediate - 2 x 6 set 24" o/c; Header — Glu-lam. 
Trusses: 30# Snow Load; 4/12 Pitch set 4' o/c attached to header with Steel Plates. 
Siding: 29 gauge colored high tensile steel attached with 1" Screws with Neoprene Washers. 
Roofing: 29 gauge colored high tensile steel attached with 1-1/2" Screws with Neoprene Washers. 
Purlins: 2 x 4 set 24" o/c of sufficient length so that no two consecutive joints fall on the same truss. 

Accessories: 

Built on Customer Provided Monolithic Pad 
Qty Other Description 

14' x 16' Split Steel Sliding Door 1 

Engineering 
State Permit 

Project Total: $ 55,715.00 
Building Site Location: Hardin, MT 
ALTERNATES 
Alt #1 
Alt #2 
Alt #3 
Alt #4 
Alt #5 
Alt #6 

0 Add $ 
0 Add $ 
0 Add $ 
0 Add $ 
0 
0 



STATE FINANCIAL SERVICES DIVISION
LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES BUREAU

MONTANA

ANNUAL FINANCIAL
REPORT

REVISED OCTOBER 2023/VERSION 23.2

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

ADDRESS
CITY, STATE ZIP

020201

Mitchell Building Room 255, PO Box 200547, Helena, Montana 59620-0547
Local Government Services Bureau Portal

ENTITY # 

CITY OF HARDIN



020201

CITY OF HARDIN

ADDRESS

CITY, STATE ZIP

**If a filing fee is owed, please print the completed filing fee form and mail with your payment to: 

Montana Department of Administration
Local Government Services
Mitchell Bldg - Room 270
PO Box 200547
Helena, MT   59620-0547

Annual Resources

Exceed:

$0

$750,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,500,000

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$50,000,000

Date:

REVISED 7-2017 VERSION 17.1

TD#

By:

Page 1 of 2

$3,000

FOR DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY

GL# Amount Received:

$

$5,000,000 $1,300

$10,000,000 $1,700

$50,000,000 $2,500

$1,000,000 $550

$1,500,000 $800

$2,500,000 $950

Annual Resources Filing

Equal to or Less Than Fee

$750,000 $0

The following filing fee schedule is required by Section 2-7-514, MCA, and has been adopted as Section 2.4.402 of the
 Administrative Rules of Montana.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FILING FEE
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

If the local government entity name or mailing address

on the Department's mailing list is inaccurate or has

changed recently please note the correction below.

PLEASE NOTE:  The "Determination of Filing Fee Form" ‐ page 2 of 2 ‐ is designed to be self‐calculating.  If you choose to print this form and 

manually fill it in, please adjust the "Filing Fee Owed" in Box #1, based on the Filing Fee Schedule included below.  Please revise Box #2 to 

"YES" if the adjusted debt proceeds and total revenues received by your government indicate that an audit will be required.  

If there is an amount listed in BOX #1 of the Determination of Filing Fee Form (page 2 of 2), please include a check or 
warrant for that amount, made payable to "State Treasurer" in the amount of the required fee.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ANNUAL FILING FEE SCHEDULE

**If no filing fee is owed, you must complete Part II to determine if an audit is required.  Please  assure a copy of  the completed 
Determination of Filing Fee & Audit Requirement  form is either included in your Annual Financial Report (AFR) or if not, a 
completed copy of the form is uploaded along with your AFR in the portal to ensure we enter the correct amount of adjusted debt 
proceeds in our system.



Total Revenues  3,838,427.69

Other Financing Sources ‐ Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 0.00

Special and/or Extraordinary Items (Revenues only) 0.00

Total Operating Revenues 2,981,098.02

Non‐Operating Revenues: (Do not include Gain on Sale of 

Capital Assets)

Taxes/Assessments 0.00

Licenses/Permits 0.00

Intergovernmental Revenues  173,157.22

Interest Revenues 26,262.38

Other Non‐operating Revenues not included above

Capital Contributions 0.00

Special and/or Extraordinary Items (Revenues only) 0.00

Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 0.00

Total Additions to Pension & Private Purpose Trust Funds Only 0.00

Total Revenues for Calculation of Filing Fee $7,018,945.31

 Add:  Proceeds from Debt provided by a Federal agency, a State

           agency or another local government: 

Governmental Funds (from Statement of Revenues, 

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Page 16) 

Proceeds from General Long‐Term Debt) 0.00

Proprietary Funds (from Statement of Cash Flows, Major & Non‐

Major Enterprise Funds (Page 20) Proceeds from Debt) 60,317.00

              Manually subtract debt proceeds received from non‐

governmental financial institutions (banks, savings & loans) included 

above (Enter as a negative)

Subtotal ‐ Proceeds received from Debt   60,317.00

    Manually subtract amount of proceeds received from governments 

used to refinance existing debt. (Enter as a negative)

Total Adjusted Debt Proceeds $60,317.00

Total Revenues + Total Adjusted Debt Proceeds $7,079,262.31

Audit Required? YES

If this amount exceeds $750,000, you are required to have an audit 

for the fiscal year.

Page 2 of 2

ENTERPRISE FUNDS ‐ PAGE 20  (STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS)

TRUST FUNDS ‐ PAGE 22 (STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS)

NOTE:  Do not include additions to Investment Trust Funds

If total revenues are equal to or less than $750,000, no filing fee is 

required to be paid.  However, your entity may be subject to audit 

requirements as determined in Part II or required by other agencies.             

Review Part II below to determine if there is an audit requirement. 

Manually subtract proceeds of debt received to refinance an existing debt 

to exclude from audit determination.

If total revenues plus adjusted debt proceeds exceeds $750,000, your 

entity will be subject to audit requirements. 

Part II ‐ Determination of Audit Requirement w/ No Filing Fee (Subtract Debt used to Refinance Manually)

Box #2

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ‐ PAGE 16 (STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES)

ENTERPRISE FUNDS ‐ PAGE 19 (STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION)

Note:  Do not include revenues of Internal Service Funds

Box #1

Filing Fee Owed  $1700.00

Determination of Filing Fee Form
Note: This form is self-calculating, with defaults of -0- and "NO" in box #1 and #2. Please adjust according if you print this form and enter 
information manually. 

FEE REQUIREMENT:  As provided by 2‐7‐514, MCA, each local government required to have an audit under 2‐7‐503, MCA, shall pay an annual filing fee to 

the department; the fee schedule must be based upon the local government's annual revenue amounts.  Administrative Rule 2.4.402 defines "revenues" 

as all receipts or inflows of resources of a local government entity from any source excluding the proceeds from bond issuances and other long‐term debt 

not received from state or federal sources. 

AUDIT REQUIREMENT:   As provided by 2‐7‐503, MCA, each local government  receiving revenue or financial assistance in excess of $750,000, regardless 

of the source of revenue or financial assistance, must have an audit. "Financial Assistance" including assistance provided by a federal, state, or local 

government entity in the form of loans and loan guarantees.                                                                                                                                                                   

Part II ‐ Determination of Audit Requirement. Loan proceeds received in the fiscal year that were used to refinance (payoff) existing debt will not be 

considered as "Financial Assistance" when determining the current audit requirement. 



INTRODUCTORY

SECTION



OFFICE NAME OF CITY/TOWN OFFICIALS/OFFICERS DATE TERM
EXPIRES

Mayor Joe Purcell January, 2026
Councilperson/Commissioner Rock J Massine January, 2026
Councilperson/Commissioner Antonio Espinoza January, 2024
Councilperson/Commissioner Steven Hopes January, 2026
Councilperson/Commissioner Chris Sharpe January, 2024
Councilperson/Commissioner Clayton Greer January, 2026
Councilperson/Commissioner Jeremy Krebs January, 2024

Attorney Jordan Knudsen
Chief of police Vacant as of 6/30/2023, Subsequently (7/21/23) Paul George Jr.
Public Works Director Michael Hurff Jr.
Finance Officer/ City Clerk Andrew Lehr
City Judge James E. Seykora June 30, 2023
City Judge Richard Bowler October 18, 2025
Deputy City Clerk Angela Zimmer
Utility billing/collection clerk Kristi Wedel

Submitted by;

Andrew Lehr
Finance Officer/ City Clerk

12/29/2023
Date

Preparer's contact information:
Email: cityfinance@hardinmt.com

Phone: 406-665-9293

-3-

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

CITY OF HARDIN
ELECTED OFFICIALS/OFFICERS

     CONSISTENT WITH STATE LAW, I HEREBY TRANSMIT THE 
CITY OF HARDIN

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE



FINANCIAL

SECTION



MANAGEMENT'S

DISCUSSION

AND

ANALYSIS



BASIC

FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS



CITY OF HARDIN
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Primary Government Component Units
Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3,516,260.35 3,701,564.55 7,217,824.90
Investments 0.00 1,824,672.14 1,824,672.14
Petty Cash 250.00 410.00 660.00
Restricted Assets:
   Cash and cash equivalents 625,937.50 1,464,546.96 2,090,484.46
   Investments (at fair value) 1,060,725.81 1,270,268.42 2,330,994.23
Taxes/Assessments Receivable - (net of 
allowance for uncollectibles) 3,762,638.37 301,293.52 4,063,931.89
Accounts/other receivables - (net of allowance 
for uncollectibles) 15,526.46 180,629.62 196,156.08
Leases receivable 0.00 0.00 0.00
Internal Balances 600.00 0.00 600.00
Due from other governments 47,983.19 107,826.60 155,809.79
Prepaid expense 43,484.63 534.30 44,018.93
Inventories 121,216.26 73,484.50 194,700.76
Other debits 0.00 0.00 0.00
Leases receivable - noncurrent 0.00 0.00
Capital assets not being depreciated
   Land 584,737.05 463,193.00 1,047,930.05
   Construction in progress 21,800.69 347,861.16 369,661.85
Capital assets being depreciated (net of 
accumulated depreciation) 13,869,307.02 8,150,541.41 22,019,848.43
Leased - Right to use capital assets not being 
amortized 0.00 0.00 0.00
 Leased - Right to use capital assets (net of 
accumulated amortization) 12,654.87 0.00 12,654.87

Total Assets 23,683,122.20 17,886,826.18 41,569,948.38 0.00 0.00

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pensions 214,793.60 171,633.40 386,427.00
Deferred Outflows of Resources - OPEB 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Leases 0.00 0.00
Deferred Outflows of Resources 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 214,793.60 171,633.40 386,427.00 0.00 0.00

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 121,872.60 361,416.12 483,288.72
Matured bonds and interest payable 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due to other governments 7,889.30 0.00 7,889.30
Revenues collected in advance 1,205,388.64 40,621.68 1,246,010.32
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year
   Current portion liabilities 12,946,093.23 213,375.80 13,159,469.03
   Compensated absences 32,651.94 32,651.94
Due in more than one year
   Notes, Leases, SBITAs payable 13,241,204.03 2,267,017.00 15,508,221.03
   Pension Liability 1,060,871.18 847,701.83 1,908,573.01
   OPEB Liability 227,231.38 254,343.62 481,575.00
   Compensated absences 109,331.20 97,955.79 207,286.99

Total Liabilities 28,919,881.56 4,115,083.78 33,034,965.34 0.00 0.00

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pensions 77,665.47 62,059.52 139,724.99
Deferred Inflows of Resources - OPEB 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Leases 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deferred Inflows of Resources 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 77,665.47 62,059.52 139,724.99 0.00 0.00

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets (11,698,797.63) 7,789,823.57 (3,908,974.06)
Restricted for: 498,630.06 498,630.06
   Debt Service 0.00
   Bond Indenture Requirements 0.00 0.00
   General Government 16,007.67 16,007.67
   Public Safety 6,651.00 6,651.00
   Public Works 485,232.56 485,232.56
   Public Health 0.00
  Culture/Recreation 0.00 0.00
  Economic Development 0.00
  Other: 0.00
  Non-spendable (other than Perm Fund) 1,130,072.96 1,130,072.96
  Permanent Fund principal 0.00

Unrestricted 4,462,572.15 6,091,492.71 10,554,064.86

Total Net Position (5,099,631.23) 13,881,316.28 8,781,685.05 0.00 0.00
Balance check w/GW Statement (should equal zero): 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00



CITY OF HARDIN
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Position

Charges for Operating Capital Primary Government Component Units
Services, Fines, Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type

Functions/Programs Expenses Forfeitures, etc. Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Primary government:
  Governmental activities:
     General government 604,744.30 72,198.34 5,871.02 0.00 (526,674.94) (526,674.94)
     Public safety 1,469,395.16 23,875.00 121,236.67 9,832.00 (1,314,451.49) (1,314,451.49)
     Public works 1,044,772.36 661,633.96 77,713.10 0.00 (305,425.30) (305,425.30)
     Public health 4,841.24 0.00 3,675.34 0.00 (1,165.90) (1,165.90)
     Social and economic services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
     Culture and recreation 172,144.87 263,390.77 1,375.26 3,784.12 96,405.28 96,405.28
     Housing/Community Development 114,619.14 10.00 45.40 0.00 (114,563.74) (114,563.74)
     Conservation of Natural Resources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
     Interest on long-term debt & leases 1,322,681.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 (1,322,681.55) (1,322,681.55)
     Miscellaneous 42,648.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 (42,648.89) (42,648.89)
     Unallocated costs 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total governmental activities 4,775,847.51 1,021,108.07 209,916.79 13,616.12 (3,531,206.53) (3,531,206.53) 0.00 0.00

  Business-type activities:
Water 1,105,000.93 792,467.56 (312,533.37) (312,533.37)
Sewer 798,990.83 841,200.47 146,988.94 189,198.58 189,198.58
Solid Waste - Collection 375,845.98 500,408.30 124,562.32 124,562.32
Landfill 692,425.34 801,183.16 108,757.82 108,757.82
Name 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00

Total business-type activities 2,972,263.08 2,935,259.49 0.00 146,988.94 0.00 109,985.35 109,985.35 0.00 0.00

Total primary government 7,748,110.59 3,956,367.56 209,916.79 160,605.06 (3,531,206.53) 109,985.35 (3,421,221.18)

Component Units:

Total component units 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

General revenues:
  Property taxes 1,673,758.14 0.00 1,673,758.14
  Local option taxes 0.00 0.00
  Licenses and permits 41,472.65 41,472.65
  Unrestricted Federal/State shared revenues 845,222.66 26,168.28 871,390.94
  Unrestricted grants and contributions 0.00 0.00
  Unrestricted investment earnings 20,695.71 26,262.38 46,958.09
  Miscellaneous 24,208.14 45,838.53 70,046.67
  Gain on sale of capital assets (9,170.00) 0.00 (9,170.00)
  Transfers 0.00 0.00 0.00
  Special/Extraordinary items 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
Total general revenues and transfers 2,596,187.30 98,269.19 2,694,456.49 0.00 0.00

Change in net position (935,019.23) 208,254.54 (726,764.69) 0.00 0.00
Total net position - July 1, 2022 as previously reported (4,164,612.00) 13,673,061.74 9,508,449.74
  Prior period adjustments 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total net position - July 1, 2022 as restated (4,164,612.00) 13,673,061.74 9,508,449.74 0.00 0.00
Total net position - June 30, 2023 (5,099,631.23) 13,881,316.28 8,781,685.05 0.00 0.00



CITY OF HARDIN
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Major Funds
Fund #1000 2501 2992 3110 3511 Other Total

Account Governmental Governmental

Number Description Funds Funds
ASSETS

101000 Cash and cash equivalents 844,437.16 260,730.04 907,526.82 1,503,566.33 3,516,260.35
103000 Petty cash 250.00 0.00 250.00
101100 Investments 0.00 0.00

Restricted Assets:
102200   Cash and cash equivalents 6,273.34 473,852.21 145,811.95 625,937.50
102300   Investments 0.00 0.00
106000 Valuation of investments to fair value 485,160.07 223,423.90 352,141.84 1,060,725.81

110000
Tax/assessment receivable (net of allowance 
for uncollectibles) 218,051.10 91,418.03 2,291,795.70 745,174.92 416,198.62 3,762,638.37

120000
Accounts/other receivables - (net of allowance 
for uncollectibles) 7,477.65 2,522.51 721.54 4,804.76 15,526.46

127500 Leases Receivable 0.00 0.00 0.00
131000 Due from other funds 70,165.32 34,558.88 104,724.20
132000 Due from other governments 11,181.51 13,543.04 9,409.89 13,848.75 47,983.19
133000 Advances to other funds 556,364.22 304,283.65 860,647.87
140000 Prepaid expense 43,484.63 0.00 43,484.63
150000 Inventories 3,706.88 117,509.38 0.00 121,216.26
170000 Other debits 0.00 0.00

Total Assets 2,246,551.88 709,146.90 907,526.82 2,775,779.34 745,174.92 2,775,214.78 10,159,394.64
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

190000 Deferred Outflows of Resources 0.00 0.00
19xxxx Deferred Outflows of Resources 0.00 0.00

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

LIABILITIES
201000   Warrants payable 0.00 0.00
202100   Accounts payable 32,880.28 2,639.22 1,382.50 11,165.00 15,092.22 63,159.22
203100  Judgments payable 0.00 0.00
204000   Contracts/loans/notes payable 0.00 0.00
205200   Matured interest payable 0.00 0.00
205500   Leases - short-term 0.00 0.00
206100   Other accrued payables 34,004.90 5,696.71 2,889.87 8,348.56 50,940.04
211000   Due to other funds 69,738.90 34,385.30 104,124.20
212000   Due to other governments 7,889.30 0.00 7,889.30
214000   Deposits payable 7,773.34 0.00 7,773.34
216000   Revenues collected in advance 903,254.45 302,134.19 1,205,388.64
233000   Advances from other funds 615,329.18 245,318.69 860,647.87

Total Liabilities 82,547.82 8,335.93 907,526.82 11,165.00 685,068.08 605,278.96 2,299,922.61

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
220000 Deferred Inflows of Resources 0.00 0.00
223000 Deferred Inflows of Tax Revenues 218,051.10 91,418.03 2,291,795.70 745,174.92 416,198.62 3,762,638.37

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 218,051.10 91,418.03 0.00 2,291,795.70 745,174.92 416,198.62 3,762,638.37

FUND BALANCES:
250100 Non-spendable 670,014.17 338,842.53 1,008,856.70

   Inventory 3,706.88 117,509.38 121,216.26
250200 Restricted 0.00 0.00

   General government 16,007.67 16,007.67
   Public Safety 6,651.00 6,651.00
   Public Works 485,232.56 485,232.56
   Culture and Recreation 0.00
Comm Development & Housing 472,818.64 25,811.42 498,630.06

260100 Committed 0.00 0.00
   General government 80,299.51 80,299.51
   Public Safety 0.00
   Public Works 80,299.51 80,299.51
   Culture and Recreation 0.00
   Other: (input explanation) 0.00

260200 Assigned 0.00 0.00
Public Works 491,883.56 356,783.11 848,666.67
Comm Development & Housing 80,000.00 80,000.00
Capital Outlay 641,109.34 641,109.34

271000 Unassigned 1,192,231.91 (0.00) 0.00 0.00 (685,068.08) (277,299.45) 229,864.38
Total Fund Balances 1,945,952.96 609,392.94 0.00 472,818.64 (685,068.08) 1,753,737.20 4,096,833.66

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances 2,246,551.88 709,146.90 907,526.82 2,775,779.34 745,174.92 2,775,214.78

Balance check (Should equal zero): 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different because:
    Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
      resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 14,475,844.76

12,654.87
    Other long-term assets are not available to pay current-period
      expenditures and, therefore, are deferred outflows of resources in the funds. 3,881,780.00
    Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
      providing services within the government.  The assets and liabilities of
      the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the 
      government-wide statement of net position.
                  Current assets 0.00
                   Accounts payable 0.00
                   Net amount allocated to business-type/external  activities 0.00 0.00

    Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
      in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (27,566,744.52)

Net position of governmental activities (5,099,631.23)

0.00

    Leased right-to-use assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
    resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

General Fund

Street 
Maintenance 

#1

American 
Rescue Plan 

Act
TIFD - Debt 

Service SID #120



CITY OF HARDIN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Major Funds
Fund #1000 2501 2992 3110 3511 Other Total

Account Governmental Governmental
Number Description Funds Funds

REVENUES
310000/ 
363000 Taxes/assessments 596,285.40 337,368.34 917,106.04 94,284.18 376,651.92 2,321,695.88
320000 Licenses and permits 40,847.65 625.00 0.00 41,472.65
330000 Intergovernmental revenues 773,873.38 56,718.92 5,239.92 232,923.35 1,068,755.57
340000 Charges for services 472.68 1,832.50 2,305.18
350000 Fines and forfeitures 65,985.26 5,783.53 71,768.79
360000 Miscellaneous 311,553.53 170.38 10.00 311,733.91
370000 Investment and royalty earnings 6,867.06 2,361.13 558.97 4,597.97 6,310.58 20,695.71

0.00
Total Revenues 1,795,884.96 340,524.85 57,277.89 926,943.93 94,284.18 623,511.88 3,838,427.69

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000   General government 466,871.73 1,254.15 49,206.09 517,331.97
420000   Public safety 771,590.89 49,462.72 218,955.84 1,040,009.45
430000   Public works 14,792.59 354,109.31 3,472.08 199,054.07 571,428.05
440000   Public health 19,630.06 1,711.21 21,341.27
450000   Social and economic services 0.00 0.00 0.00
460000   Culture and recreation 111,862.03 3,088.94 14,529.96 129,480.93
470000   Housing and community development 11,124.51 3,473.22 14,597.73
480000   Conservation of natural resources 0.00 0.00 0.00
490000 Debt, Lease, SBITA Service:

  Principal 4,012.59 0.00 4,012.59
  Interest 416.55 643,867.46 0.00 644,284.01

0.00
Capital outlay 284,287.40 555.08 284,842.48

500000  Internal Services 0.00
510000  Miscellaneous 0.00 42,648.89 42,648.89

Total Expenditures 1,684,588.35 354,109.31 57,277.89 643,867.46 0.00 530,134.36 3,269,977.37
Excess of revenues (under)           
expenditures 111,296.61 (13,584.46) 0.00 283,076.47 94,284.18 93,377.52 568,450.32
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

381010/40 Bonds issued 0.00 0.00 0.00
381010/40 Discount on bonds issued 0.00 0.00 0.00

381050 Inception of lease/subscription-based IT 0.00 0.00 0.00
381070 Notes/loans/intercap issued 0.00 0.00 0.00
382010 Sale of capital assets 0.00 0.00 0.00
383000 Transfers In 0.00 40,000.00 120,000.00 160,000.00
521000 Transfers out (Enter as negative) (160,000.00) 0.00 (160,000.00)
384000 Special items - revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00
524000 Special items - expenditure (Negative) 0.00 0.00 0.00
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure (Negative) 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total other financing sources (uses) (160,000.00) 40,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 120,000.00 0.00
Net change in fund balances (48,703.39) 26,415.54 0.00 283,076.47 94,284.18 213,377.52 568,450.32

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported 1,994,656.35 582,977.40 0.00 189,742.17 (779,352.26) 1,540,359.68 3,528,383.34
 Prior period adjustments 0.00 0.00 0.00

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated 1,994,656.35 582,977.40 0.00 189,742.17 (779,352.26) 1,540,359.68 3,528,383.34
Fund balances - June 30, 2023 1,945,952.96 609,392.94 0.00 472,818.64 (685,068.08) 1,753,737.20 4,096,833.66

General
Street 

Maintenance #1
American 

Rescue Plan 
TIFD - Debt 

Service SID #120



CITY OF HARDIN
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds  (page 16 ) 568,450.32
    Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page ) are
         different because:

          Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities 
              report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets:
                           Capital assets purchased, leased, subscription-based IT arrangements 293,193.48
                            Depreciation and amortization expense  (588,341.80)

          In the Statement of Activities, the loss or gain on the sale or disposal of capital assets is 
              recognized.  The fund financial statements recognize only the proceeds from the sale
              of these assets:
                             Gain (loss) on the disposal of capital assets (9,170.00)
                              Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 0.00

         Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are
              not reported as revenues in the funds:
                             Donated capital assets
                             Long-term receivables (deferred inflow) 11,570.59
                             GASB68 recognition of On-behalf payments to Pension Plans 0.00
          Long-term debt proceeds provide current financial resources to the governmental funds,
               but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position:
                            Lease Right-to-Use Capital Asset/SBITA proceeds 0.00
                             Bond sale proceeds 0.00
                             Loan proceeds 0.00

          Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
               repayment reduces long-term debt and leases in the Statement of Net Position:
                              Lease obligation principal payments 4,012.59
                              Long-term loan/contract principal payments
                              Long-term bond principal payments
                              Accrued interest - TIFD bonds (678,397.54)

          Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, 
               such as insurance and data processing, to individual funds.  The net revenue of the 
                internal service funds is reported with the governmental activities of the government-wide
                statement of activities net of the amounts allocated to business-type activities and 
                depreciation expense
                              Change in net position 0.00
                               Net of amount allocated to business-type/external  activities 0.00
                               Depreciation Expense 0.00 0.00

           Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require  the use of
               current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in 
               governmental funds
                              Accrued compensated absenses (13,478.47)
                              Pension & OPEB expense (522,858.40)
           Other:                                                                                                                               

Change in Net Position in Governmental Activities (935,019.23)

Balance check: 0.00



CITY OF HARDIN
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Business-type Activities

Account 5210 5310 5410 5417
Number Description Water Sewer lid Waste - Collecti Landfill Totals

ASSETS
Current Assets

101000 Cash and cash equivalents 1,739,458.75 363,634.18 710,672.77 887,798.85 3,701,564.55
103000 Petty cash 250.00 60.00 0.00 100.00 410.00
101100 Investments (at fair value) 321,723.61 445,465.26 463,533.52 593,949.75 1,824,672.14

110000
Tax/assessment receivable (net of allowance for 
uncollectibles) 2,319.61 201.54 298,772.37 0.00 301,293.52

120000
Accounts/other receivables - (net of allowance for 
uncollectibles) 53,175.24 66,715.24 6,284.35 54,454.79 180,629.62

127500 Leases receivable 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
131000 Due from other funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
132000 Due from other governments 0.00 96,988.94 10,837.66 0.00 107,826.60
141000 Prepaid expense 190.82 171.74 76.33 95.41 534.30
150000 Inventories 38,578.08 29,538.42 5,285.50 82.50 73,484.50

Total Current Assets 2,155,696.11 1,002,775.32 1,495,462.50 1,536,481.30 6,190,415.23
Noncurrent Assets
Restricted Assets:

102200   Cash and cash equivalents 128,307.64 817,720.57 300,000.00 218,518.75 1,464,546.96
102300   Investments 1,270,268.42 1,270,268.42
127500 Leases receivable -  not current 0.00
133000 Advances to other funds 0.00
170000 Other debits 0.00
180000 Capital assets:

  Land 121,191.00 21,286.00 320,716.00 463,193.00
  Construction in progress 24,291.48 297,642.68 20,927.00 5,000.00 347,861.16
  Buildings 0.00 0.00 0.00 118,708.76 118,708.76
  Improvements other than buildings 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,980,909.42 1,980,909.42
  Machinery and equipment 99,486.18 18,134.25 895,457.53 1,674,407.91 2,687,485.87
  Infrastructure (utility systems) 7,271,632.05 9,110,175.09 0.00 0.00 16,381,807.14
     Less:  accumulated depreciation (5,093,135.43) (3,876,058.70) (905,864.13) (3,143,311.52) (13,018,369.78)

18X500 Leased-Right-to-Use (RTU) Capital assets - not amortized 0.00
   Leased RTU Capital Assets 0.00

183500    Leased RTU Intangible/Subscription-based capital assets 0.00
      Less: accumulated amoritization 0.00
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation 2,423,465.28 5,571,179.32 10,520.40 956,430.57 8,961,595.57

Total Noncurrent Assets 2,551,772.92 6,388,899.89 310,520.40 2,445,217.74 11,696,410.95
Total Assets 4,707,469.03 7,391,675.21 1,805,982.90 3,981,699.04 17,886,826.18

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
199000 Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pensions 58,117.72 42,264.47 26,997.52 44,253.69 171,633.40
199xxx Deferred Outflows of Resources - OPEB 0.00
199500 Deferred Outflows of Resources - Leases 0.00
199xxx Deferred Outflow of Resources - Others 0.00

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 58,117.72 42,264.47 26,997.52 44,253.69 171,633.40

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

202100 Accounts payable 23,269.26 80,243.71 3,334.27 87,340.03 194,187.27
203100 Judgments payable 0.00
204000 Contracts/loans/notes payable 77,000.00 92,000.00 169,000.00
204300 Leases/SBITAs payable 0.00
205200 Matured interest bonds payable 0.00
205500 Leases - short-term 0.00
206100 Other accrued payables 21,417.41 8,384.64 4,545.92 10,027.83 44,375.80
209100 Compensated absences 10,351.13 6,605.67 8,113.34 7,581.80 32,651.94
211000 Due to other funds 0.00
212000 Due to other governments 0.00
214000 Deposits payable 67,552.17 176.68 99,500.00 167,228.85
216000 Revenues collected in advance 13,840.56 26,781.12 40,621.68

Total Current Liabilities 136,430.53 199,191.82 15,993.53 296,449.66 648,065.54
Noncurrent Liabilities

231000 Bonds payable 0.00
233000 Advance from other funds 0.00
234000 Judgments payable 0.00
235000 Contracts/loans/notes payable 1,002,772.00 1,002,772.00
235500 Leases/SBITAs payable 0.00
236000 Closure/postclosure care costs 1,264,245.00 1,264,245.00
237000 Pension Liability 287,044.93 208,745.33 133,341.45 218,570.12 847,701.83
238000 OPEB Liability 88,226.95 57,793.51 55,672.14 52,651.02 254,343.62
239000 Compensated absences 31,053.38 19,817.02 24,340.00 22,745.39 97,955.79

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 406,325.26 1,289,127.86 213,353.59 1,558,211.53 3,467,018.24

Total Liabilities 542,755.79 1,488,319.68 229,347.12 1,854,661.19 4,115,083.78

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
220000 Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pensions 21,014.31 15,282.07 9,761.81 16,001.33 62,059.52
22xxxx Deferred Inflows of Resources - OPEB 0.00
225000 Deferred Inflows of Resources - Leases 0.00
22xxxx Deferred Inflows of Resources - Other 0.00

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 21,014.31 15,282.07 9,761.81 16,001.33 62,059.52

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,423,465.28 4,491,407.32 10,520.40 864,430.57 7,789,823.57
Restricted for:
  Debt Service 0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

Unrestricted 1,778,351.37 1,438,930.61 1,583,351.09 1,290,859.64 6,091,492.71
Total Net Position 4,201,816.65 5,930,337.93 1,593,871.49 2,155,290.21 13,881,316.28

Balance check (Should equal zero): 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Reconciliation to government-wide statement of net position:
    Adjustment to reflect the consolidations of internal service funds
          activities related to enterprise funds
    Net position of business-type activities 13,881,316.28

Major Enterprise Funds



CITY OF HARDIN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Governmental

Business-type Activities Activities

Major Enterprise Funds Nonmajor
Account 5210 5310 5410 5417 Enterprise Internal 
Number Description Water Sewer lid Waste - Collect Landfill Funds Totals Service

OPERATING REVENUES

340000   Charges for services 792,438.59 841,143.24 493,878.00 801,183.16 0.00 2,928,642.99 0.00

360000   Miscellaneous revenues 11,545.59 31,943.87 392.26 1,956.81 0.00 45,838.53 0.00

363000   Special assessments 28.97 57.23 6,530.30 0.00 0.00 6,616.50 0.00

0.00 0.00

Total Operating Revenues 804,013.15 873,144.34 500,800.56 803,139.97 0.00 2,981,098.02 0.00

OPERATING EXPENSES

100   Personal services 519,125.27 370,091.36 258,529.36 375,838.97 0.00 1,523,584.96 0.00

200   Supplies 151,465.32 66,823.20 85,234.07 96,940.21 0.00 400,462.80 0.00

300   Purchased services 165,111.94 124,310.78 18,023.12 55,809.19 0.00 363,255.03 0.00

400   Building materials 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

500   Fixed charges 19,295.40 22,327.57 10,280.43 (14,120.07) 0.00 37,783.33 0.00

810   Loss/Bad debt expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

830   Depreciation and Amortization 250,003.00 191,702.00 3,779.00 174,345.79 0.00 619,829.79 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Operating Expenses 1,105,000.93 775,254.91 375,845.98 688,814.09 0.00 2,944,915.91 0.00

Operating Income (Loss) (300,987.78) 97,889.43 124,954.58 114,325.88 0.00 36,182.11 0.00

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

310000   Taxes/assessment revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00

320000   Licenses/permits revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00

330000   Intergovernmental revenue 8,860.98 153,432.84 4,116.21 6,747.19 0.00 173,157.22 0.00

371000   Interest revenue 6,734.85 6,233.14 5,811.91 7,482.48 0.00 26,262.38 0.00

382030 Gain/Loss on Sale of Capital Assets (Loss is negative) 0.00 0.00 0.00

490000   Debt service interest expense (Enter as negative) (23,735.92) (3,611.25) 0.00 (27,347.17) 0.00

490500   Leases interest expense (Enter as negative) 0.00 0.00 0.00

384000   Special items - revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00

385000   Extraordinary items - revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00

524000   Special items - expense (enter as negative) 0.00 0.00 0.00

525000   Extraordinary items - expense (enter as negative) 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 15,595.83 135,930.06 9,928.12 10,618.42 0.00 172,072.43 0.00

   Income (Loss) before contributions and transfers (285,391.95) 233,819.49 134,882.70 124,944.30 0.00 208,254.54 0.00

Capital contributions 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Transfers in (out) (50,000.00) 50,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   Change in net position (285,391.95) 233,819.49 84,882.70 174,944.30 0.00 208,254.54 0.00

Total net position - July 1, 2022 as previously reported 4,487,208.60 5,696,518.44 1,508,988.79 1,980,345.91 0.00 13,673,061.74 0.00

 Prior period adjustments 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total net position - July 1, 2022 as restated 4,487,208.60 5,696,518.44 1,508,988.79 1,980,345.91 0.00 13,673,061.74 0.00

Total net position - June 30, 2023 4,201,816.65 5,930,337.93 1,593,871.49 2,155,290.21 0.00 13,881,316.28 0.00

Reconciliation to government-wide statement of activities:

  Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund

      activities related to enterprise funds

  Change in net position of business-type activities 208,254.54



CITY OF HARDIN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Business-type Activities

Major Enterprise Funds
5210 5310 5410 5417

Description Water Sewer olid Waste - Collectio Landfill Totals

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

  Cash received from customers 805,299.73 878,531.71 491,958.65 889,753.86 3,065,543.95

  Cash paid to suppliers (348,370.29) (148,840.81) (123,267.27) (99,317.42) (719,795.79)

  Cash paid to employees (411,042.01) (295,982.34) (203,937.85) (310,410.77) (1,221,372.97)

  Cash received from interfund services provided 0.00

  Cash paid for interfund services used 0.00

       Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 45,887.43 433,708.56 164,753.53 480,025.67 1,124,375.19

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

  Transfers from (to) other funds 0.00 0.00 (50,000.00) 50,000.00 0.00

  Advances from (to) other funds 0.00

  Subsidies from taxes and other governments 8,860.98 56,443.90 4,116.21 6,747.19 76,168.28
       Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing 
activities 8,860.98 56,443.90 (45,883.79) 56,747.19 76,168.28
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES

  Proceeds from debt & leases 60,317.00 60,317.00

  Capital contributions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Purchases/acquisition/construction of capital assets (24,291.48) (281,405.66) 0.00 (82,250.00) (387,947.14)

  Principal on debt, leases, & SBITAs (Enter as a negative) (207,000.00) (91,000.00) (298,000.00)

  Interest paid on debt, leases, & SBITAs (Enter as a negative) 0.00 (23,735.92) 0.00 (3,611.25) (27,347.17)

  Capital lease down payment 0.00

  Proceeds from sales of capital assets 0.00
       Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing 
activities (24,291.48) (451,824.58) 0.00 (176,861.25) (652,977.31)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

  Proceeds from sales of investments 0.00

  Purchase of investments (Enter as negative) 0.00

  Interest earnings 3,118.71 1,744.35 1,384.12 1,752.50 7,999.68

   Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 3,118.71 1,744.35 1,384.12 1,752.50 7,999.68

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 33,575.64 40,072.23 120,253.86 361,664.11 555,565.84

Cash and cash equivalents - July 1, 2022 2,156,164.36 1,586,807.78 1,353,952.43 2,608,971.66 7,705,896.23

Cash and cash equivalents - June 30, 2023 2,189,740.00 1,626,880.01 1,474,206.29 2,970,635.77 8,261,462.07

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided 
(used by operating activities:

  Operating income (300,987.78) 97,889.43 124,954.58 114,325.88 36,182.11
  Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided 
(used) by operating activities

    Depreciation expense 250,003.00 191,702.00 3,779.00 174,345.79 619,829.79

    (Increase) Decrease in accounts receivable 431.63 5,129.73 (4,330.46) 86,613.89 87,844.79

    (Increase) Decrease in intergovernmental receivables (1,932.32) 80.96 (4,511.45) 0.00 (6,362.81)

    (Increase) Decrease in due to/from other funds 0.00

    Increase in allowance for uncollectible accounts 0.00

    (Increase) decrease in inventories (847.00) 237.24 (3,334.50) 82.50 (3,861.76)

    (Increase) decrease in prepaid items (190.82) 182.30 (76.33) (95.41) (180.26)

    Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 2,787.27 176.68 0.00 0.00 2,963.95

    Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (11,459.81) 64,201.20 (6,318.82) 39,324.82 85,747.39

    Increase (decrease) in compensated absences pay. (755.33) 3,000.24 4,081.82 7,258.72 13,585.45

    Increase (decrease) in intergovernmental payables 0.00

    Increase (decrease) in GASB68 pension expense 108,838.59 71,108.78 50,509.69 58,169.48 288,626.54

                    Total adjustments 346,875.21 335,819.13 39,798.95 365,699.79 1,088,193.08

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 45,887.43 433,708.56 164,753.53 480,025.67 1,124,375.19

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:

   Borrowing under lease 0.00

   Contributions of capital assets from government 0.00

   Purchase of equipment on account 0.00

   Increase in fair value of investments 0.00

   Capital asset trade-ins 0.00



CITY OF HARDIN

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Trust Funds

Pension Investment Private Purpose External Custodial 

Account Trust Funds Trust Funds Trust Funds Investment Pool Funds

Number Description (7000-7005) (7006-7009) (7010-7099) (not in trust) (7100-7999)

ASSETS

101000 Cash and cash equivalents 112,549.81

101100 Investments (at fair value) 0.00

Receivables:

110000
Tax/assessment receivable (net of allowance for 
uncollectibles) 2,385.92

120000
Accounts/other receivables - (net of allowance for 
uncollectibles) 0.00

128000 Interest receivable 203.79

130000 Due from Others 0.00

170000 Other assets: 0.00

Total Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 115,139.52

190000 Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES

201000 Warrants payable

202000 Accounts payable

203000 Judgment/Protested payable

204000 Contracts payable

211000 Due to other funds

212000 Due to other governments

230000 Other long-term liabilities 122,000.00

Other liabilities: 

Total Liabilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 122,000.00

220000 Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION

Restricted for:

Unrestricted 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (6,860.48)

TOTAL NET POSITION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (6,860.48)

Balance check: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (0.00)

Custodial Funds



CITY OF HARDIN
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Trust Funds

Pension Investment Private Purpose External Custodial 

Account Trust Funds Trust Funds Trust Funds Investment Pool Funds

Number Description (7000-7005) (7006-7009) (7010-7099) (not in trust) (7100-7999)

ADDITIONS:

310000 Tax revenue

310000 Tax revenue collected for other governments

330000 Intergovernmental revenue 35,463.08
360000 Miscellaneous revenue

370000 Investment earnings 265.25

366000 Contributions to pension plan

366000 Contributions to investment trust

Other additions: 

Total Additions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35,728.33

DEDUCTIONS:

Administrative expenses

Refunds of contributions

Benefit payments 27,100.00

Distribution of investments

Refunds or transfers to others

Payments of taxes collected for others

Other deductions: specify

Total Deductions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 27,100.00

Change in net position 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,628.33

Total net position - July 1, 2022 as previously reported (15,488.81)

 Prior period adjustments

Total net position - July 1, 2022 as restated 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (15,488.81)

Total net position - June 30, 2023 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (6,860.48)

Custodial Funds



1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The government adopted the provisions of the following GASB Statements: 

GASB Statement No. 94 establishes the accounting and financial reporting related to Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships (PPP) and 

availability payment arrangements (APA).  Some PPPs meet the definition of a service concession arrangement (SCA). 

The Statement requires a transferor to recognize a receivable for installment payments and a deferred inflow of resources to account for 

a PPP in financial statements.  Governmental fund revenue would be recognized in a systematic and rational manner over the PPP term.

A. Reporting Entity

Discretely Presented Component Unit: Tow Rivers Authority

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted as applied to governmental units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles. Pronouncements adopted in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 and after are described below.

The significant accounting policies are described below.

The City of Hardin is a political subdivision of the State of Montana governed by a Mayor and Council duly elected by the registered voters of the 
City.  The City of Hardin utilizes the Mayor/Council form of government.  The accompanying financial statements present the primary government 
and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Each discretely presented component unit is 
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the government, but is 
financially accountable to or fiscally dependent upon the primary government or their omission from the financial statements would be misleading or 
incomplete.

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of changes in net position) report information on all 
of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units.  For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed 
from these statements.  Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately 
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.  Likewise, the primary government is reported 
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues.  
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function.  Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers who purchase, 
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function; and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function.  Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported 
instead as a general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from 
the government-wide statements.  Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported in separate columns in the 
fund financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 87 - The objective of this statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving  
accounting and financial reporting for leases; enhancing the comparability of financial statements between governments; and also enhancing the 
relevance, reliability, and consistency of information about the leasing activities of governments.

GASB Statement No. 96 establishes the accounting and financial reporting standards for Subscription-Based-Information Technology Arrangements 
(SBITAs). A SBITAs establishes the right-to-use an intangible asset and corresponding subscription liability.

GASB Statement No. 99 establishes or amends accounting and financial reporting requirements for specific issues related to leases, public-public 
and public-private partnerships (PPPs), and subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs).



1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - cont.

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

Street Maintenance Fund - This fund is for the City's Street Maintenance District. Assessments collected from taxpayers are 
used for the maintenance of the City's streets and right-of-ways within the district.

Tax Increment Finance District Fund - This fund is for debt service. Infrastructure and improvements were developed within the 
District from a Revenue Bond.

SID 120 Fund - This fund was created to finance streets, curbs and gutters in the Wagner Subidivion. It is financed by 
interfund loans.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

Solid Waste Enterprise Funds - These funds are used to account for operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses of 
the public solid waste utility systems (garbage collection and landfill). The funds are maintained on the full accrual basis of accounting.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

Custodial Funds - These funds are used to account for fiduciary activities not held in a trust or an equivalent arrangement.  These may include 
external investment pools (not held in trust) and custodial funds.

Custodial Funds - These funds are used to account for fiduciary activities not held in a trust or an equivalent arrangement.

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the 
proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they 
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only 
when payment is due.

Property taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as 
revenues of the current period.  Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to 
accrual as revenue of the current period.  All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the 
government.  Taxes and assessments receivable remaining uncollected at year end are offset by deferred tax/assessment revenue, a deferred inflow of 
resources, since they are not available to pay liabilities of the current period.

Both financial statements presented on the accrual basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis of accounting recognize grants and similar items, 
pending purely routine requirements such as filing reimbursement and/or progress reports, where all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 
been met, other than time requirements, as revenue in the current period.  Grants and similar items received prior to meeting time requirements but after all 
eligibility requirements are met, are recognized as deferred inflows of resources until use is required or first permitted.

General Fund - This is the government's primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those 
required to be accounted for in another fund.

Water Enterprise Fund - This fund is used to account for the operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses of the public water utility 
system.  The fund is maintained on the full accrual basis of accounting.

Sewer Enterprise Fund - This fund is used to account for the operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses of the public sewer utility 
system.  The fund is maintained on the full accrual basis of accounting.

Fiduciary Funds - Used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other 
governments, and/or other funds.  These may include trust or custodial funds.

American Rescue Plan Act - This fund is used to account for all funds received and expended related to the American Rescue Plan Act of 2022.



1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - cont.

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation - cont.

D. Assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, and fund balance/net position

1.  Deposits and investments

2.  Receivables and payables

3.  Inventories and prepaid items

4.  Restricted assets

Accounts receivables are shown net of allowance for uncollectible.  Property tax receivables are offset by a deferred inflow account since they are not available to 
pay liabilities of the current period.  All property tax levies are set at the time of the adoption of the annual budget.  The real estate taxes are payable in a) two 
installments, the first due by November 30 and the second by May 31, or b) in seven monthly payments (with application approval) due November 30, December 
31, January 31, February 28, March 31, April 30, and May 31.   Personal property taxes are assessed in April or May and are payable within 30 days of the 
issuance of the notice.

All inventories are valued at cost.  Inventories are recorded as expenditures when purchased (when consumed).

Certain payments reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial 
statements.

Certain assets of the enterprise funds are restricted for specific use as required by the bond indenture agreement covenants established with the issuance and 
sale of the revenue bonds representing a liability to the enterprise funds.  These restricted assets represent cash and cash equivalents restricted for use to repay 
current debt, establish a reserve for future debt and they establish a replacement and depreciation reserve for the purpose of replacing the system in the future.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing 
services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the 
enterprise funds and the government's internal service funds are charges to customer for services provided.  Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal 
service funds include the cost of providing such services and the depreciation of capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Allowable deposit and investment of public funds is governed by Title 7, Chapter 6, Part 2 of the Montana Code Annotated (MCA). Deposits and investments may 
include demand, time, and savings deposits, direct obligations of the United States Government, securities issued by agencies of the United States, investments 
in the Montana Short-Term Investment Program (STIP), repurchase agreements, and registered warrants.

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and have maturities at purchase date of 
three months or less.  The cash and cash equivalents (including restricted assets)  are considered to be cash on hand, demand, savings and time deposits, STIP 
and all short-term investments with original maturity dates of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments, with limited exceptions, are reported at fair value. Investments in nonparticipating certificates of deposit are reported at cost. Money market 
investments, including U.S. Treasury and Agency obligations, that mature within one year of acquisition are reported at amortized cost.  Fair value is defined as 
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  Fair 
value is determined annually, and requires the use of valuation techniques, a specific method or combination of methods using one or more of three approaches:  
market, cost or income approach.

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at fiscal year end are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" 
(i.e. the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e. the non-current portion of interfund loans).  Advances between funds are not 
available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) 
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program 
revenues.  Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 62. The Statement codifies the requirements of all pre-November 30, 1989 FASB 
and AICPA pronouncements that apply to state and local governments.  Both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements follow the guidance 
of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  Governments can continue to apply, as other accounting literature, post-November 30, 1989 FASB 
pronouncements that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, including Statement No. 62.  The government has adopted the provisions GASB 
Statement No. 62.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are payments-
in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the governments' enterprise functions and various other functions of the government.  Elimination of these charges 
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions.



CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - cont.

F. Assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, and fund balance/net position -cont.

5.  Capital assets

Assets Years
Buildings 40-50
Building improvements 10-40
Public domain infrastructure 20-50
System infrastructure 5-50
Vehicles 5-15
Equipment other than vehicles 5-20
Office equipment 5-20
Computer equipment 3-10

6. Deferred outflows of resources

Deferred outflows of resources not disclosed on the face of the financial statements are as follows:
Description:

7. Deferred inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources not disclosed on the face of the financial statements are as follows:
Description:

8.  Compensated absences

9.  Long-term obligations

A deferred inflow of resources is an acquisition of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period. The government-wide statement of net 
position, proprietary fund statement of net position, and governmental fund balance sheet report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  Deferred 
inflows or resources may be disclosed on the face of the financial statements, in the notes to the financial statements, or a combination of both.

As required by State law, the Local Government allows for employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave benefits.  Unused vacation leave 
benefits are 100 percent payable upon termination and 1/4 of unused sick leave benefits are payable upon termination.  Such amounts are reported as liabilities in 
the appropriate governmental or business-type activity in the government wide statements.  Expenditures for unpaid vacation and sick leave benefits are recorded 
when paid in the governmental funds on the modified accrual basis of accounting and expenses for vacation and sick leave benefits are recorded when accrued in 
the proprietary funds on the full accrual basis of accounting.

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported 
as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.  Bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bond issue using the effective interest method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the 
applicable bond premium or discount.  Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The 
face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts of 
debt issuance are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures.

Amount

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, curbs, etc.), are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets, other than infrastructure assets, are defined by the 
Local Government as assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of 4 years.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, is depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated 
useful lives:

Deferred outflow of resources is a financial statement element. A deferred outflow of resources is a consumption of net assets by the government that is applicable 
to a future reporting period.  The government-wide statement of net position, proprietary fund statement of net position, and governmental fund balance sheet report 
a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  Deferred outflows of resources may be disclosed on the face of the financial statements, in the notes to the 
financial statements, or a combination of both.

Amount



1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - cont.

D. Assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balance/net position - cont.

10.  Fund balance/Net Position

11. Net Position significantly impacted by Deferred Outflows or Deferred Inflows of Resources.

(Disclose here any deferrals that have a significant effect on Net Position)
Deferred Inflows of Resources related to intergovernmental financing of SID 120 and 121 are $1,019,463
Deferred Inflows of Resources related to the Tax Increment District are $2,291,796
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pensions were $214,794
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pensions were $77,665

2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A.

(Disclose here any element of that reconciliation which may require further analysis for the reader to understand)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay current-period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred outflows of resources in the funds
3,762,638.37$         Deferred property tax and assessment inflows

(25,357.02)              Change in the balances of deferred inflows related to pensions
144,498.65              Unrestricted net position from deferred outflows being greater than deferred inflows

3,881,780.00$         Total

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds
(26,174,647.54)$      Remaining principal balance of TIFD bonds payable and accrued interest
(1,060,871.18)          Net pension liability

(227,231.38)            OPEB liability
(109,331.20)            Compensated absences
(12,649.72)              Leases payable
17,986.50                Change in the deferred outflows related to pensions

(27,566,744.52)$      Total

B.

(Disclose here any element of that reconciliation which may require further analysis for the reader to understand)

See reconcililation of the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances of governmental funds 
to the statement of activities. No other differences to report.

C.

(Disclose here any element of that reconciliation which may require further analysis for the reader to understand)

No differences to report.

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54 requires presentation of governmental fund balances by specific purpose.  In the governmental 
fund financial statements, the fund balance classifications are presented either discretely or in the aggregate for the following fund balance classifications:  non-
spendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.  GASB Statement No. 63 resulted in presentation changes in the government-wide and proprietary fund 
financial statements.  Among other changes, equity is classified as 'net position'.  Components of net position are net investment in capital assets, restricted, and 
unrestricted.  See notes K and L for further information.

GASB 63 requires disclosure of any deferrals that have a significant impact on Net Position. 

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide statement of net position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental funds and net position - governmental activities as reported 
in the government-wide statement of net position.

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the 
government-wide statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total 
governmental funds and changes in net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities.

Explanation of certain differences between the proprietary fund statement of net position and the government-wide statement of net position.
The proprietary fund statement of net position includes a reconciliation between net position - total enterprise funds  and net position of business-type activities  as 
reported in the government-wide statement of net position.



3. COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations

No funds had an excess of actual expenditures over budgeted appropriations.

C. Deficit fund equity

Fund 2888 - Montana Main Street is to account for the expenditures related to the Main Street planning grant expenditures and
grant funds received from CDBG. This deficit fund balance is expected to be paid back in fiscal year 2023-2024 by the City.

Fund 3511 - SID 120 for streets, storm drains, sidewalks, curbs and gutters in the Wagner Subdivision. Interfund loans
account for the $685,068 deficit fund equity. The loans are to be paid back over 20 years with 3% interest.
Resolution 2047 passed September 2, 2014 authorized the interest at 3%. The intefund loans are anticipated to be paid of in 2034.

Fund 3512 - SID 121 for streets, storm drains, sidewalks, curbs and gutters in the Dorn Subdivision. Interfund loans
account for the $270,620 deficit fund equity. The loans are to be paid back over 20 years with 3% interest.
Resolution 2051 passed September 16, 2014 reduced the interest from 4% 3%. The intefund loans are anticipated to be paid of in 2033.

D Increases in property taxes

An increase(decrease) in property taxes due to (15-10-420 calculation), permissive and/or voted levies of $11.65, $34.96, and $69.90,
respectively for a home valued at $100,000, $300,000 and $600,000 is included in this fiscal year budget. 

Encumbrance accounting is not employed for the governmental funds.  Encumbrances (e.g. purchase orders, contracts) outstanding at year end are 
reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be reappropriated and 
honored during the subsequent fiscal year.

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

The Local Government adopts an annual budget for all of its funds in accordance with Title 7, Chapter 6, Part 40 of the Montana Code Annotated.  
Statute requires the adoption of a preliminary budget, public hearings on the preliminary budget and the final adoption of the budget by the later of 
the first Thursday after the first Tuesday in September or within 30 calendar days of the receipt of the certified taxable valuations from the 
Department of Revenue.  The Local Government must also submit a copy of the final budget to the Department of Administration by the later of 
October 1 or 60 days after the receipt of the taxable values from the Department of Revenue.

State statute limits the making of expenditures or incurring of obligations to the amount of the final budget as adopted or as amended.  Budget 
transfer and amendments are authorized by law, and in some instances, may require further public hearings.  Any budget amendments providing for 
additional appropriations must identify the fund reserves, unanticipated revenue, or previously unbudgeted revenue that will fund the appropriations.

Appropriations are created by fund, function, and activity and may further be detailed by department.  Expenditure limitations imposed by law extend 
to the department level which is identified as the legal level of budgetary control.

An increase in property taxes, including an increase authorized under 15-10-420(1), must be disclosed based on homes valued at $100,000, 
$300,000 and $600,000. 



4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Deposits and Investments

Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities
Fiduciary Funds

Discretely Presented Component Unit(s)
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments

The composition of cash and investments held at June 30 is as follows:

Cash on hand (petty cash)
Deposits

Investments
Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

1,115,462         1,115,462       
-                        -                      

116,439            116,439          
2,883,922         2,883,922       

156,286            156,286          

4,272,109$       4,272,109$     -$                       -$                       

NAV

13,577,186$     

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

At year end, the cash equivalents and investments are reported in the basic financial statements as follows:

 $                                   13,577,186 

 $                                     5,203,174 
 $                                     8,261,462 
 $                                        112,550 
 $                                   13,577,186 
 $                                                  -   

Total - Primary Government

Money Market
(other)

Total deposits

Certificates of Deposit (non-

Demand deposits
Savings accounts

6/30/2023
660$                                   

9,305,077$                         

Fair Value Measurements Using

(17,270)                               

5,160,125                           
4,162,222                           

Investments by fair value level

Investments measured at the net 

STIP
U.S. Treasury Bills
Mutual Funds

Total cash, deposits and 
investments

(investment by type)

Big Horn County Repurchase
Government Agencies
Cash and equivalents

Total investments by fair 
value level



4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - cont.

A Deposits and Investments -  cont.

Uninsured and Uncollateralized

State law requires that the City obtain securities for the uninsured portion of deposits as follows: (1) securities equal to 50% of such deposits if the institution in which the deposits 
are made has a net worth to total assets ratio of 6% or more, OR (2) securities equal to 100% if the ratio of net worth to total assets is less than 6%.  State law does not specify in 
whose custody or in whose name the collateral is to be held.  

The amount of collateral held for the City's deposits as of June 30, 2023: Exceeded the pledge amount required by State law.

Credit Risk - Investments
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. Credit risk is minimized by compliance with State law, which limits local 
governments to certain investment types.

The City's formal investment policy further limits exposure to credit risk by:

Stipulates that no more than 5% of the total portfolio may be invested in securities of any single issuer per each category with the exception of:

1. Where the issuer is the US Government, its Agencies and GSEs 2. Money market mutual funds 3. Local Government Investment Pools

Obligations of the U.S. Government or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government are not considered to have credit risk. Credit quality ratings of investments held by 
STIP, by major credit rating services, may be found in the MBOI's Annual Report: http://investmentmt.com/AnnualReportsAudits .

Limiting the types of investment securities that can be invested, as provided by Title 7, Chapter 6, MCA. The City's formal policy also

$9,050,897.85 Uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution.

Deposit and Investment Risks

Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits
The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be 
able to recover pledged (collateral) securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 

The City does not have a formal deposit policy that addresses custodial credit risk.

As of June 30th, $_________ of the government's bank balance of $__________ was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:
Uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent, but not in the depositor-
government's name.

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy, as follows, is based on the 
valuation inputs used to measure fair value.  Valuation techniques used maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

* Level 1 Inputs: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; these investments are valued using prices quoted in active markets.

* Level 2 Inputs: Significant other observable inputs; these investments are valued using quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices for identical or similar 
assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or other than quoted prices that are not observable.

 
* Level 3 Inputs: Significant unobservable inputs; these investments are valued using last available broker estimate.



4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A Deposits and Investments - cont.

Requiring diversification requirements in the "authorized investments" section of the investmetn policy, not allowing more than 5% to be invested in certain
types of securities, having a provision to sell securities prior to maturity and having a review policy for any securities that fall to a level below what is 
outlined in the policy.

None, all are invested in direct investments by the credit of the United States Government or its agencies.

Less Than 1 1-5 More 

 $      255,597  $        859,865  $         -   

         378,925         2,504,998 

         156,286 

B. Interfund receivables and payables

The due from/advance from other funds and due to/advance to other funds consist(s) of the following:

Account Number 131XXX/133XXX

Due from 3511 SID #120 Due to General Fund
Due from 3512 SID #121 Due to 2580 Curb & Gutter
Due from 2939 Rural Comm Dev Due to 2820 Gas Apportionment
Due from 7196 Flex Due to 4020 Capital Improvements
Due from Due to
Total Due From Other Funds Total Due To Other Funds965,372.07$                                               965,372.07$                                

273,074.08$                                               51,618.78$                                  

Account 211XXX/233XXX

685,068.08$                                               626,529.54$                                

Investment Type Fair Value
US Treasury Bills/ 
Notes

 $               1,115,462 

Government 
Agencies

                  2,883,922 

Cash and Equivalents                      156,286 

Investment Maturity (in Years)

Interest Rate Risk - Investments 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
Interest rate risk in minimized by compliance with State law which limits local governments to certain investment types.  Additionally, under State law, an investment 
may not have a maturity date exceeding 5 years, except when the investment is used in an escrow account for an advance refunding of an outstanding bond issue, or 
for investments of local government group self-insurance programs.  

The City's formal investment policy further limits exposure to interest rate risk by (describe formal policy)

Investment policy Section 7.1 outlines that the City will diversify the investment portfolio to avoid incurring unreasonable risks, both 
credit and interest rate, wh cih are inherent in over-investing in specific instruments, individual institutions or maturities.

Policy Section 7.2 states the City will not invest in securities that have a maturity more than 5 years from date of purchase, the 
maximum weighted average maturity will not be over 3.5 years, liquidity funds (defined as active bank deposits and money market 
securities wiht a maturity of less than 6 months) will comprise at least 20% of the portfolio.

As of June 30, 2023, the City had the following investments and maturities:

The formal investment policy limits exposure to custodial credit risk by:

Investments at June 30, 2023 were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows: 

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Custodial Credit Risk-Investments

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the 
value of investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Investments are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are 
uninsured, are not registered in the name of the government, and are held by either a) the counterparty or b) the counterparty’s trust department or agent, but not in 
the name of their name.  

102,403.07$                                
184,820.68$                                

6,629.91$                                                   
600.00$                                                      



CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - cont.

C. Capital assets
Governmental Activities capital asset activity for the fiscal year was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 593,907.05 0.00 (9,170.00) 584,737.05
Construction in progress 0.00 21,800.69 0.00 21,800.69
Total capital assets not being depreciated 593,907.05 21,800.69 (9,170.00) 606,537.74

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 1,306,194.89 5,042.79 0.00 1,311,237.68
Intangibles/works of art 12,000.00 0.00 0.00 12,000.00
Improvements other than buildings 226,267.63 208,351.00 0.00 434,618.63
Machinery and equipment 2,030,422.05 57,999.00 0.00 2,088,421.05
Infrastructure 16,624,941.42 0.00 0.00 16,624,941.42
Total capital assets being depreciated 20,199,825.99 271,392.79 0.00 20,471,218.78

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (469,878.88) 0.00 (30,714.00) (500,592.88)
Intangibles/works of art 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Improvements other than buildings (91,560.00) 0.00 (15,342.00) (106,902.00)
Machinery and equipment (1,300,982.37) 0.00 (113,845.51) (1,414,827.88)
Infrastructure (4,155,367.00) 0.00 (424,222.00) (4,579,589.00)
Total accumulated depreciation (6,017,788.25) 0.00 (584,123.51) (6,601,911.76)

Total capital assets being depreciated 14,182,037.74 271,392.79 (584,123.51) 13,869,307.02

Governmental activities capital assets net 14,775,944.79 293,193.48 (593,293.51) 14,475,844.76

Governmental Activities Leased - Right-to-use Capital Assets:
Leased Capital assets not being amortized 0.00
Land - Leased RTU 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Construction in progress - Leased RTU 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total capital assets not being amortized 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Leased Capital assets being amortized
Buildings Leased-RTU 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Intangibles/Subscription IT Leased-RTU 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Improvements other than buildings Leased-RTU 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Machinery and equipment Leased RTU 21,091.45 0.00 0.00 21,091.45
Infrastructure 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total capital assets being amortized 21,091.45 0.00 0.00 21,091.45

Less accumulated amortization for:
Buildings and system Leased-RTU 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Intangibles/Sub. IT Leased-RTU 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Improvements other than bldgs Leased-RTU 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Machinery and equipment Leased-RTU (4,218.29) 0.00 (4,218.29) (8,436.58)
Infrastructure Leased-RTU 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total accumulated amortization (4,218.29) 0.00 (4,218.29) (8,436.58)

Total leased assets being amortized 16,873.16 0.00 (4,218.29) 12,654.87

Governmental leased assets net 16,873.16 0.00 (4,218.29) 12,654.87

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
  General government 11,937.20
  Public safety 101,275.60
  Public works 347,344.00
  Public health 0.00
  Social and economic services 0.00
  Culture and recreation 28,763.00
  Housing and community development 99,022.00
  Conservation of natural resources 0.00
   Uncategorized 0.00

588,341.80Total depreciation/amortization expense - governmental activities



CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - cont.

C. Capital assets - cont.
Business-type activities capital asset activity for the fiscal year was as follows:

Business-type activities:
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated 0.00
Land 463,193.00 463,193.00
Construction in progress 16,237.02 310,697.14 326,934.16
Total capital assets not being depreciated 479,430.02 310,697.14 0.00 790,127.16

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and system 139,635.76 139,635.76
Intangibles/works of art 0.00
Improvements other than buildings 1,980,909.42 1,980,909.42
Machinery and equipment 2,610,235.87 77,250.00 2,687,485.87
Source of supply 0.00
Pumping plant 0.00
Treatment plant 6,150,552.58 6,150,552.58
Transmission and distribution 9,783,412.62 9,783,412.62
General plant 447,841.94 447,841.94
Total capital assets being depreciated 21,112,588.19 77,250.00 0.00 21,189,838.19

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and system (70,352.00) (3,480.00) (73,832.00)
Intangibles/works of art 0.00
Improvements other than buildings (1,844,245.74) (113,553.79) (1,957,799.53)
Machinery and equipment (1,997,753.92) (68,596.00) (2,066,349.92)
Source of supply 0.00
Pumping plant 0.00
Treatment plant (3,771,497.81) (223,323.00) (3,994,820.81)
Transmission and distribution (4,298,932.58) (204,221.00) (4,503,153.58)
General plant (415,757.94) (6,656.00) (422,413.94)
Total accumulated depreciation (12,398,539.99) (619,829.79) 0.00 (13,018,369.78)

Total capital assets being depreciated 8,714,048.20 (542,579.79) 0.00 8,171,468.41

Business-type activities capital assets net 9,193,478.22 (231,882.65) 0.00 8,961,595.57

0.00

Business-type activities Leased Right-to-Use Capital Assets:
Leased RTU Capital assets not being amortized 0.00
Land Leased RTU 0.00
Construction in progress Leased RTU 0.00
Total capital assets not being amortized 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Leased RTU Capital assets being Amortized
Buildings and system Leased RTU 0.00
Intangibles/Subscription IT Leased RTU 0.00
Improvements other than buildings Leased RTU 0.00
Machinery and equipment Leased RTU 0.00
Infrastructure Leased RTU 0.00
Total capital assets being amortized 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Less accumulated amortization for:
Buildings and system Leased RTU 0.00
Intangibles/Subscription IT Leased RTU 0.00
Improvements other than buildings Leased RTU 0.00
Machinery and equipment Leased RTU 0.00
Infrastructure Leased RTU 0.00
Total accumulated amortization 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total capital assets being amortized 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Leased RTU capital assets net 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
Business-type activities:
Water
Sewer 191,702.00
Solid Waste - Collection 3,779.00
Landfill 174,345.79
Name 0.00
Non-major funds 0.00

619,829.79

Balance check with page 18:

Balance check with page 18:

250,003.00

Total depreciation/amortization expense - business-type activities



D.

Asset Retirement Obligation (ARO)
The City of Hardin does not have any obligations related to asset retirement.

Minority share of an ARO

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Certain Asset Retirement Obligations (ARO)

The City of Hardin is not a party to a minority asset retirement obligation.



4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - cont.

E. Property leased to others

Whom leased to Duration of lease Annual payment

The City of Hardin does not have any leases receivable as of June 30, 2023. The above referenced lease is considered a 
short-term lease that is expensed and revenue received in the reporting period.

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Chamber of Commerce Depot (BNSF lease to City) sub-lease 2,118

The following represents property owned by the local government which is leased to other governments, organizations, or individuals. 

Description of leased 
property

Leases receivable:



State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its landfill sites when it

stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty

years after closure. Although closure and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date

that the landfill stops accepting waste, the City reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care

costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each period. The

$1,264,245 reported as landfill closure and postclosure care liability at June 30, 2023, represents the

cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 58 percent of the estimated capacity of the

landfill Class II cell and 27 percent of the Coal Ash cells. The City will recognize the remaining

estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of $1,601,057 as the remaining estimated capacity is

filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and postclosure care in

2023. The City expects to close the landfill Class II cell in 36 years in the year 2059 and the Coal Ash

cell in 40 years in the year 2045. Actual cost may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or
changes in regulations.

The Department of Environmental Quality determined that even though the solid waste and ash

disposal areas are regulated under a single license, the costs relating to closure and post-closure

should be kept separate since the maintenance of the areas are significantly different.

Balance Accrual Balance

June 30, 2022 Amount June 30, 2023

Class II cell 848,317 71,025 919,342
Coal Ash cell 451,098 (106,195) 344,903

Landfill Liability 1,299,415 1,264,245

Net Change in Landfill Liability (35,170)

Trust Amounts    
June 30, 2023

Liability      June 
30, 2023 Asset less Liability

Class II cell 759,126 919,342 (160,216)                    
Coal Ash cell 511,142 344,903 166,239                      

Totals 1,270,268 1,264,245 6,023                          

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022

LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS

The City is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual contributions to a trust to finance closure
and postclosure care. The City is in compliance with these requirements. In fiscal year 2023, $53,924 was paid into these
irrevocable trusts. As of June 30, 2023, a total of $1,224,483 are held for these purposes and are reported as restricted
cash and investments on the Statement of Net Position. The City expects that future inflation costs will be paid from
interest earnings on the annual contributions. However, if interest earnings are inadequate or additional post-closure care
requirements are determined (due to changes in technology or applicable laws or regulations, for example), these costs
may need to be covered by charges to future landfill users.

Annual contributions to the trusts for closure and post-closure are determined by time to closure and post-closure of each
cell and the cost for each as determined by an engineer. 



4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - cont.

F. Long-term Obligations

Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2023, are as follows:

Balance at Balance at Due within
July 1, 2022 Increases Decreases June 30, 2023 One Year

20,920,000$  -$             -$              20,920,000$     7,660,000$     
Revenue bond accrued interest 4,576,250$    678,398$     5,254,648$      5,254,648$     

95,853$         13,478$       109,331$         27,333$          
Leases 16,662$         -$             4,013$          12,649$           4,113$            
Net pension liability 562,230$       498,641$     -$              1,060,871$      -$                

210,385$       16,846$       -$              227,231$         -$                
$26,381,380 $1,207,363 $4,013 $27,584,730 $12,946,094

Governmental Revenue 
Bonds Issue Date Original Term

Original 
Amount Interest Rate

Accreted 
Interest

Principal 
Balance June 

30, 2019
Tax Increment Industrial 

Infrastructure 
Development Revenue 

Bonds 9/1/2006 25 years $12,600,953 6% $8,319,047 $20,920,000

Tax Increments Financing District (TIF) Revenue Bonds - Governmental Activities

Accrued Interest:

Fiscal Year Scheduled Interest Actual Accumulate
2019 1,307,500$                 $1,282,852 $24,648
2020 1,307,500$                 $0 $1,332,148
2021 1,307,500$                 $0 $2,639,648
2022 1,307,500$                 $0 $3,947,148
2023 1,307,500$                 $0 $5,254,648

Fiscal Year Principal Interest
2024 7,660,000$                 $5,254,648
2025 1,140,000$                 $1,307,500
2026 1,210,000$                 $1,307,500
2027 1,285,000$                 $1,307,500
2028 1,365,000$                 $1,307,500

2029-2032 8,260,000$                 $5,883,750
20,920,000$               $16,368,398

Tax Increment Financing District (TIFD) Bond Default: In 2013, the parent company of Rocky Mountain Power, Inc. and its affiliates filed for
bankruptcy. As a result of the bankruptcy the market value and resulting taxable value of the power plant dropped significantly. The remaining
taxable values of property within the Tax Increment Financing District (TIFD) are insufficient to allow the Schools, County and City to assess
sufficient taxes in incremental taxes to meet the debt obligation of the TIFD bonds.

The Hardin Industrial Infrastructure District is a Tax Increments Financing District (TIFD). The largest entity in the District is Rocky Mountain
Power, Inc. Under MCA 15-24-3001 Rocky Mountain Power, Inc. was exempt from property taxes until January of 2015. In April 2012, Rocky
Mountain Power, Inc. filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy (reorganization). Rocky Mountain Power has been sold and a write down of the property
occurred which resulted in a large decrease in value. The decrease in value will reduce the taxes assessed that could be used for debt service.
Arbitrage-Rebate: Arbitrage is the profit made from investing of every yielding tax-exempt bond proceeds in higher yielding taxable investments.
Arbitrage-rebate payments are required if the City earns more on the investments holding Bond proceeds than the bond yield. Each year, the
City is required to have an Arbitrage-Rebate analysis for the TIF Revenue Bonds. As of June 30, 2018, there is no arbitrage-rebate liability for the
TIFD bonds.

Revenue bonds - TIF District

Total OPEB liability
Total

In September 2006, the City issued $12,600,953 of revenue bonds, with an interest accretion phase of $8,319,047 for total bond principal of 
$20,920,000, to finance all or a portion of the costs of construction and installation of certain industrial infrastructure projects in relation to Rocky 
Mountain Power Inc. that operate a 116MW coal-fired electric generation station and related facilities. The City was required to begin making 
scheduled principal and interest payments on March 1, 2015. The bonds are secured by a lien on the Tax Increment Financing District (TIFD). The 
City has not received sufficient revenues to pay the full amount of interest as it comes due, nor any of the principal amounts. The TIFD revenue 
bonds are considered to be in default because the principal and full interest payments have not been paid as scheduled.

Because the full amount of interest was only paid for the first interest payment, the interest amount due is $653,750 semi-annually or $1,307,500
annually. When the full interest payment is not made, the next scheduled interest payment becomes the same as the last full amount paid.
Therefore, the annual interest amount due remains at the most recent scheduled interest payment that was paid on time. A schedule of interest
payments and accumulated accrued interest is as follows:

TIFD Bonds Scheduled Amortization Schedule: Future principal and interest payments are illustrated as follows assuming that the full amount of
interest due continues to not be paid on time:

Compensated absences

Governmental activities:

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

During the fiscal year the local government issued $60,317 of new revenue bonds  of which $0 was recognized in the governmental funds and 
$60,317 was recognized in the business-type funds.



4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - cont.

F. Long-term Obligations

Balance at Balance at Due within
July 1, 2022 Increases Decreases June 30, 2023 One Year

Business-type activities:
Revenue bonds 1,409,455$    60,317$       292,000$      1,177,772$      169,000$        
Compensated Absences 117,022$       13,111$       -$                  130,133$         32,652$          
Net Pension Liability - PERS 625,120$       -$                358,563$      266,557$         -$                   
Total OPEB Liability 241,386$       -$                22,582$        218,804$         -$                   
Landfill Closure & Post-closure 1,299,415$    -$                35,170$        1,264,245$      -$                   

$3,692,398 $73,428 $708,315 $3,057,511 $201,652

Sewer Revenue bonds are due in semi-annual installments with terms of 20 years. The Landfill's Revenue bond is due in semi-annual
installments with a term of 15 years. The covenants of the bonds require that funds be set aside in reserve for the delinquency of the debt. The
required reserve is the highest amount of principal and interest for any annual debt service of the length of the bond. The amounts reserved as 
of June 30, 2023 are $157,087 for Sewer and $94,919 for Landfill.
Revenue Bonds contain various restrictive covenants. The Systems are to provide gross income and revenues adequate to pay the reasonable
and current expenses of operating and maintaining the Systems. They are to produce in each Fiscal Year Net Revenues in excess of such
current expenses, equal to at least 110% of the maximum amount of principal and interest payable in any subsequent Fiscal Year. The cash
flows indicate that the City is maintaining those covenants. The City is now also required to deposit net revenues of the system into a  
Revenue Bond Account each month. This amount is equal to not less than the sum of one-sixth of the interest to become due within the next 
six months and one-twelfth of the principal to become due within the next twelve months with respect to all Bonds payable semiannually.
*The 2021 Series A bonds will be forgiven once the City has delivered the Compliance Certificate and Request to the DNRC in form and 
substance satisfactory to the DNRC and DEQ. The Series 2021B bond has $8,928 remaining to be drawn.

Business-type bonds: Issue Date Term Interest Rate Original Amount Retired Balance

Sewer Series 2003 6/27/2005 20 years 2.25% 1,247,000$   (1,247,000)$     -$                
Sewer Series 2010B 1/15/2010 20 years 0.75% 359,300        (237,300)          122,000          
Sewer Series 2010C 5/11/2010 20 years 3.00% 557,000        (309,000)          248,000          
Sewer Series 2021A* 4/22/2021 20 years 0.00% 192,700        * 192,700          
Sewer Series 2021B 4/22/2021 20 years 2.50% 584,000        (58,000)            526,000          

Sub-total Sewer Bonds 2,940,000$   (1,851,300)$     1,088,700$     

Sewer Series 2021B 4/22/2021 Undrawn amount as of 6/30/2023 (8,928)$           

Landfill Series 2009 6/19/2009 15 years 2.25% 1,127,000$   (1,035,000)$     92,000$          
Total Business-type funds 4,067,000$   (2,886,300)$     1,171,772$     

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2024 77,000$                      21,066$         9,200$         1,553$          86,200$           22,619$          
2025 79,000$                      19,266$         -$                -$                  79,000$           19,266$          
2026 81,000$                      17,414$         -$                -$                  81,000$           17,414$          
2027 82,000$                      15,504$         -$                -$                  82,000$           15,504$          
2028 86,000$                      13,560$         -$                -$                  86,000$           13,560$          

2029-2033 237,000$                    43,975$         -$                -$                  237,000$         43,975$          
Thereafter 254,000$                    26,225$         -$                -$                  254,000$         26,225$          

896,000$                    157,010$       9,200$         1,553$          905,200$         158,563$        

Business-type Activities
Sewer Landfill
Bonds Bonds Total

Total



4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - cont.

G. Long-term Obligations (cont.)

The future long-term lease payment schedules at fiscal year-end are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2023 -$                                -$                   -$                -$                  -$                    -$                   
2024 -$                                -$                   -$                -$                  -$                    -$                   
2025 -$                                -$                   -$                -$                  -$                    -$                   
2026 -$                                -$                   -$                -$                  -$                    -$                   

2027-2031 -$                                -$                   -$                -$                  -$                    -$                   
Thereafter -$                                -$                   -$                -$                  -$                    -$                   

-$                                -$                   -$                -$                  -$                    -$                   

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2023 -$                                -$                   -$                -$                  -$                    -$                   
2024 -$                                -$                   -$                -$                  -$                    -$                   
2025 -$                                -$                   -$                -$                  -$                    -$                   
2026 -$                                -$                   -$                -$                  -$                    -$                   

2027-2031 -$                                -$                   -$                -$                  -$                    -$                   
Thereafter -$                                -$                   -$                -$                  -$                    -$                   

-$                                -$                   -$                -$                  -$                    -$                   

Business-type Activities

The local government's outstanding leases related to governmental activities of $XXX,XXX contains the following provisions:

Leases Leases Leases

Disclose the provision here - for example the date the agreement was executed. There are or are not variable payment components of the lease. 
The lease liability is measured at what discount rate. As a result of the lease, the local government has recorded a right-to-use asset with a net 
book value of $    at the end of the fiscal year. The right-to-use assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the related leases. Is 
there a cancellation or extension clause in the lease.

Governmental Activities

The local government's outstanding leases related to business-type activities of $XXX,XXX contains the following provisions:

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

During the fiscal year the City entered into agreements to lease certain equipment. The lease agreements qualify as other than short-term leases 
under GASB 87 and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of their inception.  
For more information see GASB 87.

Disclose the provision here - for example the date the agreement was executed. There are or are not variable payment components of the lease. 
The lease liability is measured at what discount rate. As a result of the lease, the local government has recorded a right-to-use asset with a net 
book value of $    at the end of the fiscal year. The right-to-use assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the related leases. Is 
there a cancellation or extension clause in the lease.

Leases Leases

-34 B-

Leases



4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - cont.

H.

a.

Service Concession Arrangements (SCAs)

b

Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements

Disclose Specific PPP arrangements including applicable capital assets or intangible assets and terms of 
operation.  Include related deferred inflows and outflows of resources

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Include a general description of the SCA including management's objectives for entering into the SCA and, 
if applicable, the status of the project during the construction period; (b)amounts recognized in the 
financial statements related to SCAs; (c) terms that could change future inflows and outflows, such as 
guarantees or commitments; and (d) the nature and extent of rights retained by the transferor or granted to 
the operator. 



4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - cont.

J. OPEB Disclosure - Alternative Measurement Method

Post Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

Employees covered by benefit terms:  As of June 30, 2023, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 0
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 0
Active employees 20

20

Turnover rate Standard turnover assumptions per GASB 75, paragraph 225e
Discount rate 4.11%
Salary increases 3.50% average, including inflation
20-year Amortization Factor 18.9249
Participation 40.0% of future retirees are assumed to elect medical coverage
Mortality - Healthy For the Public Employees' Retirement System, Mortality is assumed to follow the

RP2000 Healthy Combined Mortality Table projected to 2015 using Scale AA.
Mortality - Disabled For the Public Employees' Retirement System, Mortality is assumed to follow the

RP2000 Healthy Combined Mortality Table with with no projections.
Aging Factors Aging factors are used to adjust the per capita claims cost. Percentages shown

below age 65 reduce the claims cost. Percentages shown above age 65 increase
the claims cost.
Attained Age Medical
<65 4.0% for each age
65+ 3.0% for each age

Retiree contributions The following retiree contributions are a weighted average of all retiree
contributions for the period July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022:

Spouse
Before Medicare Eligility $11,960 $11,930
After Medicare Eligibility $7,663 $8,400

Future retiree contribution increases match health care cost trend rates.

Because the local government has fewer than 100 employees (active and inactive) that are provided with OPEB through the plan, the local government qualifies to use the 
alternative measurement method for calculating the OPEB liability.

Benefits provided:  The OPEB plan provides healthcare insurance benefits for retirees, eligible spouses and dependents as defined in MCA 2-18-704.  Eligible retirees are 
required to pay the full amount of their health insurance premiums.

Total OPEB liability :  As of June 30, 2023, the City's total OPEB liability is $481,575 and was determined by using the alternative measurement method as of June 30, 2022 
(valuation or calculation date) and was rolled forward to a measurement date of June 30, 2023, utilizing update procedures incorporating alternative measurement method 
assumptions.

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs:  The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2023 was determined using the following assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods 
included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Medical and Prescription Drug Retiree/Surviving Spouse

Plan description :   As required by State law (MCA 2-18-704), the [County/City/Town] allows its retiring employees with at least five years of service and who are at least 50 years 
of age, along with their eligible spouses and dependents, the option to continue participation in the local government's group health insurance plan until the retiree becomes 
eligible for Medicare coverage.  This option creates a defined benefit other post-employment benefits plan (OPEB) since retirees are typically older than the average age of 
active plan participants and therefore receive a benefit of lower insurance rates.  The OPEB plan is a single-employer defined benefit plan administered by the 
[County/City/Town].  No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 75.  The [County/City/Town] covers OPEB costs when they 
come due, on a pay-as-you-go basis.

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) NOTE DISCLOSURE



4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - cont.

J. OPEB Disclosure - Alternative Measurement Method

Healthcare cost trend rate Plan Year
2022* 9.0%
2023 7.0%
2024 6.5%
2025 6.0%
2026 5.9%
2027 5.7%
2028 5.6%
2029 5.5%
2030 5.3%

2031-2047 5.2%
2048 5.1%

2049-2050 5.0%
2051-2053 4.9%
2054-2056 4.8%
20572062 4.7%
2063-2069 4.6%

2070 4.5%
2071 4.4%
2072 4.3%

2073-2074 4.2%
2075 4.1%

2076-2077 4.0%
2078 3.9%

2079+ 3.8%

Changes in the total OPEB liability
Total OPEB

Liability

Balance at June 30, 2022 451,771$              
Changes for the year:

Service cost 64,103$                
Interest 20,738$                
Changes in benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience -$                      
Changes in assumptions or other inputs (35,304)$               
Benefit payments (19,733)$               

Net changes 29,804$                
Balance at June 30, 2023 481,575$              

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(3.11%) (4.11%) (5.11%)

Total OPEB liability 529,089$                    481,575$           438,383$              

Healthcare 
1% Decrease Cost Trend 1% Increase

(8.00%) Rates* (10.00%)

Total OPEB liability 419,184$                    481,575$           557,927$              

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate:  The following presents the total OPEB liability reported by the City, as well as how that liability would 
change if the discount rate used to calculate the OPEB liability were decreased or increased by 1 percent:

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates:  The following presents the total OPEB liability reported by the City, as well as how that 
liability would change if the healthcare trend rate used in projecting benefit payments were to decrease or increase by 1 percent:

(* See the actuarial assumptions and other inputs disclosure above to determine the healthcare cost trends used to calculate the OPEB liability.)

OPEB expense and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB:  For the year ended June 30, 2023, the City recognized OPEB expense 
of $29,804.  The City does not report deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB as there were no differences between expected and actual 
experience or changes in assumptions performed under the alternative measurement method.  In addition, since the City records costs as they come due, there are deferred 
outflow of resources for contributions to the OPEB plan.

Medical and Prescription Drugs



4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - cont.

Total Pension Liability

As of the reporting date: 
Employer's Total Pension Liability
Employer's Pension Expense

Recognition of Deferred Inflows and Outflows:

Plan Description

1) Service pension to a member who, by reason of service, has become entitled to a service pension;
2) a pension to a member who has become permanently maimed or disabled;
3) a benefit or allowance to a member who has suffered a permanent disabling injury;
4) a benefit or allowance to a member who has contracted a permanent disabling sickness;
5) a benefit, not exceeding $750, to defray the funeral expenses of a member;
6) benefits to the surviving spouse, child, or children or a deceased member;

8) the return of employee contributions as provided in Title 19, Chapter 18 of MCA.

2023 0
2024 0

Thereafter 0

The use of the disability and pension fund is outlined in 19-18-203 MCA and payments can be made for the following:

7) premiums on a blanket policy covering the members of the fire department and providing for payment of compensation in case of death or injury 
to any such member:

2020 0
2021 0
2022 0

For the Reporting 
Year ended         

June 30:

Amount of deferred outflows and 
deferred inflows recognized in future 
years as an increase or (decrease) to 

Pension Expense

Changes in 
Assumptions 0 0
Actual vs Expected 
Investment Earnings 0 0
Employer 
Contributions 0 0

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the employer's contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date will be recognized as a reduction of the NPL beginning in the year ended June 30, 2023.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in Pension Expense as follows:

At June 30, the employer reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the Fire Department Relief 
Association:

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources

Actual vs. Expected 
Return 0 0

The Total Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2023; with an update procedure to roll forward the TPS to the 
measurement date of June 30, 2023.

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

GASB 73 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets that are not within the scope of GASB Statement 68

The City of Hardin Fire Department Relief Association is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan.  The Association was formed according to 
19-18-102 MCA.  The assets of the Fire Department Disability and Pension Fund are not in a trust or an equivalent arrangement.  The accumulated 
assets do not offset the liabilities of the pension and disability plan per GASB 73.  The employer should recognize the total pension liability (TPL) as 
its pension liability.



Contributions to the fund are outlined in 19-18-501 MCA and include:

3) the proceeds of the tax levy provided for in 19-18-504 MCA;
4) all money received from the state, including those payments provided for in 19-18-512; and
5) all interest and other income earned from the investment of the fund.

The number of employees covered by the benefit terms include:
22

0
19

Sensitivity Analysis

The table represents the Total Pension Liability calculated using the discount rate as well as what the TPL would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher than the current rate.

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase

Total Pension 
Liability 109800 122000 134200

A member of a pure volunteer fire department who has served 20 years or more as an active member of the fire department is entitled to the 
benefits provided regardless of age.

Pensions to a surviving spouse or children of a deceased volunteer firefighter may not exceed the amount provided for as a service pension for a 
volunteer firefighter under 19-18-602(3) MCA.

In the case of volunteer firefighters, the pension may be set by the board of trustees of the association, but may not exceed $225 a month, except 
that the pension may be set by the board of trustees of an association and a city at an amount not to exceed $300 a month if the association's fund 
is soundly funded as provided in 19-18-503 MCA.  Disability pension provided to volunteer firefighters may not exceed $125 a month.

1) Inactive members currently receiving benefits:
2) Inactive members eligible for benefits but not receiving benefits:

3) Active employees:

Service pensions are paid to a member who elects to retire from active service after having completed 20 years or more of active duty and who has 
reached 50 years of age as a fully-paid member of a partly paid and partly volunteer fire department of a city or town in which the association was 
formed in as outlined 19-18-602 MCA.

1) all bequests, fees, gifts, emoluments, donations or money from other sources given or paid to the fund, except as otherwise designated by the 
donor;

2) a monthly contribution to the fund by each paid or part-paid member of the association amounting to 6% of the member's regular monthly salary;



CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - cont.

J. Pending Litigation

Potential of loss* (Mark with X)
Case Damages requested 1 2 3

   *The potential for loss
1 - Probable - The future event or events are likely to occur.
2 - Reasonably possible - The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than likely.
3 - Remote - The chance of the future event or events occurring is slight.

I. Restatements/prior period adjustments

Fund Amount Reason for adjustment
Restated cash amount in streets capital to police capital fund
Restated cash added to police capital from streets capital

Total 0.00

The following is a list of pending litigation against the entity and the amount of damages claimed by the plaintiff.  Indicate in the potential of loss 
column if all or a portion of the damages will be covered by insurance if the entity suffers a loss.

During the current fiscal year, adjustments relating to prior year's transactions were made to the fund balance and net position accounts.  The 
following is a schedule of these adjustments:

4043 (1.37)
4024 1.37



4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - cont.

K. 1. Fund Balance Disclosure:

Non-spendable includes fund balances that cannot be spent either because it is not in spendable
form or because of legal or contractual constraints.

Restricted includes fund balances that are constrained for specific purposes which are externally
imposed by providers such as creditors, or amounts constrained due to law, constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are
internally imposed by the government through formal action of the highest level of decision-
making authority and does not lapse at year-end.

Assigned includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for a specific purpose
that are neither considered restricted or committed. 

Fund balances may be assigned by the following designated individuals, positions or bodies:
a) Council; b) Mayor; c) Finance Officer; d) Public Works Director

By taking the following action: a) approve a motion or b) designaiton

Unassigned fund balance includes positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not
been classified within the above mentioned classifications. Negative fund balances in other
governmental funds will be reported as unassigned.

2.  Net Position

K. Spending policy:

1st: Restricted
2nd: Committed
3rd: Assigned
4th: Unassigned

1st: Restricted
2nd: Committed 
3rd: Assigned

The Local Government receives inflows from revenue and other financial sources from numerous sources for use in the Special Revenue, Debt 
Service and Capital Project funds.  These funds will expend those resources on the specific purpose of the fund.  The intention of this spending 
policy is to identify the expenditure order resource categories for the Funds.  Resources will be categorized according to Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) for state and local governments.  When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available in these funds, the 
following spending policy will apply or the default will apply is a policy has not been adopted.

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Statement No. 54, requires presentation of governmental fund balance by specific purpose.  In the 
basic financial statements, the fund balance classifications are presented in the aggregate for the following fund balance classifications:  non-
spendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements report net position. Net position represents the difference between assets plus 
deferred outflow of resources and liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources.  Components of net position are net investment in capital assets, 
restricted and unrestricted.  Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation plus capital related deferred 
outflows of resources, less outstanding balance of any related borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets and 
capital related deferred inflows of resources.  Restricted net position is defined above (see J1), and unrestricted net position is any portion of net 
position that does not meet the definition of net investment in capital assets and restricted.

The Local Government receives inflows from revenue and other financial sources from numerous sources for use in the General Fund.  The Fund will 
expend those resources on multiple purposes of the local government.  The intention of this spending policy is to identify the expenditure order of 
resource categories for the General Fund.  Resources will be categorized according Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for state and 
local governments.  When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available in the General Fund, the following spending policy will apply or the 
default will apply is a policy has not been adopted:



4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - cont.

L. Minimum Fund Balance Policy:

M. Major Special Revenue Funds:

The purpose of each major special revenue fund and revenue source is listed below:

Major Special Revenue Fund:

N. The Non-spendable Fund Balance is comprised of the following:

Amounts reported as inventory or prepaid items include the following:
Inventory consisting of gravel, sand, ice slicer, pipes, garbage cans, pumps, meters and street signs

Amounts legally or contractually required to remain intact include the following:

Amounts not in cash form such as the long-term portion of loans receivable include the following:
Amounts due from interfund loans to SID #120 & #121

O. Committed Fund Balance:

The Government committed fund balance by taking the following action:

P. Restricted Fund Balance:

Fund balance is restricted by:

Capital Projects/Acquisition 330,217.29               15-70-101 MCA
Debt Service 472,818.64               venue Bond Requireme

Public Works 351,784.14               15-70-101 MCA
Housing & Community Dev 25,811.42                 es 1468-State Complian

Public Works 133,448.42               7-12-2202, 2203 & 4331
Public Works 491,883.56               7-12 part 44 MCA

Major Purpose: Amount: Source of Restriction:
General Government 4,819.89                   2-18-703 MCA

Public Works 80,300.00                 Resolution 1943

Major Purpose: Amount: Action Taken:
General Government 80,300.00                 Resolution 1943

2992 American Rescue Plan Act COVID Relief Funds
2501 Street Maintenance Assessments placed on tax rolls

CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

The Local Government does not have a minimum fund balance policy in place.

Revenue Source:



CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - cont.

Q. Tax Abatements

The City of Hardin has not entered into any tax abatement agreements.



CITY OF HARDIN
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

5. BOC SUPPLEMENT SCHEDULE
1. Intergovernmental expenditures - Of the expenditures reported, detail below those expenditures made to other governments on a cost-

sharing basis.

Amount - Omit Cents
Purpose Paid to local governments Paid to state

M01

Airports
M52

Libraries
M32

Health
M12

Local schools
M79 L79

Welfare
M89 L89

Other

2. Salaries and Wages - Report here the total salaries and wages paid to all employees of your Amount - Omit cents
government before deductions for social security, retirement, etc.  Include also salaries and wages
paid to employees of any utility owned and operated by your government.

3. Debt outstanding
A.  Long-term debt outstanding, issued and retired

Amount -- Omit cents
Bonds Outstanding Bonds during the fiscal year Outstanding as of 6/30/2023

7/1/2022 Issued Retired General Obligation Revenue bonds
19A 29A 39A 41A 44A

Water utility
19X 29X 39X 41X 44X

Sewer utility
19C 29C 39C 41C 44C

Gas utility
19B 29B 39B 41B 44B

Landfill utility
19X 29X 39X 41X 44X

All other

B. Short-term debt
Type Beginning of fiscal year End of fiscal year

61V 64V

Registered warrants

Contracts payable

Notes payable

   Totals

4. Cash balances by fund type - Cash may consist of cash on hand, checking, savings, repurchase agreements, certificates of deposit, 
securities, or any other cash related item.

Type of funds Amount -- Omits cents
W61

General fund (1000) 1336121
W61

Special revenue funds (2000) 2754138
W01

Debt Service funds (3000) 473853
W31

Capital projects funds (4000) 639063
W61

Enterprise funds (5000) 8261462

Internal services funds (6000) 0

Trust and custodial funds (7000) 174932

Permanent funds (8000) 0
Total cash all funds 13639568

Form BOC-1

1,931,639

0

1226455 60317 207000 1079772

Purpose

0

92000183000

0

91000



REQUIRED

SUPPLEMENTARY

INFORMATION



CITY OF HARDIN
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET

Account ACTUAL POSITIVE
Number Description ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes 565,055.00 595,166.00 596,285.40 1,119.40

314140    Local option taxes 0.00 0.00

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses 7,200.00 7,200.00 6,285.00 (915.00)

322020   General business licenses 23,100.00 24,150.00 24,150.00 0.00

323010   Building permits 8,000.00 8,000.00 7,975.65 (24.35)

323030   Animal licenses 3,000.00 3,000.00 2,437.00 (563.00)

323050   Other permits 25.00 25.00 0.00 (25.00)
Intergovernmental revenue (See supplemental 
section for detail)

331000   Federal grants 0.00

332000/333   Federal shared revenues 0.00

334000   State grants 0.00

335000/336   State shared revenues 769,257.00 773,872.00 773,873.38 1.38

337000    Local grants 0.00

338000    Local shared revenues 0.00

Charges for services

341000   General government 655.00 655.00 179.55 (475.45)

342000   Public safety 150.00 150.00 0.00 (150.00)

343000   Public works 400.00 400.00 293.13 (106.87)

344000   Public health 0.00

345000   Social/economic services 0.00

346000   Culture and recreation 0.00

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court 0.00

351020   District court 0.00

351030   City court 86,550.00 89,240.00 65,985.26 (23,254.74)

360000 Miscellaneous 161,781.00 425,172.00 311,553.53 (113,618.47)

370000 Investment and royalty earnings 1,000.00 6,854.00 6,867.06 13.06

Total revenues 1,626,173.00 1,933,884.00 1,795,884.96 (137,999.04)

EXPENDITURES

Current:

410000  General Government:

410100   Legislative services

100    Personal services 23,562.00 23,562.00 23,561.40 0.60

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 4,050.00 4,485.00 2,049.08 2,435.92

900    Capital outlay 0.00

410200   Executive services

100    Personal services 6,078.00 6,078.00 6,077.40 0.60

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 1,675.00 1,750.00 1,256.57 493.43

900    Capital outlay 0.00

410300   Judicial services

100    Personal services 143,773.00 143,773.00 129,217.27 14,555.73

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 29,425.00 32,965.00 25,368.66 7,596.34

900    Capital outlay 0.00

-48-



CITY OF HARDIN
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET

Account ACTUAL POSITIVE
Number Description ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

410400   Administrative services

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

410500   Financial services

100    Personal services 38,350.00 38,350.00 36,569.39 1,780.61

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 57,375.00 57,375.00 38,934.15 18,440.85

900    Capital outlay 0.00

410600   Elections

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

410900   Records administration

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

411000   Planning & Research services

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

411100   Legal services

100    Personal services 35,782.00 37,938.00 37,823.39 114.61

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 142,950.00 146,288.00 125,774.16 20,513.84

900    Capital outlay 0.00

411200   Facilities administration

100    Personal services 27,170.00 27,170.00 19,385.53 7,784.47

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 35,950.00 35,950.00 20,854.73 15,095.27

900    Capital outlay 0.00

411600   Public school administration

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

411800   Other General Government services

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

420000  Public Safety:

420100   Law enforcement services

100    Personal services 617,463.00 618,463.00 536,568.20 81,894.80

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 274,070.00 283,070.00 148,711.66 134,358.34

900    Capital outlay 0.00

420200   Detention and correction

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

420300   Probation and parole

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

-49-



CITY OF HARDIN
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET

Account ACTUAL POSITIVE
Number Description ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

420400   Fire protection

100    Personal services 10,177.00 10,442.00 10,434.60 7.40

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 64,700.00 66,700.00 52,977.85 13,722.15

900    Capital outlay 0.00

420500   Protective inspections

100    Personal services 38,776.00 38,776.00 15,243.06 23,532.94

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 10,900.00 13,620.00 7,655.52 5,964.48

900    Capital outlay 0.00

420600   Civil defense

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

420700   Emergency services

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

430000  Public Works:

430100   Public works administration

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

430200   Road and street services

100    Personal services 5,307.00 13,412.00 13,394.42 17.58

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 37,500.00 37,500.00 1,398.17 36,101.83

900    Capital outlay 21,245.61 (21,245.61)

430300   Airport

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

430400   Transit systems

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

430500   Water utilities

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

430600   Sewer utilities

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

430800   Solid waste services

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

430900   Cemetery services

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

431100   Weed control

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

-50-



CITY OF HARDIN
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET

Account ACTUAL POSITIVE
Number Description ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

431300   Central shop services

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

440000  Public Health:

440100   Public health services

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

440200   Hospitals

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

440300   Nursing homes

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

440400   Mental health center

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

440600   Animal control services

100    Personal services 18,742.00 18,742.00 6,982.09 11,759.91

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 13,600.00 16,780.00 12,647.97 4,132.03

900    Capital outlay 0.00

440700   Insect and pest controls

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

450000  Social and Economic Services:

450100   Welfare

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

450200   Veteran's services

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

450300   Aging services

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

450400   Extension services

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

-51-



CITY OF HARDIN
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET

Account ACTUAL POSITIVE
Number Description ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

460000 Culture and Recreation:

460100   Library services

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

460200   Fairs

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

460300   Other community events

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

460400   Parks

100    Personal services 77,484.00 77,484.00 47,360.21 30,123.79

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 102,700.00 104,782.00 64,501.82 40,280.18

900    Capital outlay 263,041.79 (263,041.79)

460440   Participant recreation

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

460450   Spectator recreation

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

470000  Housing and Community Development:

470100   Community public facility projects

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

470200   Housing rehabilitation

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

470300   Economic development

100    Personal services 2,336.00 2,336.00 1,547.40 788.60

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 144,540.00 145,550.00 9,577.11 135,972.89

900    Capital outlay 0.00

470400   TSEP/Home/Infrastructure rehabilitation

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

-52-



CITY OF HARDIN
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET

Account ACTUAL POSITIVE
Number Description ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

480000  Conservation of Natural Resources:

480100   Soil conservation

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

480200   Water quality control

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

480300   Air quality control

100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900    Capital outlay 0.00

490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service:

610   Principal 4,013.00 4,013.00 4,012.59 0.41

620   Interest 417.00 417.00 416.55 0.45

510000 Miscellaneous 0.00

Total expenditures 1,968,865.00 2,007,771.00 1,684,588.35 323,182.65

Excess of revenues over (under)expenditures (342,692.00) (73,887.00) 111,296.61 185,183.61

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381010/40  Proceeds from sale of bonds 0.00

381010/40 Discount on bonds issued 0.00

381050  Inception of lease/SBITAs 25,000.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00)

381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued 0.00

382010  Sale of assets 0.00

383000  Transfers In 0.00

520000  Transfers out (enter as a negative) (160,000.00) (160,000.00) (160,000.00) 0.00

384000 Special items - revenue 0.00

385000 Extraordinary items - revenue 0.00

524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative) 0.00

525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure (enter as negative) 0.00

Total other financing sources (uses) (135,000.00) (135,000.00) (160,000.00) (25,000.00)

Net change in fund balance (477,692.00) (208,887.00) (48,703.39) 160,183.61
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported 1,994,656.35

 Prior period adjustments

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated 1,994,656.35

Fund balances - June 30, 2023 1,945,952.96

-53-



CITY OF HARDIN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2501
Street Maintenance #1

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACCOUNT ACTUAL POSITIVE
NUMBER DESCRIPTION ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes 343,560.00 343,560.00 337,368.34 (6,191.66)

314140    Local option taxes 0.00

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses 0.00

322020   General business licenses 0.00

323010   Building permits 0.00

323030   Animal licenses 0.00

323050   Other permits 665.00 665.00 625.00 (40.00)
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants 0.00

332000/333   Federal shared revenues 0.00

334000   State grants 0.00

335000/336   State shared revenues 0.00

337000    Local grants 0.00

338000    Local shared revenue 0.00

Charges for services

341000   General government 0.00

342000   Public safety 0.00

343000   Public works 0.00

344000   Public health 0.00

345000   Social/economic services 0.00

346000   Culture and recreation 0.00

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court 0.00

351020   District court 0.00

351030   City court 0.00

360000 Miscellaneous 170.00 170.00 170.38 0.38

370000 Investment and royalty earnings 2,360.00 2,360.00 2,361.13 1.13

Total revenues 346,755.00 346,755.00 340,524.85 (6,230.15)

-54-



CITY OF HARDIN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenue

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

2992
American Rescue Plan Act

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

205,945.00 205,945.00 56,718.92 (149,226.08)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

558.00 558.00 558.97 0.97

206,503.00 206,503.00 57,277.89 (149,225.11)

-55-



CITY OF HARDIN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenue

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

3110
TIFD - Debt Service

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

1,005,011.00 1,005,011.00 917,106.04 (87,904.96)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

5,000.00 5,000.00 5,239.92 239.92

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

2,000.00 2,000.00 4,597.97 2,597.97

1,012,011.00 1,012,011.00 926,943.93 (85,067.07)

-56-



CITY OF HARDIN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenue

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

3511
SID #120

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

50,000.00 50,000.00 94,284.18 44,284.18

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

50,000.00 50,000.00 94,284.18 44,284.18

-56-



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2501

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACCOUNT ACTUAL POSITIVE
NUMBER DESCRIPTION ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services 0.00
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services 305,631.00 307,216.00 281,211.39 26,004.61

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 191,650.00 191,570.00 72,897.92 118,672.08
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services 0.00
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services 0.00
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services 0.00
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900 Capital expenditures 0.00
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal 0.00
620   Interest 0.00

510000 Miscellaneous 0.00
Total expenditures 497,281.00 498,786.00 354,109.31 144,676.69

Excess of revenues over (under)expenditures (150,526.00) (152,031.00) (13,584.46) 138,446.54
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued 0.00
381000  Discount on bonds issued 0.00
381050  Inception of lease/SBITAs 0.00
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued 0.00
382010  Sale of assets 0.00
383000  Transfers In 40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00
520000  Transfers out (enter as a negative) 0.00
384000 Special items - revenue 0.00
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue 0.00
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative) 0.00
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative) 0.00

Total other financing sources (uses) 40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00
Net change in fund balance (110,526.00) (112,031.00) 26,415.54 138,446.54

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported 582,977.40
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated 582,977.40
Fund balances - June 30, 2023 609,392.94

-57-

Street Maintenance #1



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under)expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITAs
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enter as a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2992

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

3,373.00 3,373.00 380.65 2,992.35
3,500.00 3,500.00 873.50 2,626.50

84,638.00 84,638.00 49,300.72 35,337.28
20,000.00 20,000.00 162.00 19,838.00

0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 3,490.00 3,472.08 17.92

0.00
0.00

0.00 1,300.00 1,341.97 (41.97)
0.00 1,900.00 1,746.97 153.03

0.00
25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00

0.00
0.00

63,802.00 63,802.00 63,802.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

200,313.00 207,003.00 57,277.89 149,725.11
6,190.00 (500.00) 0.00 500.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6,190.00 (500.00) 0.00 500.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

-58-

American Rescue Plan Act



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under)expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITAs
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enter as a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

3110

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
1,012,011.00 1,012,011.00 643,867.46 368,143.54

0.00
1,012,011.00 1,012,011.00 643,867.46 368,143.54

0.00 0.00 283,076.47 283,076.47

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 283,076.47 283,076.47

189,742.17

189,742.17
472,818.64

-59-

TIFD - Debt Service



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under)expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITAs
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enter as a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

3511

BUDGETED AMOUNTS
ACTUAL

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS

0.00 0.00 0.00
50,000.00 50,000.00 94,284.18

0.00 0.00 0.00
50,000.00 50,000.00 94,284.18

(779,352.26)

(779,352.26)
(685,068.08)

-59-

SID #120



Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Total OPEB liability 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Service cost 64,103$      32,817$      56,837$      47,828$      118,195$    

Interest 20,738        11,520        12,413        15,571        5,380          

Changes of benefit terms -              -              -              
Differences between expected and actual 
experience -              3,820          -              (63,399)       

Changes of assumptions or other inputs (35,304)       (56,397)       (15,767)       36,733        

Benefit payments (19,733)       (14,665)       (12,605)       (123,575)     

Net change in total OPEB liability 29,804$      (22,905)$     40,878$      36,733$      -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            

Total OPEB liability - beginning 451,771      474,676      433,798      397,065      154,532      154,532      

Total OPEB liability - ending 481,575$    451,771$    474,676$    433,798$    154,532$    154,532$    -$            -$            -$            -$            

Covered-employee payroll 1,008,519$ 974,414$    800,831$    775,623$    834,588$    834,588$    

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 47.75% 46.36% 59.27% 55.93% 18.52% 18.52% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

*Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available

Notes to Schedule:

Changes of benefit terms:

Changes of assumptions:

An inflow of $31,409 due to the assumed enrollment status changes

-60-

(Note:  GASB Statement 75 requires supplementary information for 10-year schedules containing (1) service cost, (2) interest, (3) changes of benefit terms, if any, (4) differences between 
expected and actual experience, (5) changes of actuarial assumptions or other inputs and (6) benefit payments, as applicable  to the Local Government's OPEB plan and method of 
calculating the OPEB liability.) For early implementors, include all years under GASBS 75.

(Note:  GASB Statement 75 requires notes to the supplementary information, including any changes of assumptions listed above, such as changes in benefit terms, changes of 
assumptions or other inputs.)

There were no changes to benefit terms in fiscal year 2022-2023.

An inflow of $3,895 due to an increase in the interest rate from 4.02% to 4.11%

CITY OF HARDIN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS



2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

8.0263% 0.0655% 0.0640% 0.0581% 0.0638% 0.0896% 0.0809% 0.0788% 0.0884%

1,908,573 1,187,350 1,689,389 1,214,461 1,331,959 1,745,269 1,378,841 1,101,277 1,100,879

568,419 348,875 530,730 394,280 444,691 21,631 16,848 13,527 13,433

2,476,992.00$  1,536,225.00$  2,220,119.00$  1,608,741.00$  1,776,650.00$  1,766,900.00$  1,395,689.00$  1,114,804.00$  1,114,312.00$  

1,410,248 1,155,550 1,074,996 958,660 1,065,674 1,111,627 969,627 919,407 1,005,257

135.34% 102.75% 157.15% 126.68% 124.99% 157.00% 142.20% 119.78% 111.22%

73.66% 79.91% 68.90% 73.85% 73.47% 73.75% 74.71% 78.40% 79.87%

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

125,448 102,504 94,132 82,449 88,894 93,044 81,047 75,763

0 0 0 0 0 901 1,452

126,499 102,504 94,132 82,449 88,894 93,044 81,948 77,215

0 0 0 0 0 0

1,410,248 1,155,550 1,074,996 958,660 1,065,674 1,111,627 969,627 919,407

8.90% 8.87% 8.76% 8.60% 8.34% 8.37% 8.45% 8.40%

CITY OF HARDIN
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Contributions
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years*

81b

-61-A-

1 All employer adjustments made in the current fiscal year but are adjusting a payroll with a pay date in a prior fiscal year, are considered prior year adjustments and are removed from the covered payroll 
report before the actuary calculates the employers proportionate share.

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

Contributions as a 
percentage of Covered 
Payroll

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30, the most recent fiscal year end.

Contractually Required 
DB Contributions

Plan Choice Rate 
Required Contributions

81a1
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years*

CITY OF HARDIN
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Public Employees Retirement Plan (PERS)
Other Supplementary Information

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Reporting Date:

As of Measurement 
Date:

Employer's proportion of 
the Net Pension Liability 
(percentage)

Employer's Net Pension 
Liability (amount)

State of Montana's Net 
Pension Liability 
(amount)

Contributions in Relation 
to the Contractually 
Required Contributions

Contribution Deficiency 
(Excess)

Employer's Covered 

Payroll1

Total

Employer's Covered 

Payroll1

Employer's Proportionate 
Share as a percent of 
Covered Payroll

Plan Fiduciary Net 
Position as a percent of 
the Total Pension Liability

As of most recent FYE - 
(reporting date)

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30, the measurement date.
1 All employer adjustments made in the current fiscal year but are adjusting a payroll with a pay date in a prior fiscal year, are considered prior year adjustments and are removed from the covered payroll 

report before the actuary calculates the employers proportionate share.

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.



Changes of Benefit Terms
The following changes to the plan provisions were made as identified:

Working Retiree Limitations – for PERS

Refunds

Lump-sum payouts

Disabled PERS Defined Contribution (DC) Members

Administrative expenses are recognized by an additional amount added to the normal cost contribution rate for the System.  This amount varies from year to year based on the prior year’s actual 
administrative expenses.

3.50%

7.65%

2.75%

0% to 8.47%

Four year smoothed market

Entry age Normal

Level percentage of payroll, open

30 years

For Males and Females: RP 2000 Combined Employee and Annuitant Mortality Table projected 
to 2020 using Scale BB, males set back 1 year

For Males and Females:  RP 2000 Combined Mortality Table, with no projections

0.30%

General Wage Growth*

Investment Rate of Return*

Mortality (Healthy members)

Mortality (Disabled members)

3) Trusts, estates, and charitable organizations listed as beneficiaries are entitled to receive only a lump-sum payment.

2017

Effective July 1, 2017, if a PERS retiree returns as an independent contractor to what would otherwise be PERS-covered employment, general contractor overhead costs are excluded 
from PERS working retiree limitations.

1) Terminating members eligible to retire may, in lieu of receiving a monthly retirement benefit, refund their accumulated contributions in a lump sum.

2) Terminating members with accumulated contributions between $200 and $1,000 who wish to rollover their refund must do so within 90 days of termination of service.

Admin Expense as % of Payroll

Interest credited to member accounts – Effective July 1, 2017, the interest rate credited to member accounts increased from 0.25% to 0.77%.

Effective July 1, 2017, lump-sum payouts in all systems are limited to the member’s accumulated contributions rate than the present value of the member’s benefit.

PERS members hired after July 1, 2011 have a normal retirement age of 65. PERS DC members hired after July 1, 2011 who became disabled were previously only eligible for a 
disability benefit until age 65. Effective July 1, 2017, these individuals will be eligible for a disability benefit until they reach 70, thus ensuring the same 5-year time period available to 
PERS DC disabled members hired prior to July 1, 2011 who have a normal retirement age of 60 and are eligible for a disability benefit until age 65.

Merit salary increase

Asset valuation method

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

*Includes inflation at

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions and Methods
Method and assumptions used in calculations of actuarially determined contributions
The following Actuarial Assumptions were adopted from the June 30, 2019 Experience Study:

Remaining Amortization method

82

CITY OF HARDIN
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

For the Employer's Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 (June 30, 2021 Measurement Date)



Plan: Fire Department Relief Association

Schedule of Total Pension Liability as of 
Reporting Period: 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Employer's total pension liability 122,000 119,500 117,014 112,750 121,000 123,000 127,300
Employer's covered-employee payroll, if 
applicable
Total pension liability (as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll), if applicable 0.0000% 0.0000% 0.0000% 0.0000% 0.0000% 0.0000% 0.0000% 0.0000% 0.0000% 0.0000%

Schedule of Changes in Total Pension 
Liability: 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Beginning balance of Total Pension Liability 119500 117014 112750 121000 123000 127300 127300

Service cost -2.8

Interest on total pension liability
Difference between expected and actual 
experience in measurement of TPL

Benefit payments -24600 -24400 -23900 -23400 -22550 -24200 -24600

Other changes (if individually significant) 35728 6437 6573 7331 8444 8752 43176

Net change in Total Pension Liability 11,128 -17,963 -17,327 -16,072 -14,106 -15,448 18,576 0 0 0
*Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information:

liabilties of the pension plan.

Simple Calculation - SB0016 MCA 15-10-425 & 19-18-503
Senate Bill 0016 - States that in order to be soundly funded the assets should be at least 3 times but not more than 5 times the 
prior year benefits paid in the previous fiscal year whichever is greater.

Notes:
-The Fire Department Relief Association fund is soundly funded according to SB16 & MCA
-The Fire Department Relief Association fund's assets exceed the minimum of 3 times the higher of prior or current year
benefits paid by $41,340. 

GASB 73 - (Retirement plans not within the scope of GASB 68) requires employers to present in required supplementary information 10-year schedules 
containing (1) the total pension liability and certain related ratios and (2) if applicable, information about statutorily or contractually required contributions, 
contributions to the pension plan, and related ratios.

The following changes in assumptions, benefit terms or other inputs affecting the total pension liability have been made since the prior measurement date:

Changes of assumptions, benefit terms, covered employees/volunteers:

The assets of the Fire Department Relief Association are not in a trust or equivalent arrangement. Those assets will not be used to offset the

-The Fire Department Relief Association fund is NOT in compliance with GASB 73 because no actuary was consulted to calculate the Net Pension Liability

CITY OF HARDIN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

SCHEDULE OF TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY 



OTHER

SUPPLEMENTARY

INFORMATION



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

 NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

2190 2370 2371 2372 2396

ACCOUNT

NUMBER DESCRIPTION

ASSETS

101000 Cash and cash equivalents 19,701.02 20,023.73 114,267.77 3,216.17 484.18

103000 Petty cash

101100 Investments

102000 Cash and cash equivalents - restricted

102300 Investments - restricted

106000 Valuation of investments to fair value 7,610.85 25,094.69

Taxes receivable:

111000   Mobiles

113000   Real estate 4,285.83 12,959.63 14,925.31 23,151.86

114000   Net proceeds

115000   Personal 418.34 872.82 814.23 1,277.04

116000   Protested

118000   Special assessments

120000
Accounts/other receivables (net of allowance 
for uncollectibles) 27.14 35.32 237.54 56.27 232.55

127500 Leases Receivable

131000 Due from other funds

132000 Due from other governments 223.12 852.03 663.99 1,547.45

133000 Advances to other funds

140000 Prepaid expense

150000 Inventories

170000 Other debits

Total Assets 24,655.45 34,743.53 138,519.69 29,248.79 25,811.42

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

190000 Deferred Outflows of Resources 

19xxxx Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

LIABILITIES

201000 Warrants payable

202100 Accounts payable

203100 Judgments payable

204000 Contracts/loans/notes payable

205200 Matured interest payable

205500  Leases - short-term

206100 Other accrued payables 3,043.49

211000 Due to other funds

212000 Due to other governments

214000 Deposits payable

216000 Revenues collected in advance

233000 Advances from other funds

Total Liabilities 0.00 3,043.49 0.00 0.00 0.00

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

220000 Deferred Inflows of Resources

223000 Deferred Inflows of Tax Revenues 4,704.17 13,832.45 15,739.54 24,428.90

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,704.17 13,832.45 15,739.54 24,428.90 0.00

FUND BALANCES:

250100 Non-spendable

250200 Restricted 4,819.89 25,811.42

260100 Committed 19,951.28 17,867.59 122,780.15

260200 Assigned

271000 Unassigned (negative balance ony) 0.00 0.00 0.00 (0.00) 0.00

Total Fund Balances 19,951.28 17,867.59 122,780.15 4,819.89 25,811.42

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances 24,655.45 34,743.53 138,519.69 29,248.79 25,811.42

-63- -63-

Comprehensive 
Insurance

PERS-Employer 
Contributions

Group Health-
Employer 

Contributions

Permissive 
Medical Levy

CDBG - Housing 
(93 & later Loan 

Repayment)



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

 NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT

NUMBER DESCRIPTION

ASSETS

101000 Cash and cash equivalents

103000 Petty cash

101100 Investments

102000 Cash and cash equivalents - restricted

102300 Investments - restricted

106000 Valuation of investments to fair value

Taxes receivable:

111000   Mobiles

113000   Real estate

114000   Net proceeds

115000   Personal

116000   Protested

118000   Special assessments

120000
Accounts/other receivables (net of allowance 
for uncollectibles)

127500 Leases Receivable

131000 Due from other funds

132000 Due from other governments

133000 Advances to other funds

140000 Prepaid expense

150000 Inventories

170000 Other debits

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

190000 Deferred Outflows of Resources 

19xxxx Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES

201000 Warrants payable

202100 Accounts payable

203100 Judgments payable

204000 Contracts/loans/notes payable

205200 Matured interest payable

205500  Leases - short-term

206100 Other accrued payables

211000 Due to other funds

212000 Due to other governments

214000 Deposits payable

216000 Revenues collected in advance

233000 Advances from other funds

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

220000 Deferred Inflows of Resources

223000 Deferred Inflows of Tax Revenues 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES:

250100 Non-spendable

250200 Restricted

260100 Committed

260200 Assigned

271000 Unassigned (negative balance ony)

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances

2397 2398 2399 2401 2411

7,334.57 8,635.92 92,696.79

20,250.00 6,023.15 36,136.54

27,887.60 800.32 13,339.17

74.27 521.31

208.25 2,670.58

0.00 55,472.17 0.00 15,741.91 145,364.39

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1,018.75 1,709.56 11,808.83

0.00 1,018.75 0.00 1,709.56 11,808.83

27,887.60 800.32 13,339.17

0.00 27,887.60 0.00 800.32 13,339.17

13,232.03 120,216.39

26,565.82

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 26,565.82 0.00 13,232.03 120,216.39

0.00 55,472.17 0.00 15,741.91 145,364.39

-63-

CDBG - Econ 
Dev

Local Charges 
for Services

Coal Board 
Grant

Lighting District 
#1

Lighting District 
54



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

 NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT

NUMBER DESCRIPTION

ASSETS

101000 Cash and cash equivalents

103000 Petty cash

101100 Investments

102000 Cash and cash equivalents - restricted

102300 Investments - restricted

106000 Valuation of investments to fair value

Taxes receivable:

111000   Mobiles

113000   Real estate

114000   Net proceeds

115000   Personal

116000   Protested

118000   Special assessments

120000
Accounts/other receivables (net of allowance 
for uncollectibles)

127500 Leases Receivable

131000 Due from other funds

132000 Due from other governments

133000 Advances to other funds

140000 Prepaid expense

150000 Inventories

170000 Other debits

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

190000 Deferred Outflows of Resources 

19xxxx Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES

201000 Warrants payable

202100 Accounts payable

203100 Judgments payable

204000 Contracts/loans/notes payable

205200 Matured interest payable

205500  Leases - short-term

206100 Other accrued payables

211000 Due to other funds

212000 Due to other governments

214000 Deposits payable

216000 Revenues collected in advance

233000 Advances from other funds

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

220000 Deferred Inflows of Resources

223000 Deferred Inflows of Tax Revenues 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES:

250100 Non-spendable

250200 Restricted

260100 Committed

260200 Assigned

271000 Unassigned (negative balance ony)

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances

2580 2810 2820 2821 2888

171,471.45 6,651.00 182,032.54 302,134.19 (50.00)

145,811.95

156,784.68 24,957.84

41,178.08

1,771.08

5,251.21 10,457.63

190.08

46,367.57 91,945.44

423,014.15 6,651.00 455,205.40 302,134.19 (50.00)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

555.08

463.11

302,134.19

0.00 0.00 1,018.19 302,134.19 0.00

41,178.08

41,178.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

51,618.78 102,403.07

6,651.00 351,784.14

330,217.29

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (50.00)

381,836.07 6,651.00 454,187.21 0.00 (50.00)

423,014.15 6,651.00 455,205.40 302,134.19 (50.00)

-63-

Gas 
Apportionment 

Tax

Gas Tax - 
Special 

Allocation 
Program

Montana Main 
Street

Police Training/ 
Pension Fund

Curb & Gutter



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

 NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT

NUMBER DESCRIPTION

ASSETS

101000 Cash and cash equivalents

103000 Petty cash

101100 Investments

102000 Cash and cash equivalents - restricted

102300 Investments - restricted

106000 Valuation of investments to fair value

Taxes receivable:

111000   Mobiles

113000   Real estate

114000   Net proceeds

115000   Personal

116000   Protested

118000   Special assessments

120000
Accounts/other receivables (net of allowance 
for uncollectibles)

127500 Leases Receivable

131000 Due from other funds

132000 Due from other governments

133000 Advances to other funds

140000 Prepaid expense

150000 Inventories

170000 Other debits

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

190000 Deferred Outflows of Resources 

19xxxx Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES

201000 Warrants payable

202100 Accounts payable

203100 Judgments payable

204000 Contracts/loans/notes payable

205200 Matured interest payable

205500  Leases - short-term

206100 Other accrued payables

211000 Due to other funds

212000 Due to other governments

214000 Deposits payable

216000 Revenues collected in advance

233000 Advances from other funds

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

220000 Deferred Inflows of Resources

223000 Deferred Inflows of Tax Revenues 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES:

250100 Non-spendable

250200 Restricted

260100 Committed

260200 Assigned

271000 Unassigned (negative balance ony)

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances

2916 2917 2939 NONMAJOR

SPECIAL

REVENUE

FUNDS

11,187.78 939,787.11

0.00

0.00

145,811.95

0.00

276,857.75

0.00

55,322.63

0.00

3,382.43

0.00

83,205.17

2,955.48

0.00

15,708.84

4,841.96 11,197.46

138,313.01

0.00

0.00

0.00

4,841.96 11,187.78 0.00 1,672,541.83

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

15,092.22

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

4,841.96 8,348.56

6,629.91 6,629.91

0.00

0.00

302,134.19

0.00

4,841.96 0.00 6,629.91 332,204.88

0.00

141,910.23

0.00 0.00 0.00 141,910.23

154,021.85

11,187.78 533,702.65

160,599.02

356,783.11

0.00 0.00 (6,629.91) (6,679.91)

0.00 11,187.78 (6,629.91) 1,198,426.72

4,841.96 11,187.78 0.00 1,672,541.83

-63-

COPS Grant Crime Victims 
Assistance

Rural Comm 
Development



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACCOUNT ACTUAL POSITIVE
NUMBER DESCRIPTION ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes 11,623.00 11,623.00 12,119.88 496.88

314140    Local option taxes 0.00

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses 0.00

322020   General business licenses 0.00

323010   Building permits 0.00

323030   Animal licenses 0.00

323050   Other permits 0.00
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants 0.00

332000/333   Federal shared revenues 0.00

334000   State grants 0.00

335000/336   State shared revenues 19,000.00 19,000.00 19,031.48 31.48

337000    Local grants 0.00

338000    Local shared revenues 0.00

Charges for services

341000   General government 0.00

342000   Public safety 0.00

343000   Public works 0.00

344000   Public health 0.00

345000   Social/economic services 0.00

346000   Culture and recreation 0.00

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court 0.00

351020   District court 0.00

351030   City court 0.00

360000 Miscellaneous 0.00

370000 Investment and royalty earnings 100.00 100.00 0.25 (99.75)

Total revenues 30,723.00 30,723.00 31,151.61 428.61

-65-

2190
Comprehensive Insurance



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

44,990.00 45,785.00 46,461.20 676.20

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

17,000.00 49,777.00 49,776.89 (0.11)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

100.00 100.00 34.07 (65.93)

62,090.00 95,662.00 96,272.16 610.16

-65-

2370
PERS-Employer Contributions



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

33,994.00 34,334.00 35,874.51 1,540.51

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

150.00 150.00 393.89 243.89

34,144.00 34,484.00 36,268.40 1,784.40

-65-

Group Health-Employer Contributions
2371



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

80,563.00 82,683.00 84,230.71 1,547.71

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

25.00 68.00 68.91 0.91

80,588.00 82,751.00 84,299.62 1,548.62

-65-

Permissive Medical Levy
2372



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

125.00 125.00 342.27 217.27

125.00 125.00 342.27 217.27

-65-

CDBG - Housing (93 & later Loan Repayment)
2396



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 10.00 10.00 0.00

0.00

0.00 10.00 10.00 0.00

-65-

CDBG - Econ Dev
2397



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

500.00 500.00 73.87 (426.13)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

29,000.00 29,000.00 1,832.50 (27,167.50)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

29,500.00 29,500.00 1,906.37 (27,593.63)

-65-

Local Charges for Services
2398



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

42,500.00 42,500.00 0.00 (42,500.00)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

42,500.00 42,500.00 0.00 (42,500.00)

-65-

Coal Board Grant
2399



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

2401

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

16,950.00 16,950.00 17,669.97 719.97

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

50.00 50.00 105.46 55.46

17,000.00 17,000.00 17,775.43 775.43

-65-

Lighting District #1



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

2411

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

130,829.00 130,829.00 132,238.05 1,409.05

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

300.00 300.00 730.11 430.11

131,129.00 131,129.00 132,968.16 1,839.16

-65-

Lighting District 54



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

2580

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

19,375.00 19,375.00 12,706.00 (6,669.00)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

750.00 750.00 2,365.64 1,615.64

20,125.00 20,125.00 15,071.64 (5,053.36)

-65-

Curb & Gutter



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

2810

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

7,732.00 7,732.00 5,183.00 (2,549.00)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

7,732.00 7,732.00 5,183.00 (2,549.00)

-65-

Police Training/ Pension Fund



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

2820

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

70,921.00 70,921.00 70,920.51 (0.49)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 (333.71) (333.71)

70,921.00 70,921.00 70,586.80 (334.20)

-65-

Gas Apportionment Tax



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

2821

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

302,135.00 302,135.00 0.00 (302,135.00)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

302,135.00 302,135.00 0.00 (302,135.00)

-65-

Gas Tax - Special Allocation Program



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

2888

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

Montana Main Street



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

2916

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

194,141.00 194,141.00 48,129.75 (146,011.25)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

194,141.00 194,141.00 48,129.75 (146,011.25)

-65-

COPS Grant



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

2917

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

19,655.00 19,655.00 5,783.53 (13,871.47)

0.00

0.00

19,655.00 19,655.00 5,783.53 (13,871.47)

-65-

Crime Victims Assistance



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

2939

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

181,000.00 181,000.00 9,832.00 (171,168.00)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

181,000.00 181,000.00 9,832.00 (171,168.00)

-65-

Rural Comm Development



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

0

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

0-Jan-00



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

FUND#

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

FUND#

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

FUND#

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

FUND#

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

FUND#

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

FUND#

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

FUND#

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

FUND#

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

FUND#

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

FUND#

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

FUND#

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

FUND#

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

FUND#

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

FUND#

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

-65-

NAME
FUND#



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes

Licenses and permits

322010   Alcoholic beverage licenses

322020   General business licenses

323010   Building permits

323030   Animal licenses

323050   Other permits
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues

337000    Local grants

338000    Local shared revenues

Charges for services

341000   General government

342000   Public safety

343000   Public works

344000   Public health

345000   Social/economic services

346000   Culture and recreation

Fines and forfeitures

351010   Justice court

351020   District court

351030   City court 

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

TOTALS

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

338,824.00 342,079.00 341,374.19 (704.81)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

375,141.00 375,141.00 57,961.75 (317,179.25)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

42,500.00 42,500.00 0.00 (42,500.00)

416,788.00 449,565.00 144,911.88 (304,653.12)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

29,000.00 29,000.00 1,832.50 (27,167.50)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19,655.00 19,655.00 5,783.53 (13,871.47)

0.00 10.00 10.00 0.00

1,600.00 1,643.00 3,706.89 2,063.89

1,223,508.00 1,259,593.00 555,580.74 (704,012.26)

-65A-



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACCOUNT ACTUAL POSITIVE
NUMBER DESCRIPTION ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 8,500.00 8,500.00 8,427.79 72.21
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services 0.00
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 18,650.00 18,650.00 18,263.61 386.39

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 11,000.00 11,000.00 10,742.33 257.67
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services 0.00
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 1,000.00 1,000.00 934.87 65.13

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services 0.00
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 2,050.00 2,050.00 2,044.14 5.86

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services 0.00

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 50.00 50.00 35.56 14.44
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services 0.00
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc 0.00

900 Capital expenditures 0.00
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal 0.00
620   Interest 0.00

510000 Miscellaneous 9,000.00 9,000.00 3,759.89 5,240.11
Total expenditures 50,250.00 50,250.00 44,208.19 6,041.81

Excess of revenues over expenditures (19,527.00) (19,527.00) (13,056.58) 6,470.42
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued 0.00
381000  Discount on bonds issued 0.00
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA 0.00
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued 0.00
382010  Sale of assets 0.00
383000  Transfers In 0.00
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative) 0.00
384000 Special items - revenue 0.00
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue 0.00
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative) 0.00
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative) 0.00

Total other financing sources (uses) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net change in fund balance (19,527.00) (19,527.00) (13,056.58) 6,470.42

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported 33,007.86
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated 33,007.86
Fund balances - June 30, 2023 19,951.28

-66-

2190
Comprehensive Insurance



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2370

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

19,363.00 24,659.00 22,396.33 2,262.67
0.00

47,198.00 67,941.00 65,816.24 2,124.76
0.00

421.00 7,869.00 7,867.92 1.08
0.00

1,548.00 1,548.00 776.34 771.66
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

6,290.00 6,290.00 5,178.98 1,111.02
0.00

93.00 178.00 173.15 4.85
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

74,913.00 108,485.00 102,208.96 6,276.04
(12,823.00) (12,823.00) (5,936.80) 6,886.20

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(12,823.00) (12,823.00) (5,936.80) 6,886.20

23,804.39

23,804.39
17,867.59

-66-

PERS-Employer Contributions



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2371

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

6,920.00 6,920.00 4,909.01 2,010.99
0.00

83,552.00 83,552.00 1,729.83 81,822.17
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

13,519.00 13,519.00 7,139.88 6,379.12
0.00

201.00 541.00 540.76 0.24
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

104,192.00 104,532.00 14,319.48 90,212.52
(70,048.00) (70,048.00) 21,948.92 91,996.92

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(70,048.00) (70,048.00) 21,948.92 91,996.92

100,831.23

100,831.23
122,780.15

-66-

Group Health-Employer Contributions



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2372

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

13,438.00 13,474.00 13,472.96 1.04
0.00

49,167.00 65,373.00 65,326.50 46.50
0.00

1,085.00 2,076.00 2,075.75 0.25
0.00

15,237.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00 167.00 166.96 0.04
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

78,927.00 81,090.00 81,042.17 47.83
1,661.00 1,661.00 3,257.45 1,596.45

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1,661.00 1,661.00 3,257.45 1,596.45

1,562.44

1,562.44
4,819.89

-66-

Permissive Medical Levy



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2396

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
125.00 125.00 342.27 217.27

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
125.00 125.00 342.27 217.27

25,469.15

25,469.15
25,811.42

-66-

CDBG - Housing (93 & later Loan Repayment)



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2397

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00 10.00 10.00 0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 10.00 10.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

-66-

CDBG - Econ Dev



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2398

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

0.00
350.00 350.00 0.00 350.00

0.00
12,550.00 12,550.00 2,594.25 9,955.75

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
12,800.00 12,800.00 2,713.75 10,086.25

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

25,700.00 25,700.00 5,308.00 20,392.00
3,800.00 3,800.00 (3,401.63) (7,201.63)

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3,800.00 3,800.00 (3,401.63) (7,201.63)

29,967.45

29,967.45
26,565.82

-66-

Local Charges for Services



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2399

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

42,500.00 42,500.00 0.00 42,500.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

42,500.00 42,500.00 0.00 42,500.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

-66-

Coal Board Grant



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2401

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
25,750.00 25,750.00 19,478.95 6,271.05

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

25,750.00 25,750.00 19,478.95 6,271.05
(8,750.00) (8,750.00) (1,703.52) 7,046.48

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(8,750.00) (8,750.00) (1,703.52) 7,046.48

14,935.55

14,935.55
13,232.03

-66-

Lighting District #1



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2411

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
171,250.00 171,250.00 131,266.23 39,983.77

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

171,250.00 171,250.00 131,266.23 39,983.77
(40,121.00) (40,121.00) 1,701.93 41,822.93

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(40,121.00) (40,121.00) 1,701.93 41,822.93

118,514.46

118,514.46
120,216.39

-66-

Lighting District 54



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2580

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
66,100.00 66,100.00 344.19 65,755.81

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

81,100.00 81,100.00 344.19 80,755.81
(60,975.00) (60,975.00) 14,727.45 75,702.45

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(60,975.00) (60,975.00) 14,727.45 75,702.45

367,108.62

367,108.62
381,836.07

-66-

Curb & Gutter



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2810

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

5,428.00 5,428.00 0.00 5,428.00
7,000.00 7,000.00 3,228.00 3,772.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

12,428.00 12,428.00 3,228.00 9,200.00
(4,696.00) (4,696.00) 1,955.00 6,651.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(4,696.00) (4,696.00) 1,955.00 6,651.00

4,696.00

4,696.00
6,651.00

-66-

Police Training/ Pension Fund



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2820

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

21,402.00 24,782.00 24,684.45 97.55
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

110,937.00 107,557.00 555.08 107,001.92

0.00
0.00
0.00

132,339.00 132,339.00 25,239.53 107,099.47
(61,418.00) (61,418.00) 45,347.27 106,765.27

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(61,418.00) (61,418.00) 45,347.27 106,765.27

408,839.94

408,839.94
454,187.21

-66-

Gas Apportionment Tax



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2821

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

302,135.00 302,135.00 0.00 302,135.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

302,135.00 302,135.00 0.00 302,135.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

-66-

Gas Tax - Special Allocation Program



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2888

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(50.00)

(50.00)
(50.00)

-66-

Montana Main Street



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2916

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

194,141.00 194,141.00 48,129.75 146,011.25
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

194,141.00 194,141.00 48,129.75 146,011.25
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

-66-

COPS Grant



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2917

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

15,477.00 15,477.00 0.00 15,477.00
4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

19,477.00 19,477.00 0.00 19,477.00
178.00 178.00 5,783.53 5,605.53

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
178.00 178.00 5,783.53 5,605.53

5,404.25

5,404.25
11,187.78

-66-

Crime Victims Assistance



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

2939

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00 16,462.00 16,461.91 0.09

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

149,811.00 133,349.00 0.00 133,349.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

149,811.00 149,811.00 16,461.91 133,349.09
31,189.00 31,189.00 (6,629.91) (37,818.91)

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
31,189.00 31,189.00 (6,629.91) (37,818.91)

0.00

0.00
(6,629.91)

-66-

Rural Comm Development



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

EXPENDITURES
Current:

410000  General Government:
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
420000 Public Safety

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

430000 Public Works
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
440000 Public Health

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

450000 Social and Economic Services
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
460000 Culture and Recreation

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

470000 Housing and Community Development
100    Personal services

200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc
480000 Conservation of Natural Resources

100    Personal services
200-800    Supplies/services/materials, etc

900 Capital expenditures
490000 Debt, Lease, and SBITA Service

610   Principal
620   Interest

510000 Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enteras a negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative)

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported
 Prior period adjustments
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated
Fund balances - June 30, 2023

TOTALS

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

55,198.00 60,530.00 40,778.30 19,751.70
12,500.00 12,500.00 8,427.79 4,072.21

379,486.00 416,435.00 181,002.32 235,432.68
26,000.00 42,462.00 37,953.52 4,508.48

22,908.00 34,727.00 34,628.12 98.88
286,650.00 286,650.00 164,425.95 122,224.05

16,785.00 1,548.00 776.34 771.66
1,000.00 1,000.00 934.87 65.13

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19,809.00 19,976.00 12,485.82 7,490.18
2,050.00 2,050.00 2,044.14 5.86

294.00 719.00 713.91 5.09
12,850.00 12,860.00 2,759.31 10,100.69

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

620,383.00 600,541.00 555.08 599,985.92

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

9,000.00 9,000.00 3,759.89 5,240.11
1,464,913.00 1,500,998.00 491,245.36 1,009,752.64
(241,405.00) (241,405.00) 64,335.38 305,740.38

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(241,405.00) (241,405.00) 64,335.38 305,740.38

1,134,091.34
0.00

1,134,091.34
1,198,426.72

-66A-



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

3512

ACCOUNT

NUMBER DESCRIPTION

ASSETS

101000 Cash and cash equivalents 0.75

103000 Petty cash

101100 Investments

102000 Cash and cash equivalents - restricted

102300 Investments - restricted

106000 Valuation of investments to fair value

Taxes receivable:

111000   Mobiles

113000   Real estate

114000   Net proceeds

115000   Personal

116000   Protested

118000   Special assessments 274,288.39

120000
Accounts/other receivables (net of allowance 
for uncollectibles)

127500 Leases Receivable

131000 Due from other funds

132000 Due from other governments 2,453.79

133000 Advances to other funds

140000 Prepaid expense

150000 Inventories

170000 Other debits

Total Assets 276,742.93

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

190000 Deferred Outflows of Resources 

19xxxx Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 0.00

LIABILITIES

201000 Warrants payable

202100 Accounts payable

203100 Judgments payable

204000 Contracts/loans/notes payable

205200 Matured interest payable

205500 Leases - short-term

206100 Other accrued payables

211000 Due to other funds 27,755.39

212000 Due to other governments

214000 Deposits payable

216000 Revenues collected in advance

233000 Advances from other funds 245,318.69

Total Liabilities 273,074.08

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

220000 Deferred Inflows of Resources

223000 Deferred Inflows of Tax Revenues 274,288.39

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 274,288.39

FUND BALANCE

250100 Non-spendable

250200 Restricted

260100 Committed

260200 Assigned

271000 Unassigned (Negative balance only) (270,619.54)

Total Fund Balances (270,619.54)

SID 121



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT

NUMBER DESCRIPTION

ASSETS

101000 Cash and cash equivalents

103000 Petty cash

101100 Investments

102000 Cash and cash equivalents - restricted

102300 Investments - restricted

106000 Valuation of investments to fair value

Taxes receivable:

111000   Mobiles

113000   Real estate

114000   Net proceeds

115000   Personal

116000   Protested

118000   Special assessments

120000
Accounts/other receivables (net of allowance 
for uncollectibles)

127500 Leases Receivable

131000 Due from other funds

132000 Due from other governments

133000 Advances to other funds

140000 Prepaid expense

150000 Inventories

170000 Other debits

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

190000 Deferred Outflows of Resources 

19xxxx Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES

201000 Warrants payable

202100 Accounts payable

203100 Judgments payable

204000 Contracts/loans/notes payable

205200 Matured interest payable

205500 Leases - short-term

206100 Other accrued payables

211000 Due to other funds

212000 Due to other governments

214000 Deposits payable

216000 Revenues collected in advance

233000 Advances from other funds

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

220000 Deferred Inflows of Resources

223000 Deferred Inflows of Tax Revenues 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCE

250100 Non-spendable

250200 Restricted

260100 Committed

260200 Assigned

271000 Unassigned (Negative balance only)

Total Fund Balances

NONMAJOR

DEBT

SERVICE

FUNDS

0.75

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

274,288.39

0.00

0.00

0.00

2,453.79

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

276,742.93

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

27,755.39

0.00

0.00

0.00

245,318.69

273,074.08

0.00

274,288.39

274,288.39

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

(270,619.54)

(270,619.54)



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

3512

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACCOUNT ACTUAL POSITIVE
NUMBER DESCRIPTION ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes 25,000.00 25,000.00 28,588.89 3,588.89

314140    Local option taxes 0.00
Licenses and permits

0.00

0.00
Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants 0.00

332000/333   Federal shared revenues 0.00

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues 0.00
Charges for services

340000 Miscellaneous 0.00
Fines and forfeitures

0.00
360000 Miscellaneous 0.00

370000 Investment and royalty earnings 0.00

Total revenues 25,000.00 25,000.00 28,588.89 3,588.89

EXPENDITURES

490000 Debt and Lease Service

610   Principal 0.00

620   Interest 0.00
510000 Miscellaneous 0.00

Total expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 25,000.00 25,000.00 28,588.89 3,588.89

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

382010  Sale of assets 0.00

383000  Transfers In 0.00

520000  Transfers out (enter as negative) 0.00

384000 Special items - revenue 0.00

385000 Extraordinary items - revenue 0.00

524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative) 0.00
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative) 0.00

Total other financing sources (uses) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net change in fund balance 25,000.00 25,000.00 28,588.89 3,588.89
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported (299,208.43)
 Prior period adjustments

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated (299,208.43)

Fund balances - June 30, 2023 (270,619.54)

-69-

SID 121



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes

314140    Local option taxes
Licenses and permits

Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000/333   Federal shared revenues

334000   State grants

335000/336   State shared revenues
Charges for services

340000 Miscellaneous
Fines and forfeitures

360000 Miscellaneous

370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

490000 Debt and Lease Service

610   Principal

620   Interest
510000 Miscellaneous

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

382010  Sale of assets

383000  Transfers In

520000  Transfers out (enter as negative)

384000 Special items - revenue

385000 Extraordinary items - revenue

524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negat

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported

 Prior period adjustments

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated

Fund balances - June 30, 2023

TOTALS

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

25,000.00 25,000.00 28,588.89 3,588.89

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

25,000.00 25,000.00 28,588.89 3,588.89

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

25,000.00 25,000.00 28,588.89 3,588.89

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

25,000.00 25,000.00 28,588.89 3,588.89

(299,208.43)
0.00

(299,208.43)

(270,619.54)

-70-



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

4020 4024 4025 4043

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

ASSETS

101000 Cash and cash equivalents 298,674.86 25,023.21 113,126.30

103000 Petty cash

101100 Investments

102000 Cash and cash equivalents - restricted

102300 Investments - restricted

106000 Valuation of investments to fair value 75,284.09

Taxes receivable:

111000   Mobiles

113000   Real estate

114000   Net proceeds

115000   Personal

116000   Protested

118000   Special assessments

120000
Accounts/other receivables (net of allowance 
for uncollectibles) 1,247.46 215.39

127500 Leases Receivable

131000 Due from other funds 18,850.04

132000 Due from other governments 197.50

133000 Advances to other funds 165,970.64

140000 Prepaid expense

150000 Inventories
170000 Other debits

TOTAL ASSETS 560,224.59 25,023.21 113,341.69 0.00

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

190000 Deferred Outflows of Resources 
19xxxx Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

LIABILITIES

201000 Warrants payable

202100 Accounts payable

203100 Judgments payable

204000 Contracts/loans/notes payable

205200 Matured interest payable

205500   Leases - short-term

206100 Other accrued payables

211000 Due to other funds

212000 Due to other funds/governments

214000 Deposits payable

216000 Revenues collected in advance
233000 Advances from other funds

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

220000 Deferred Inflows of Resources
223000 Deferred Inflows of Tax Revenues 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

FUND BALANCE

250100 Non-spendable 184,820.68

250200 Restricted

260100 Committed

260200 Assigned 375,403.91 25,023.21 113,341.69
271000 Unassigned (Negative balance only)

Total Fund Balances 560,224.59 25,023.21 113,341.69 0.00

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances 560,224.59 25,023.21 113,341.69 0.00

-71-

Capital 
Improvements

Police 
Department

Fire Department Streets Capital



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

ASSETS

101000 Cash and cash equivalents

103000 Petty cash

101100 Investments

102000 Cash and cash equivalents - restricted

102300 Investments - restricted

106000 Valuation of investments to fair value

Taxes receivable:

111000   Mobiles

113000   Real estate

114000   Net proceeds

115000   Personal

116000   Protested

118000   Special assessments

120000
Accounts/other receivables (net of allowance 
for uncollectibles)

127500 Leases Receivable

131000 Due from other funds

132000 Due from other governments

133000 Advances to other funds

140000 Prepaid expense

150000 Inventories
170000 Other debits

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

190000 Deferred Outflows of Resources 
19xxxx Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES

201000 Warrants payable

202100 Accounts payable

203100 Judgments payable

204000 Contracts/loans/notes payable

205200 Matured interest payable

205500   Leases - short-term

206100 Other accrued payables

211000 Due to other funds

212000 Due to other funds/governments

214000 Deposits payable

216000 Revenues collected in advance
233000 Advances from other funds

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

220000 Deferred Inflows of Resources
223000 Deferred Inflows of Tax Revenues 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCE

250100 Non-spendable

250200 Restricted

260100 Committed

260200 Assigned
271000 Unassigned (Negative balance only)

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances

4046 NONMAJOR
CAPITAL

PROJECTS
FUNDS

126,954.10 563,778.47

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

75,284.09

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

386.43 1,849.28
0.00

18,850.04

197.50

165,970.64

0.00

0.00
0.00

127,340.53 825,930.02

0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00

184,820.68

0.00

0.00

127,340.53 641,109.34
0.00

127,340.53 825,930.02

127,340.53 825,930.02

Parks



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

4020

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACCOUNT ACTUAL POSITIVE
NUMBER DESCRIPTION ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES
Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes 7,500.00 6,688.84 (811.16)
314140    Local option taxes 0.00

Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants 0.00
0.00

332000   Federal shared revenues 0.00
334000   State grants 0.00

0.00
335000   State shared revenues 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,049.72 49.72

Charges for services

341010  Miscellaneous collections 0.00
341070  Planning fees 0.00
343000  Public works charges 0.00
360000 Miscellaneous

361000  Rents and leases 0.00
362000  Other miscellaneous revenue 0.00
365000  Contributions/donations 0.00
370000 Investment and royalty earnings 1,500.00 1,765.56 265.56

Total revenues 30,000.00 39,000.00 38,504.12 (495.88)

EXPENDITURES
510000 Miscellaneous 38,889.00 38,889.00 38,889.00 0.00
900-950 Capital expenditures 167,500.00 167,500.00 0.00 167,500.00

Total expenditures 206,389.00 206,389.00 38,889.00 167,500.00
Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures (176,389.00) (167,389.00) (384.88) 167,004.12
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued 0.00
381000  Discount on bonds issued 0.00
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA 0.00
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued 0.00
382010  Sale of assets 0.00
383000  Transfers In 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00
520000  Transfers out (enter as negative) 0.00
384000 Special items - revenue 0.00
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue 0.00
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative) 0.00
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as negative) 0.00

Total other financing sources (uses) 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00

Net change in fund balance (151,389.00) (142,389.00) 24,615.12 167,004.12
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported 535,609.47
 Prior period adjustments

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated 535,609.47

Fund balances - June 30, 2023 560,224.59

-73-

Capital Improvements



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES
Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes
314140    Local option taxes

Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000   Federal shared revenues
334000   State grants

335000   State shared revenues
Charges for services

341010  Miscellaneous collections
341070  Planning fees
343000  Public works charges
360000 Miscellaneous

361000  Rents and leases
362000  Other miscellaneous revenue
365000  Contributions/donations
370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
510000 Miscellaneous
900-950 Capital expenditures

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enter as negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as nega

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported

 Prior period adjustments

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated

Fund balances - June 30, 2023

4024

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

21.84 21.84

0.00 0.00 21.84 21.84

0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 21.84 21.84

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00

25,000.00 25,000.00 25,021.84 21.84

0.00
1.37

1.37

25,023.21

-73-

Police Department



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES
Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes
314140    Local option taxes

Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000   Federal shared revenues
334000   State grants

335000   State shared revenues
Charges for services

341010  Miscellaneous collections
341070  Planning fees
343000  Public works charges
360000 Miscellaneous

361000  Rents and leases
362000  Other miscellaneous revenue
365000  Contributions/donations
370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
510000 Miscellaneous
900-950 Capital expenditures

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enter as negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as nega

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported

 Prior period adjustments

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated

Fund balances - June 30, 2023

4025

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

297.90 297.90

0.00 0.00 297.90 297.90

0.00
120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00
120,000.00 120,000.00 0.00 120,000.00

(120,000.00) (120,000.00) 297.90 120,297.90

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00

(80,000.00) (80,000.00) 40,297.90 120,297.90

73,043.79

73,043.79

113,341.69

-73-

Fire Department 



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES
Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes
314140    Local option taxes

Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000   Federal shared revenues
334000   State grants

335000   State shared revenues
Charges for services

341010  Miscellaneous collections
341070  Planning fees
343000  Public works charges
360000 Miscellaneous

361000  Rents and leases
362000  Other miscellaneous revenue
365000  Contributions/donations
370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
510000 Miscellaneous
900-950 Capital expenditures

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enter as negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as nega

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported

 Prior period adjustments

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated

Fund balances - June 30, 2023

4043

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1.37
(1.37)

0.00

0.00

-73-

Streets Capital



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES
Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes
314140    Local option taxes

Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000   Federal shared revenues
334000   State grants

335000   State shared revenues
Charges for services

341010  Miscellaneous collections
341070  Planning fees
343000  Public works charges
360000 Miscellaneous

361000  Rents and leases
362000  Other miscellaneous revenue
365000  Contributions/donations
370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
510000 Miscellaneous
900-950 Capital expenditures

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enter as negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as nega

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported

 Prior period adjustments

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated

Fund balances - June 30, 2023

4046

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

518.39 518.39

0.00 0.00 518.39 518.39

0.00
190,000.00 190,000.00 0.00 190,000.00
190,000.00 190,000.00 0.00 190,000.00

(190,000.00) (190,000.00) 518.39 190,518.39

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00

(160,000.00) (160,000.00) 30,518.39 190,518.39

96,822.14

96,822.14

127,340.53

-73-

Parks



CITY OF HARDIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

REVENUES
Taxes:

311000/312000    Property taxes
314140    Local option taxes

Intergovernmental revenue (See 
supplemental section for detail)

331000   Federal grants

332000   Federal shared revenues
334000   State grants

335000   State shared revenues
Charges for services

341010  Miscellaneous collections
341070  Planning fees
343000  Public works charges
360000 Miscellaneous

361000  Rents and leases
362000  Other miscellaneous revenue
365000  Contributions/donations
370000 Investment and royalty earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
510000 Miscellaneous
900-950 Capital expenditures

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

381000  Bonds issued
381000  Discount on bonds issued
381050  Inception of lease/SBITA
381070  Notes/loans/intercap issued
382010  Sale of assets
383000  Transfers In
520000  Transfers out (enter as negative)
384000 Special items - revenue
385000 Extraordinary items - revenue
524000 Special items - expenditure (enter as negative)
525000 Extraordinary items - expenditure(enter as nega

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as previously 
reported

 Prior period adjustments

Fund balances - July 1, 2022 as restated

Fund balances - June 30, 2023

TOTALS

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGET
ACTUAL POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

0.00 7,500.00 6,688.84 (811.16)
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

30,000.00 30,000.00 30,049.72 49.72

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 1,500.00 2,603.69 1,103.69

30,000.00 39,000.00 39,342.25 342.25

38,889.00 38,889.00 38,889.00 0.00
477,500.00 477,500.00 0.00 477,500.00
516,389.00 516,389.00 38,889.00 477,500.00

(486,389.00) (477,389.00) 453.25 477,842.25

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 0.00

(366,389.00) (357,389.00) 120,453.25 477,842.25

705,476.77
0.00

705,476.77

825,930.02

-74-



REVENUE RECEIVING
CODE FUND AMOUNT

FEDERAL GRANTS/ENTITLEMENTS - (LIST)

COPS Hiring Grant 331020 2916 48,129.75
Rural Development Community Facilities Grant 331072 2939 9,832.00
American Rescue Plan Act Funding 331999 2992 56,718.92

Total Federal Grants/Entitlements 114,680.67

FEDERAL SHARED REVENUES - (LIST)

Total Federal Shared Revenues 0.00

STATE GRANTS/ENTITLEMENTS - (LIST)
Coal Board Impact Grant 334061 5310 50,000.00
Montana Coal Endowment Program 334120 5310 96,988.94

Total State Grants/Entitlements 146,988.94

STATE SHARED REVENUES - (LIST)
Gas Tax Apportionment 335040 2820 70,920.51
Police Insurance Premium Apportionment 335050 2810 5,183.00
Fire Dept. Retirement Fund Apportionment 335051 7120 5,183.00
Oil & Gas Production Tax 335065 1000 1,637.46
Gambling Machine Permits 335120 1000 15,425.00
State Entitlement Share 335230 1000 756,810.92
State Entitlement Share 335230 2190 19,031.48
State Entitlement Share 335230 2370 17,028.16
State Entitlement Share 335230 3110 5,239.92
State Entitlement Share 335230 4020 30,049.72
State Entitlement Share 335230 7120 30,280.08
On Behalf Payments - PERS 336020 2370 32,748.73
On Behalf Payments - PERS 336020 5210 8,860.98
On Behalf Payments - PERS 336020 5310 6,443.90
On Behalf Payments - PERS 336020 5410 4,116.21
On Behalf Payments - PERS 336020 5417 6,747.19

Total State Shared Revenues 1,015,706.26

LOCAL GRANTS - (LIST)

0.00

TOTAL 1,277,375.87

-85-

CITY OF HARDIN
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL/STATE GRANTS,
ENTITLEMENTS, AND SHARED REVENUES

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023



ALL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS - ALL FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Fund 
Number Description

Cash balance 
7/1/2022 Receipts   Transfers in Disbursements   Transfers  Out

Cash balance 
6/30/2023

1000 GENERAL 1,251,037.99 1,535,011.62 956,028.78 32,707.04 2,373,250.78 1,336,120.57

2000 SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

2190 Comprehensive Insurance 32,752.05 31,157.16 0.00 0.00 44,208.19 19,701.02

2370 Employer retirement 25,720.83 63,293.41 0.00 0.00 68,990.51 20,023.73

2371 Health insurance 99,767.41 36,451.58 42,825.77 20.89 57,145.25 121,878.62

2372 Permissive Medical 389.07 83,869.27 0.00 0.00 81,042.17 3,216.17

2396 CDBG - Housing (93 & Later Loan Repayment) 25,434.18 1,283.18 50,000.00 1,138.49 50,000.00 25,578.87

2397 CDBG - Econ Dev 0.00 10.00 0.00 10.00 0.00 0.00

2398 Local Charges for Services 29,967.45 1,906.37 40,500.00 0.00 44,789.25 27,584.57

2401 Lighting District #1 16,164.27 17,898.18 12,000.00 277.99 31,125.39 14,659.07

2411 Lighting District #54 125,708.76 133,534.64 72,000.00 1,641.56 200,768.51 128,833.33

2501 Street Maintenance #1 477,208.18 340,072.90 393,760.13 12,890.48 713,996.79 484,153.94

2580 Curb & Gutter 307,878.71 19,687.68 338,013.80 7,336.59 329,987.47 328,256.13

2810 Police Training/ Pension Fund 4,696.00 5,183.00 0.00 0.00 3,228.00 6,651.00

2820 Gas Apportionment Tax 294,144.26 71,738.54 81,268.43 1,151.74 93,197.16 352,802.33

2821 Gas Tax - Special Allocation Program 210,558.16 91,576.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 302,134.19

2888 Montana Main Street Program 0.00 10,200.00 0.00 0.00 10,250.00 (50.00)

2916 COPS Grant 0.00 43,287.79 0.00 0.00 43,287.79 0.00

2917 Crime Victims Assistance 5,404.25 5,783.53 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,187.78

2939 Rural Comm Development 0.00 42,021.45 6,629.91 0.00 48,651.36 0.00

2992 American Rescue Plan Act 959,973.37 558.97 100,000.00 0.00 153,005.52 907,526.82

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE 2,615,766.95 999,513.68 1,136,998.04 24,467.74 1,973,673.36 2,754,137.57

-86-



ALL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS - ALL FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Fund 
Number Description

Cash balance 
7/1/2022 Receipts   Transfers in Disbursements   Transfers  Out

Cash balance 
6/30/2023

3000 DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (list)

3110 TIFD - Bond Service 187,179.33 929,877.34 0.00 0.00 643,204.46 473,852.21

3511 SID 120 0.00 118,824.89 0.00 0.00 118,824.89 0.00

3512 SID 121 0.75 36,476.11 0.00 0.00 36,476.11 0.75

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 187,180.08 1,085,178.34 0.00 0.00 798,505.46 473,852.96

4000 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS (list)

4020 Capital Improvements 288,184.65 34,379.49 204,810.30 3,415.49 150,000.00 373,958.95

4024 Police Department 0.00 23.21 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 25,023.21

4025 Fire Department 72,943.51 182.79 40,000.00 0.00 0.00 113,126.30

4043 Streets 1.37 0.00 0.00 1.37 0.00 0.00

4046 Parks - Capital Projects 172,584.88 369.22 30,000.00 0.00 76,000.00 126,954.10

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 533,714.41 34,954.71 299,810.30 3,416.86 226,000.00 639,062.56

5000 ENTERPRISE FUNDS (list)

5110 Hospital/Nursing 0.00

5210 Water 2,140,354.43 935,406.13 361,719.99 20,917.00 1,251,852.63 2,164,710.92

5211 Curb Stops 15,809.93 12,790.15 1,823.50 8.00 5,386.50 25,029.08

5310 Sewer 1,586,807.78 971,329.21 877,084.74 29,991.66 1,778,350.06 1,626,880.01

5410 Solid Waste 1,353,952.43 518,608.62 836,340.33 28,551.37 1,206,143.72 1,474,206.29

5417 Landfill 2,608,971.66 851,923.05 1,068,746.69 36,920.38 1,522,085.25 2,970,635.77

0.00

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS 7,705,896.23 3,290,057.16 3,145,715.25 116,388.41 5,763,818.16 8,261,462.07

7000 TRUST  FUNDS (list)

7100 CUSTODIAL  FUNDS  (list)

7110 Bed tax collection 0.00

7120 Fire disability 101,485.08 35,664.73 0.00 0.00 24,600.00 112,549.81

7130 Protested tax 0.00

7140 Public administrator 0.00

7150 Redemptions 0.00

0.00

7165 City Court 3,572.54 7,260.23 0.00 2,327.57 8,505.20

7170 Partial tax payments 0.00

0.00

7190 Migratory stock 0.00

7196 Flex 760.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 760.00

-87-



ALL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS - ALL FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

Fund 
Number Description

Cash balance 
7/1/2022 Receipts   Transfers in Disbursements   Transfers  Out

Cash balance 
6/30/2023

7900 CUSTODIAL - OTHER

7910 Payroll fund 17,904.33 7.85 2,629,682.19 2,601,938.17 1,604.61 44,051.59

7930 Claims fund 9,392.93 0.00 3,938,582.28 3,938,909.54 0.00 9,065.67

TOTAL TRUST AND CUSTODIAL FUNDS 133,114.88 42,932.81 6,568,264.47 6,543,175.28 26,204.61 174,932.27

8000 PERMANENT FUNDS

0.00

0.00

0.00

TOTAL PERMANENT FUNDS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTALS (to be accounted for) 12,426,710.54 6,987,648.32 12,106,816.84 6,720,155.33 11,161,452.37 13,639,568.00

**PROPERTY TAXES COLLECTED

Fund 
number Description Receipts Disbursements

Undisbursed receipts 
06/30/20___

7820 Transportation H.S./Elementary

7830 Retirement H.S.

7840 Retirement elementary

**THIS INFORMATION CAN BE TAKEN FROM FP-6b REPORT (TREASURER'S REPORT OF COUNTY WIDE SCHOOL FUNDS.)

-88-



     ALL FUNDS
CASH RECONCILIATION

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 202

BANK NAME

Account Description         
(not full acct #)

First Interstate 
Bank - Hardin

First Interstate 
Bank - Hardin - 
CDs

First Interstate 
Bank - Polson

Little Horn State 
Bank CD's US Bank

BALANCE PER 
STATEMENTS 3,716,653.18 1,948,592.86 1,270,268.42 3,211,532.48 446,330.11
ADD                                           
Deposits in transit 30,409.31
Service charges
Other 6,771.56

Total to add 37,180.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
SUBTRACT                               
Outstanding checks
Other

1,992.31

Total to subtract 1,992.31 0.00
TOTAL CASH                           
IN DEPOSITS 3,751,841.74 1,948,592.86 1,270,268.42 3,211,532.48 446,330.11
ADD                                           
Investments

Total to add 0.00 0.00
TOTAL IN                                   
DEPOSITORIES 3,751,841.74 1,948,592.86 1,270,268.42 3,211,532.48 446,330.11

ADD                                           
Cash and cash items on hand 660.00

Total to add 660.00 0.00
**TOTAL ACCOUNTED            
FOR 3,752,501.74 1,948,592.86 1,270,268.42 3,211,532.48 446,330.11

-89-

Cash reconciles ___X___     Cash does not reconcile __



23

First Interstate 
Bank - City Court

First Interstate 
Wealth 
Management Big Horn County

Cash in all 
depositories

14,696.76 2,885,397.95 116,439.24 13,609,911.00

580.00 30,989.31
0.00

6,771.56
0.00
0.00
0.00

580.00 0.00 0.00 37,760.87

0.00
6,771.56 6,771.56

1,992.31
0.00
0.00
0.00

6,771.56 0.00 8,763.87

8,505.20 2,885,397.95 116,439.24 13,638,908.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00

8,505.20 2,885,397.95 116,439.24 13,638,908.00

660.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00 0.00 660.00

8,505.20 2,885,397.95 116,439.24 13,639,568.00
        *Total cash must agree with total cash reported within report

______



GENERAL

    SECTION

INFORMATION



GENERAL INFORMATION
(Complete all portions applicable to entity)

1.  Class of county/city

2.  Date of incorporation

3.  County seat

4.  Form of government

5.  Population (most recent estimate)

6.  Land area

7.  Miles of roads/streets/alleys

8.  Taxable valuation

9.  Road taxable valuation (county)

10. Number of water consumers

11. Average daily water consumption

12. Miles of water main

13. Miles of sanitary and storm sewers

14. Number of building permits issued

15. Number of full-time employees

B.  PROPERTY TAX MILL LEVIES -
County/City/Town funds only (For fiscal year being reported)

Fund/activity Mills

GENERAL 138.28
COMPREHENSIVE INSURANCE 3.00
PERS 11.60
GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE 8.84
PERMISSIVE MEDICAL 21.00
FIREMEN DISABILITY AND RETIREMENT 0.00

TOTAL 182.72

-90-

19.9

24

36

31.4

$4,577,261- (TIFD Incremental $1,605,045) = $3,437,360

-

1,305

404,096

25.4

3.26 sq. miles

Third

1911

Hardin

Council/ Mayor

3,808


